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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Mitsubishy Corporation (Mitsubishi Shop Kabushiki Kaisha)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mitsubishi Corporation
(Mitsubishi Shoji Kabushiki Kaisha) and 1ts subsidiaries (the "Company"), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2012 and 2013, and the related consolhidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended March 31, 2013 (all expressed 1n Japanese yen), and the related notes to the
consohdated financial statements

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements 1n accordance with accounting prninciples generally accepted 1n the United States of
Amenca, this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of consolhidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 1n the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1n the consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are approprate 1n
the arcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 1n accordance with attestation
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion An audit also includes
evaluating the appropniateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consclidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opimion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consohdated financial statements referred to above present fairly, 1n all maternal
respects, the financial position of Mitsubish1 Corporation and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2012
and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the

period ended March 31, 2013 1n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the
United States of America

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited




Emphasis of Matter

As discussed 1n Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the accompanying consolidated
financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2012 have been retrospectively
adjusted for the change 1n accounting related to the investment that qualified for the equity
method of accounting during the year ended March 31, 2013 Our opinion 1s not modified with
respect to this matter

Other Matter

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into United States dollar
amounts included in the consolhidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March
31, 2013 and, in our opimon, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated
in Note 1 Such United States dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers
outside Japan

Deloille Trucke Fokmaln LLC

June 21, 2013

NOTE TO READERS

Notwithstanding the second paragraph in "Auditors' Responsibility” section of the Independent
Auditors' Report, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC ("DTT") has performed an audit of management's
report on internal control over financial reporting ("ICFR") under the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act of Japan. A translated copy of management's report on ICFR along with a translated
copy of DTT's report 1s included within this annual report as information for readers




Supplementary Explanation

Internal Contrels Over Financial Reporting in Japan

The Financial Instruments and Exchange Act i Japan ("the Act") requires the management of
Japanese public companses to annually evaluate whether internal controls over financial reporting
("ICFR") are effective as of each fiscal year-end and to disclose the assessment to investors n 2
"Management Intemnal Control Report " The Act also requires that the independent auditor of the
financial statements of these companies report on management's assessment of the effectiveness
of ICFR in an Independent Auditor’s Report ("mndirect reporting™) Under the Act, these reports
are required for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2008

We have thus evaluated our internal controls over financial reporting as of March 31,2013 m
accordance with "On the Revision of the Standards and Practice Standards for Manzgement
Assessment and Audit concerming Internal Controt Over Financial Reporting (Council Opmions)"
published by Busmess Accounting Council on March 30, 2011

As a result of conducting an evaluation of internal controls over financial reporting 1n the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2013, we concluded that our internal control system over financial reporting

as of March 31, 2013 was effective and reported as such i the Management Internal Control
Report

Our Independent Auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC, performed an audit of the
Management Internal Control Report under the Act

An English ransiation of the Management Internal Control Report and the Independent Auditor’s
Report filed under the Act 1s attached on the following pages

Mitsubishy Corporation




Management Internal Control Report (Translation)

NOTE TO READERS

Followng 1s an English translation of management's report on mternal control over financial reporting
("ICFR") filed under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act in Japan This report 1s presented
merely as supplemental mformation

There are differences between the management assessment of ICFR under the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act ("ICFR under FIEA™) and one conducted under the attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Pubhic Accountants ("AICPA™)

In the management assessment of ICFR under FIEA, there 1s detailed guidance on the scope of
management assessment of ICFR such as quantitative guidance on business location selection and/or
account selection In the management assessment of JCFR under the attestation standards estabhished by
the AICPA, there 1s no such detailed gmdance Accordingly, based on the quantitative guidance which
provides an approximate measure for the scope of assessment of internal control over business processes,
we used a measure of approximately 70% of total assets and mncome before income taxes for the selection
of significant locations and business units

(TRANSLATION)

1 [Matters relating to the basic framework for nternal control over financial reporting]

Ken Kobayashy, President and CEO, and Shuma Uchino, Director and Executive Vice President, are responsible
for designing and operating effective mternal control over financial reporting of Mitsubishi Corporation (the
"Company"”) and have designed and operated internal control over financal reporting in accordance with the basic
framework for internal controi set forth 1n "On the Revision of the Standards and Practice Standards for
Management Assessment and Audit concerning Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Council Opinions)”
published by Business Accounting Council on March 30, 2011

The internal control 15 designed to achieve 1ts objectives to the extent reasonable through the effective function and
combination of 1ts basic elements Therefore, there 15 a possibility that misstatements may not be compietely
prevented or detected by mternal control over financial reporting.

2 [Matters relating to the scope of assessment, the basic date of assessment and the assessment procedures]

The assessment of internai control over financial reporting was performed as of March 31, 2013, which 1s the end
of this fiscal year The assessment was performed 1n accordance with assessment standards for internal control
over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan

In conducting this assessment, we evaluated mtemnal controls which may have a matenal effect on our entire
financial reporting 1n a consohidation ("company-level controls”) We appropnately selecied business processes to
be evaluated, analyzed these selected business processes, 1dentified key controls that may have a matenal impact
on the rehability of the Company's financial reporting, and assessed the design and operation of these key controls
These procedures have allowed us to evaluate the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Company




We determined the required scope of assessment of internal control over financial reporting for the Company, as
well as 1ts consohdated subsidiaries and equity-method affilated companies, from the perspective of the
materiahty that may affect the rehabihity of the Company’s financial reporting The matertality that may affect the
reliability of the financal reporting 1s determined taking into account the mateniality of quantitative and quabtative
impacts We confirmed that we had reasonably determmed the scope of assessment of internal controls over
business processes i hght of the results of assessment of company-level controls conducted for the Company, its
consohdated subsidianies and equity-method affilhated compames We did not include those consolidated
subsidianes and equity-method affihated companies which do not have any material impact on the consolidated
financal statements 1n the scope of assessment of company-level controls

Regarding the scope of assessment of nternal control over business processes, we accumuiated locations and
business units in descending order of total assets (before elimination of intercompany accounts) and income before
income taxes (before elumnation of intercompany transactions) for the prior fiscal year, and those locations and
business units whose combined amount of total assets reaches approximately 70% of total assets on a consolidated
basis and those locattons and business units whose combined amount of mcome before income taxes reaches
approximately 70% of consohdated income before income taxes on a consolidated basis were selected as
"significant locations and business umts "

At the selected sigmificant locations and business units, we mcluded, 1n the scope of assessment, (i) those business
processes leading to sales or revenue, accounts receivable and mventones, and those leading to mnvesments and
loans, as sigmficant accounts that may have a matenal impact on the business objectives of the Company, and (1)
those busmess processes [eading to other quantitatively-matenial accounts Further, not oniy at selected sigmificant
tocations and business units, but also at other locations and business units, we added to the scope of assessment, as
business processes having greater mateniality constdering their impact on the financial reporting, (1) those business
processes relating to greater likehhood of matenal misstatements and significant accounts involving estimates and
the management's judgment, and (1) those business processes relating to businesses or operations dealing with
high-risk fransactions

3 [Matters relating to the results of the assessment]

As aresult of the assessment described above, we concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of the end of this fiscal vear

4 |Supplementary information]
Not applicable
5 [Special information]

Not applhcable




Independent Anditor’s Report filed under the Financial Instruments
and Exchange Act in Japan (Translation)

NOTE TO READERS

Following 1s an English translation of the Independent Auditor’s Report filed under the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act in Japan This report 1s presented merely as supplementa] information

There are differences between an audit of internal control over financial reporting (*“ICFR”) under the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act (“ICFR under FIEA™) and one conducted under the attestation
standards established by the Amenican Institute of Certified Pubhic Accountants (“AICPA™)

In an audit of ICFR under FIEA, the auditor expresses an opmnion on management’s report on ICFR, and
does not express an opmion on the company’s JICFR directly In an audit of ICFR under the attestation
standards estabhished by the AICPA, the auditor expresses an opimon on the company’s ICFR directly

Also mn an audit of ICFR under FIEA, there 1s detarled gundance on the scope of an audit of ICFR, such as
quantitative guidance on busmess location selection and/or account selection In an audit of ICFR under
the attestation standards established by the AICPA, there 15 no such detailed guidance Accordingly, based
on the quantitative guidance which provides an approximate measure for the scope of assessment of
internal control over business processes, we used a measure of approxumately 70% of total assets and
income before mcome taxes for the selection of significant locations and business units

(TRANSLATION)

Independent Auditor’s Report
(fited under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act in Japan)

June 21, 2013

To the Board of Directors of Mitsubishu Corporation

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLL.C

Designated Unhmited Liability Partner,
Engagement Parmer,
Certified Public Accountant Shigeo Og1

Designated Unlimuted Liability Partner,
Engagement Partner,
Certafied Public Accountant Koher Kan

Designated Unlimited Liability Partner,
Engagement Pariner,
Certified Public Accountant Kazuaki Furuuchi

Designated Unlunited Liability Partner,
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant Hideo Shirata

Designated Unlimited Liability Partner,
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant Masayuki Yamada




< Audit of Financial Statements >

Pursuant to the first paragraph of Article 193-2 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, we have audited
the consolidated finanecial statements included 1n the Financial Section, namely, the consolidated balance sheet of
Matsubishi Corporation (the “Company™) and 1ts consohdated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2013, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the fiscal year
from Apnl 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013, and the related notes

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting prninciples generally accepted in the United States of Amenca, pursuant to the
provisions of Article 95 of the Regulations Concerning Terminology, Forms, and Preparation Methods of
Consolidated Financial Statements, and for such internal control as management determnes 1s necessary to enable
the preparation of consohdated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Of efror

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibality 1s to express an opinion on these consohdated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consohidated financial
statements are free from matenal misstatement

An audit involves performmg procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the
consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the rnisks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 1n order to design audit procedures that
are appropnate 10 the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opnuon on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estumates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a bas:s for our audit
opinion

Audit Opmion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, 1n all material respects, the
financial position of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2013, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended 1n accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the Umited States of America

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed 1n Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year ended March 31, 2013, the
Company entered into a shareholders' agreement concerning the management of Anglo American Sur, S A
(*Anglo Sur”, a Chilean copper mining and smelting company) With the execution of the shareholders' agreemen,
the Company 15 able to exert significant influence over Anglo Sur and thus for the year ended March 31, 2013, the
Company accounts for 1ts investment in Anglo Sur under the equity method Accordingly, the Company has
retrospectively adjusted 1ts investment 1n Anglo Sur and the retamned earnings of the Company

Our opimion 15 not qualified n respect of this matter




< Audit of Internal Control >

Pursuant to the second paragraph of Article 193-2 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, we have audited
management’s report on internal control over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2013

Management’s Responsibility for the Report on Internal Control

The Company’s management 1s responsible for designing and operating effective internal control over financial
reporting and for the preparation and fair presentation of 1ts report on mternal control in accordance with
assessment standards for internal contro! over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan There 15 a possibility
that misstatements may not be completely prevented or detected by internal control over financial reporting

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on management’s report on internal control based on our internal
contrel audit We conducted our internal control audit in accordance with auditing standards for internal control
over financial reporting generally accepted i Japan Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether management’s report on internal control 1s free from matenal
misstatement

An mternal control audit involves performmg procedures to obtam audit evidence about the results of the
assessment of internal control over financial reporting 1n management’s report on mternal control The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the significance of effects on rehability of financial reporting
An nternal control audit mcludes exammmg representations on the scope, procedures and results of the
assessment of internal controi over financial reporting made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of management’s report on internal control

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion

Audit Opinion

In our opinion, management’s report on internal control referred to above, which represents that the mternal
control over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2013 1s effectively maintained, presents farrly, in
all matenal respects, the results of the assessment of internal control over financial reporting 1n accordance with
assessment standards for internal control over financial reporting generally accepted 1n Japan

Interest

Our firm and the engagement partners do not have any mterest in the Company for which disclosure 1s required
under the provistons of the Certified Public Accountants Act

(The above represents a translation, for convenience only, of the original report 1ssued 1n the Japanese language )




Consolidated Balance Sheets

Mitsubish) Corporation and Subsidianes
March 31, 2012 and 2013

Milhons of
U S Dollars
Milhons of Yen (Note 1)
ASSETS 2012 2013 2013
Current assets
Cash and cash equivaleats (Notes 5 and 12) ¥1,252. 951 ¥1,345,755 $14,317
Time deposits 116,024 123,654 1,316
Short-term investments (Notes 5 and 12) 19,327 26,880 286
Notes receivable~—trade 363,130 341,810 3,636
Accounts recervable—trade 2,379,899 2,505,518 26,655
LLoans and other receivables 389,678 455,373 4,844
Recervables from Affilhated companies 250,469 288,113 3,065
Inventones 965,057 1,202,295 12,790
Advance payments to suppliers 157,817 145,276 1,546
Deferred mcome taxes (Note 15) 45,780 62,135 661
Other current assets (Notes 8, 11, 12 and 16) 258,953 358,374 3,812
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 7) (23,809) (28,917) (308)
Total current assets 6,175,276 6,826,260 72,620
Investments and noncurrent receivables
Investments in and advances to Affiliated companies (Notes 3, 6 and 12) 2,097,976 2,554,161 27,172
Joint investments 1n real estate 62,290 31,393 334
Other mvestments (Notes 3, 5, 9 and 12) 1,414,584 1,497,521 15,931
Noncurrent notes, loans and accounts recewable—rade (Notes 9 and 23) 549,712 663,884 7,062
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 7) (30,508) (29,528) (314)
Total investments and noncurrent receivables 4,094,054 4,717,431 50,185
Property and equipment (Notes 8, 9 and 23)
Real estate held for development and resale 90,004 44,973 478
Land 335,731 348,014 3,702
Buildings and structures 794,497 908,286 9,663
Machinery and equipment 964,503 1,102,476 11,728
Aircraft and vessels 475,285 643,596 6,847
Mineral nghts 394,206 459,168 4,885
Projects in progress 211,154 446,218 4,747
Total 3,265,380 3,852,701 42,050
Less accumulated depreciation (1,294,466) (1,465,267} {15,588)
Property and equipment—net 1,970,914 2,487,464 26,462
Goodwill (Note 10) 60,498 60,859 647
Other intangible assets—net (Note 10) 107,086 123,401 1,313
Other assets (Notes 3, 11, 12, 15 and 16) 180,492 195,250 2,078
Total assets ¥12,588,320 ¥14,410,665 $153,305
See notes to consolidated financial statements
(Continued)




Millions of

US Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note i)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2012 2013 2013
Current habihites
Short-term debt (Notes 9 and 14) ¥886,431 ¥799,983 $8,510
Current matunties of long-term debt (Notes 9 and 14) 435,221 590,976 6,287
Notes and acceplances payable—trade 206,049 199,954 2,127
Accounts payable—trade 2,108,171 2,230,074 23,724
Payables to Affiliated compames 186,094 227,354 2,419
Advances from customers 160,795 136,416 1,451
Accrued income taxes 32,360 56,345 600
Other accrued expenses (Note 15) 118,877 126,867 1,350
Other current habilities (Notes 11, 12, 15, 17 and 23) 331,968 360,144 3,831
Total current hiabilities 4,465,966 4 728,113 50,299
Noncurrent habihties
Long-term debt, less current matunties (Notes 9 and 14) 3,760,101 4,498,683 47,858
Accrued pension and severance liabiliies (Note 16) 51,343 57,702 614
Deferred income taxes (Note 3 ang 1 5) 199,051 264,616 2,815
Other noncurrent lrabilities (Notes 11, 12, 17 and 23) 285,080 305,501 3,250
Totat noncurrent habilihes 4,295,577 5,126,502 54,537
Total habilities 8,761,543 9,854,615 104,836
Comimitments and contingencies (Note 26)
Matsubishy Corporation shareholders® equity (Notes 18, 19 and 28)
Common stock-—authorized, 2,500,000,000 shares,
1ssued, 2012— 1,653,505,751 shares and
2013— 1,653,505,751 shares,
outstanding, 2012— 1,646,172,919 shares and
2013— 1,647,157,995 shares 204,447 204,447 2,175
Additional paid-in capital 262,039 262,705 2,795
Retained eamings
Appropnated for legal reserve 44,133 44 933 478
Unappropniated (Note 3) 3,300,588 3,563,056 37,905
Accumulated other comprehensive mcome (losses)
Net unrealized gains on available for sale secunties 230,362 305,447 3,249
Net unrealized losses on denvatives (Note 3) (8,433 (4,768) {51)
Defined benefit pension plans (Note 3) (78,303) (87,887) (935)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 3) (426,450) (90,265) (960)
Subtotal (282,824) 122,527 1,303
Less treasury stock—at cost, 7,332,832 shares i 2012
and 6,347,756 shares in 2013 {20,565) (17,970} (191)
Total Mitsubish: Corporation shareholders’ equity 3,507,818 4,179,698 44,465
Noncontrolling interest 318,959 376,352 4,004
Total equity 3,826,777 4,556,050 48,469
Total habilities and equity ¥12,588.320 ¥14,410,665 $153,305
(Concluded)
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Mitsubish: Corporation and Subsidianes
Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

Millions of
U S Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013
Revenues (Notes 11, 12 and 21)
Revenues from trading, manufactunng and other activities ¥4,590,888 ¥4.944 801 ¥5,376,773 357,200
Trading margins and commissions on trading transactions 615,985 621,031 592,001 6,298
Total revenues 5,206,873 5,565,832 5,968,774 63,498
Operating transactions (Notes 1 and 21)
2011—¥19,233,443 nullion,
2012-~%20,126,321 million,
2013—%20,207,183 million—3$214,970 tmullion
Cost of revenues from trading, manufacturing and other
activities (Notes 11 and 12) 4,056,971 4,437.972 4,939,117 52,544
Gross profit (Note 21) 1,149,902 1,127,860 1,029,657 10,954
Other expenses {income}
Selling, general and adminisirative (Note 16) 824,622 850,214 889,955 9,467
Provision for doubiful receivables (Note 7) 9,139 6,524 5,827 62
Interest expense (net of mterest income of
2011—¥33,077 mullion,
2012—%38,633 million,
2013—¥37,241 million—3$396 million) (Notes 11 and 21) 6,699 3,202 5,990 64
Dividend imncome (Note 3) (120,601) {111,236) (144,593) (1,538)
Gamn on marketable secunties and mnvestments—net
(Notes 4,5, 11, 12 and 21) (53,439) (21,968) (34,132) (363)
Loss on property and equipment—net (Notes 8 and 10) 2,557 7,085 24,436 260
Other income—aet (Notes 4, 10, 11 and 22) (49,180) (60,669) (55,032) (585)
Total 619,797 673,152 692,451 7,367
Income before income taxes and equity in earnings of Affiliated
companies and other 530,105 454,708 337,206 3,587
Income taxes {(Notes 15 and 21)
Current 168,581 130 551 120,552 1,282
Deferred (Note 3) 30,099 37,779 (7,066) (75)
Total 198,680 168,330 113,486 1,207
Income before equity in earnings of Affihated compames
and other 331,425 286,378 223,720 2,380
Equity 1n earmings of Affiliated compames and other
{Notes 3, 6 and 21) 167,002 192,418 164,274 1,748
Net income (Note 3) 498,427 478,796 387,994 4,128
Less net income attributable to the noncontrolhing wnterest (33,884) (26,452) (27,966) (298)
Net income attributable to Mitsubishh Corporanon (Note 3) ¥ 464,543 ¥452 344 ¥360,028 $3.830
Yen U S Dollars
(Note 1)
Net mcome atinbutable to Mitsubishy Corporation per share
{Notes 3 and 20)
Basic ¥282 62 ¥27491 ¥218 66 $233
Diluted 281 87 27430 21818 232

Sec notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Matsubishi Corporation and Subsidianes
Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

Millions of
U § Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013
Net income ¥498.427 ¥478,796 ¥387,994 54,128
Other comprehensive mncome (loss), net of tax
Net unrealized (losses) gams on available-for-sale securines
{Notes 5 and 19) (25,558) (8,176} 76,992 819
Net unrealized gains {losses) on dervatives
(Notes 3, 11 and 19) 12,493 (33,349) 3,036 32
Defined benefit pension plans (Notes 3, 16 and 19) 910 1,225 {10,171) (108)
Foreign currency translation adjustments {Notes 3 and 19) {77,648) (32,722) 351,518 3,740
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax {89,803) {73,022) 421,375 4,483
Comprehensive income 408,624 405,774 809,369 8,611
Comprehensive income attributable to the noncontrolling,
mteresi (26,770) (22,]29) (43,990) (469)
Comprehensive income attributable to Mitsubish: Corporabon ¥381,854 ¥383,645 ¥765,379 $8.142

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Equity
Mitsubishi Corporation and Subsidianes
Years Ended March 31,2011, 2012 and 2013

Millions of
U S Dollars
Milhons of Yen (Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013

Common stock
Balance, beginning of year—shares 1ssued
2011—1,696,686,871 shares
2012—1,697,268,27] shares
2013--1,653,505,751 shares ¥203,228 ¥203,598 ¥204.447 $2,175
Issuance of common stock and reclassification adjusunent
from adcitional paid-in capital upon exercise of stock

oplions

2011—581,400 shares

2012—475,700 shares

2013— 0 shares (Note 24) 370 396
Issuance of common stock upon conversion of convertible

bond

2011— 0 shares

2012—761,780 shares

2013— G shares (Notes 14 and 27) 453

Batance, end of year—shares ssued
2011—1,697,268 271 shares
2012—1,653,505,751 shares

2013—1,653,505,751 shares (Note 18) ¥203,598 ¥204,447 ¥204,447 $2,175
Additional paid-in capital

Balance, beginning of year ¥254,138 ¥256,501 ¥262,039 $2,788

Compensation costs related to stock options (Note 24) 1,240 1,256 1,006 11

Issuance of common stock and reclassification adjustment
to common stock upon exercise of stock options

{Note 24) 122 (116)
Sales of treasury stock upon exercise of stock options

(Note 24) (636) (925) (10
Issuance of cornmon stock upon conversion of convertible

bond (Notes 14 and 27) 452
Losses on sales of treasury stock (1)
Retirement of treasury stock (Note 18) {9)
Equity transactions with the noncontrolhing nterest and

others 1,002 4,591 585 6
Balance, end of year ¥256,501 ¥262,039 ¥262,705 $2,795

Retained earnings appropnated for legal reserve

Balance, beginming of year ¥43,i89 ¥43,670 ¥44,133 $469
Transfer from unappropriated retained earnings 481 463 800 9
Balance, end of year ¥43,670 ¥44,133 ¥44,933 $478

{Continued)
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Milltons of

U § Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013
Unappropnated retained earnings
Balance, beginning of year ¥2,708.547 ¥3,095,348 ¥3,300,588 $35.113
Net income attnbutable to Mitsubishi Corporation
(Note 3) 464,543 452,344 360,028 3,830
Total 3,173,090 3,547,692 3,660,616 38,943
Deduct
Cash dividends paid to Mitsubishi Corporation’s
shareholders {annual rate per share of
2011—¥47 0
2012—¥71 0
2013—¥58 03 0 62) (77,261) (116,802) {95,503) {1,016}
Transfer to retained earmings appropnated for legal
reserve (481) (463} {800) )
Sales of treasury stock upon exercise of stock options
(Note 24) (1,237) (1.257) (13)
Losses on sales of treasury stock (n
Retirement of treasury stock (Note 18) (128,601)
Total (77,742) (247,104} (97,560) (1,038)
Balance, end of year ¥3,095,348 ¥3.300,588 ¥3,563,056 $37,905
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Balance, beginning of year ¥(131,436) ¥(214,125) ¥(282.824) $(3,009)
Net unrealized {losses) gains on available-for-sale
secunties {Notes 5 and 19) (24,503) (6,430) 75,085 799
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivauves
(Notes 3, 11 and 19) 12,445 32,787 3,665 39
Defined benefit pension plans (Notes 3, 16 and 19) 833 1,251 (9,584) (102)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Notes 3 and 19) (71,462) (30,733) 336,185 3,576
Balance, end of year ¥(214,125) ¥(282 824) ¥122,527 $1,303
Treasury stock
Balance, beginning of year ¥(151,572) ¥(151,650) ¥(20,565) %219
Sales of treasury stock upon exercise of stock options
(Note 24) 2,491 2,578 28
Purchases and sales—net (Note 18) (78) (16) 17
Retirement (Note 18) 128,610
Balance, end of year ¥(151,650) ¥(20,565) ¥(17,970) S(191)
Total Mitsubishi Corporation shareholders’ equity ¥3.233.342 ¥3,507,818 ¥4,179,698 $44,465
Noncontrolling interest
Balance, beginning of year ¥306,174 ¥316,603 ¥318,959 $3,393
Cash dividends paid to the noncontrolling interest {21,050) (20,870) (14,584) (155)
Equity transactions with the noncontrolling interest and
others 4,709 1,097 27,987 298
Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest 33,884 26,452 27,966 298
Net unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale
secunties, net of tax (1,053 {1,746} 1,907 10
Net unreahized gains (losses) on denvatives, net of tax 48 (562) (629) (7
Defined benefit pension plans, net of tax 77 (26} (587) 6)
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax (6,186) {1,989) 15,333 163
Balance, end of year ¥316,603 ¥318,959 ¥376,352 54,004
{Continued)
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Millions of
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U 8§ Doliars
Milhions of Yen (Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013
Total equity

Balance, beginning of year ¥3,232,268 ¥3,549,945 ¥3,826,777 $40,710
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options 492 280
Sales of treasury stock upon exercise of stock options 618 396 4
Compensation costs related to stock options 1,240 1,256 1,006 11
Issuance of common stock upon converston of convertible

bond 905
Losses on sales of treasury stock (n 1)
Net income 498,427 478,796 387,594 4,128
Cash dividends paid to Mitsubishi Corporations’

shareholders (77,261) (116,862) (95,503) {1,016)
Cash dividends paid to the noncontroiling interest (21,050) {20,870) (14,584) (155)
Net unrealized (losses) gains on avatlable-for-sale

secunties, net of tax (25,558} (8,176) 76,992 819
Net unreahized gains (losses) on derivatives, net of tax 12,493 {33,349) 3,036 32
Defined benefit pension plans, net of tax 410 1,225 (10,171) (108)
Foresgn currency translation adjusiments, net of tax {77,648) (32,722) 351,518 3,740
Purchases and sales—net of treasury stock (78) (16) 17
Equity transactions with the noncontroihing mterest and

others 5,711 5,088 28,572 304
Balance, end of year ¥3,549,945 ¥3.826,777 ¥4,556,050 $48.469

See notes to consohdated financial statements
(Cocluded)




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Mitsubushu Corporation and Subsicharies
Years Ended Masch 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

Millions of
U S Dollars
Milhions of Yen (Note 1)
2011 2012 2013 2013

Operating activities

Net income ¥498,427 ¥478,796 ¥387,994 $4.128
Adjustments te reconcile net iIncome to net cash provided
by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 143,819 145,428 157,405 1,675
Provision for doubtfu] receivables 9,139 6,524 5,827 62
Accrued penston and severance costs, less payments {3,746) 5,955 (2,354) (25)
Gain on marketable secunties and investments—net (53,439) (21,968) (34,132} (363)
Loss on property and equipment—net 2,557 7,083 24,436 260
Equity 1n eamings of Affihated companes and other,
less dividends recerved {19,979) (48,277) (29,658) (316)
Deferred mncome taxes 30,099 37,779 (7,066) (75)
Changes 1n operating assets and habilities
Short-term investments—trading securities (127} (360) 638 7
Notes and accounts receivable—itrade {164,364) (285,469) 64,760 689
Inventortes (163,488) (95,387 (100,478) (1,069)
Notes, acceptances and accounts payable—trade 74,431 255,880 5,150 55
Advance payments to suppliers 27,012 40,420 6,355 68
Advances from customers (40,272) (38,644) (19,260} (205)
Otber recervables 10,865 (6,188) (17,106) (182)
Other payables (15,765} 57,593 53,034 564
Other accrued expenses 11,046 8,722 (230) @
Other current assets 24,628 23,151 {22,566) (240)
Other current habihties 22,803 31,38% 2,232 {24)
Other noncurrent habihites 600 12,271 (11,796) (126)
Other—pet (63,042) (64,006) (55,408) (590)
Net cash provided by operating activities 331,204 550,694 403,313 4291
Investing activities
Expenditures for property and equipment {228,654) (412,991) (577,961) (6,149)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 44,366 49,038 45,304 482
Investments 1n and advances to Affiliated companies and
other (106,214} (842,725) (408,551} {4,346)
Proceeds from sales of investments 1n and collection of
advances to Affiliated companies and other 38,686 87,122 164,057 1,745
Acqusitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (35,548) (57,076) (12,439) (132)
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash divested 3,844 21,546 2,063 22
Purchases of available-for-sale securifies (242.201) (34,273) (19,792) (211)
Proceeds from sales of availabie-for-sale secunities 50,068 20,831 65,602 698
Proceeds from matuntes of available-for-sale secunities 263,738 55,263 21,537 229
Purchases of other investments (48,510) (109,955) (61,027} (649)
Proceeds from sales of other investments 65,481 95,494 82,736 880
Increase 1n loans receivable (277,529) (118,644) {198,252) (2,109)
Collection of loans recervable 206,397 162,888 148,503 1,580
Net decrease (increase) 1n time deposits 3,475 (17,431 (4,257) (45)
Net cash used in investing activities (262,601) (1,100,913) (752,477) (8,005)
(Continued)
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Financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt 127,216 257,898 (147,553) (1,570)
Proceeds from long-term debt—net of 1ssuance cost 574,254 995,932 1,385,319 14,738
Repayment of long-term debt (526,435) (532,937) (728,347) (7,748)
Payment of dividends {77,261) (116,802) {95,503) (1,016)
Payment of dividends to the noncontrolling interest {21,050) (20,870} (14,584) (155)
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary’s interests from the
noncontroiling interest (6,620) (2,440) (893) (10)
szeﬁi;:}gstﬂle;;f;ubmdlm s interests to the 6,172 17,385 2,858 30
Proceeds from 1ssmng common stock upon exercise of
stock options 492 280
Net {increase) decrease in treasury stock (19) 613 390 4
Net cash provided by financing activities 76,749 599,059 401,687 4,273
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (17,154) (4,631) 40,281 428
Net increase 1 cash and cash equivalents 128,198 44,209 92,804 987
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,080,544 1,208,742 1,252,951 13,330
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ¥1,208,742 ¥1,252 951 ¥1,345,755 $14,317
See notes to consohidated financial statements
(Concluded)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Mitsubishi Corporation and Subsidianes

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Operations—

Mitsubishi Corporation (the “Parent™), together with 11ts consolidated domestic and fereign subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Company”), 15 a dwersified organization engaged n & wide vaniety of business activities, providing vanous types of products and
services on a global basis Through the Company’s domestic and overseas network, the Company 1s engaged tn general trading,
mcluding the purchasing, supplying and manufactunng of a wide range of products related to energy, metals, machnery, chemicals
and lIiving essentials, n addition to natural resources development, infrastructure-related businesses and financial businesses The
Company 1s also engaged in the development of new business models in the new energy, environmental and new technology fields

Basis of Consolidated Financial Statements—

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the Parent is
ncorporated and principatly operates The translation of Japanese yen amounts mto United States (“U § ) dollar amounts with
respect to the year ended March 31, 2013 1s included solely for the convemience of readers outside Japan and has been made at the
rate of ¥94=3%1, the rate of exchange as of March 31, 2013 Such translation should not be construed as a representation that the
Japanese yen amounts could be converted into U S dollars at this or any other rate

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with accounting principles generally
accepied 1n the United States of Amenca (“U S GAAP™) Because the Parent and 1ts subsidianies mamtain their records and prepare
thesr financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the countries of their respective domuciles,
certain adjustments and reclassifications have been incorporated n the accompanying consolidated financial statements n order to
conform with US GAAP These adjustments have not been recorded 1n the statutory books of account

“Operating transactions,” as presented in the consohdated statements of income, 15 a voluntary disclosure commonly made by
Japanese trading companies It represents the gross transaction value of sales contracts in which the Company acts as a principal or as
an agent Transactions in which the Company’s role 1s imited to that of broker are recorded net and included i operating
transactions Operating transactions are not meant to represent revenues m accordance with U § GAAP and should not be construed
as equivalent to, or a substitute or proxy for, revenues However, as management believes operatng transaction mformation 1s useful
to users of the consolidated financial statements, a voluntary disclosure 15 made 1n the consolidated statements of income
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements are summanzed
below

Consohdation and Investments i Subsidiaries and Affiliated Compames—

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent and 1t5 majonty-owned domestic and foreign subsidianes
that the Parent controls In addition, the Company consolidates vanable interest entities (“VIEs”) for which the Company 15 the
pnmary beneficiary Unincorporated joint ventures, in which the Company holds an undivided mterest in the assets ands
proportionately hable for the habilities, are proportionately consolidated by the Company All sigmficant mtercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated

Investments 1n companies and corporate yjoint ventures over which the Company 1s able to exert sigmificant influence over the
operating and financial decisions (“Affihated companies”) are accounted for using the equity method of accounting If a decline
fair value of investments m Affiliated companies accounted for using the equity method 1s determined to be other-than-temporary, an
impairment loss 18 recogmzed equal to the difference between the mvestments’ carrying amount and their fair value Certain
majonty-owned entities are also accounted for using the equity method where the minonty shareholder or shareholders have
substantive participating nghts All sigmificant intercompany profits have been eliminated 1n proportion to mterests in Affiliated
companies

The accounts of certain subsidiaries with a fiscal year end on or after December 31, but prior to the Parent’s fiscal year end of March
31, are consehdated on the basis of the subsidianes’ respective fiscal year end There were no significant events that occurred duning
the intervening period that would require adjustment to or disclosure n the accompanying consolidated financial statements in the
years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013

Foreign Currency Translanon-—

The assets and habilities of foreign subsidiaries and Affiliated compan:es are translated into Japanese yen at the respective year-end
exchange rates All income and expense accounts are translated at average rates of exchange The resulting translation adjustments
are included i accurmuiated other comprehensive income (loss) (“AOCI") Monetary assets and habihties denominated 10 a foreign
currency are translated 1nio Japanese yen at year-end exchange rates with the resulting exchange gamns or losses recognized in “Other
income—-net” 1 the consolidated statements of Income

Cash Equivalents—

Cash equivalents are defined as short term with orginal matunties of three months or less, highly liquid investments, mcluding
short-term time deposits, cornmercial paper, debt secunties and certificates of deposit which are readily convertible into cash and
have no significant risk of changes in value

Investments 1n Marketable and Nonmarketable Securiies—

Investments 1n debt and marketable equity securities are classified as either trading secunues or available-for-sale secunties
according to the purpose of investment Trading securities are accounted for at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in
eamings Available-for-sale securities are accounted for at fair value with unrealized gams and losses excluded from camings and
reported, net of tax, in AOCI unti} realized

Investments 1n nonmarketable secunties include investments in unaffiliated customers, suppliers and certain financial institutions, as
well as investments 1n preferred stock, and are carried at cost (“cost method investments™) as their fair value 1s not readily
determinable Investments in nonmarketable secunties are included m “Other Investments™ 1n the consohdated balance sheets

The appropriateness of the classification 15 reassessed at each balance sheet date The cost of marketable securities sold 1s determined
based on the moving-average cost method

The Company reviews mvestments 1n marketable and nonmarketable securities for impairment on a regular basis te determine 1f the
fair value of any individual mvestment has declined below its cost and 1f such decline 1s other-than-temporary

For mmvestments 1n marketable equuty securitres classified as available-for-sale securities, other-than-temporary declines in fair value
are evaluated based on various factors, such as the length of the time and the extent to which the market value 1s less than cost, the
financial condition and near-term prospects of the 1ssuer, and the Company’s intent and ability to retain the investment for a penod of
time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery it market value If the decline m fair value 15 determined to be
other-than-temporary, the cost basis of the investment 15 written down to fair value The resulting imparment loss 15 included m
earnings 1n the period m which the decline was deemed to be other-than-temporary

For investments in debt securities classified as available-for-sale secunties, an other-than-temporary impairment 15 recognized 1n
earnings equal to the entire difference between the fair value and the amortized cost when the far value has declned below cost and
(1) the Company has the intent to sell the security, (2) 1t 18 more-likely-than-not that the Company wall be required to sell the security
before recovery, or (3) the Company does not expect to recover its entire amortized cost basis of the security However, 1f the
Company does not wmtend to sell the secunty and 1t 1s not more-iikely-than-not that it will be required to sell the securnity before
recovery, but the secunty 1s considered to have suffered a credit loss, the impaument charge will be separated into the credit loss
component, which 15 recorded m earmings, and the remainder of the impairment charge, which 1s recorded 1n other comprehensive
mcome
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For mmvestments in nonmarketable equity securities, if there are 1dentified events or circumstances that have a significant adverse
effect on the faur value of an investment, the fair value 1s presumed to have declined Ifsuch dechine 15 considered to be
other-than-temporary, the investment 1s written down to 1ts estimated fair value The resulting impairment loss 1s ncluded in
earnings in the perniod tn which the dechine was deemed to be other-than-temporary

Aliowance for Doubtfu) Receivables—

An allowance for doubtful recervables 1s an estimate of losses from uncollectible recervables and 1s established based upon primanly
the Company’s past credit loss expenence and an evaluation of the probabuiity of future defaults When 1t 1s probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all amounts according to the contractual terms of the receivables agreement, the recervables are
considered to be impaired The impairment amount of such recervables 1s measured based on the present value of expecied future
cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective 1nterest rate or, alternatively, at the observable market price of the receivable or the fair
value of the underlymg collateral

Inventories—
Inventones, which mainly consist of commodities and matenals, are stated at the lower of cost (based, principally, on the
average-cost method or the specificaidentificanon method) or market (based on current replacement cost)

Investments in Real Estate Subjeet to Jont Control—
Investments 1n real estate that are subject to jownt control by the owners are accounted for usmg equity method Such mvestments are
presented as "Joint investments 1n real estate” in the consolidated balance sheets

Property and Equipment—

Property and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation of property and equipment other than minera} nghts 1s calculated pnncipally
using the straight-line method for buwildings and structures, the straight-Ime or declimng-balance method for machinery and
equipment, and the straight-line method for areraft and vessels mamly over the following estimated useful hives

Buildings and structures 5 to 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 40 years
Airrcraft and vessels }3 10 25 years

Mineral rights are amortized using the umt-of-production method based on the proven or probable reserves Leaschold
improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful life of the improvement or the term of the underlying lease Sigmificant
renewals and additions are capitalized at cost Maintenance repairs, minor renewals and betterments are charged to earnings as
mcurred

Leases—

The Company leases as a lessor properties under arrangements which are classified as direct financing leases and operating leases
For direct financing leases, uneamed income s amortized to ncome over the lease term at a constant penodicrate of return on the net
investment Operating lease income 1s recogmzed over the term of underlymg leases on a straight-line basis

The Company 1s also a lessee of vanous assets For capital leases, the Company measures capital lease assets and capital lease
obhigahions mihally at the amount equal to the present value af the beginning of the lease term of mimmum lease payments Rental
expenses under operating leases are recogrized over the respective lease terms using the straight-line method

Imparment of Long-lived Assets—

The Company reviews long-iived assets for impairment whenever events or changes 1 circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverabihity of assets to be held and used 15 measured by a companson of the carrymg
amount of an asset to the esmated undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds 1ts estimated discounted future cash flows, an impairment loss 1s recogmzed in the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets These impatrment losses are included in “Loss on property and
equipment—net” m the accompanying consolidated statements of income A long-lived asset to be disposed of by sale 1s reported at
the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell and 1s no longer depreciated A long-lived asset to be disposed of other
than by sale 1s considered as held and used until disposed of

Business Combinations—
Business combmations are accounted for by the acquisition method The Company separately recognizes and reports acquired
mtangible assets as goodwall or intangible assets

Goodwll and Other Intangible Assets—
Goodwll and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment at least annually and when
an event occurs or circumstances change such that 1t 1s more likely than not that ympairment may exist

The Company tests goodwiil for impaurment by first comparing the carrying value of net assets to the fair value of the related
operauons If the fair value 15 determmed to be less than carrying value, a second step 1s performed 1o compute the amount of the
impairment. In this process, a fair value for goodwll 1s estmated based, in part, on the farr value of the operations, and 15 compared
to its carrying value The shortfall of the fair value below carrying value represents the amount of the impairment

-20-




Intangible assets with indefimte useful lives mainly consist of trade names, nghts 1o use land and customer relationships The
Company tests these intangible assets for impairment by comparing their carrying value to current projecttons of discounted cash
flows attnbutable to the trade names, rights to use land and cusiomer relationships Any excess carrying value over the amount of
discounted cash flows represents the amount of the impairment

Intangible assets with defimite useful lives mainly consist of software, manufacturing, sales and service licenses and trademarks,
ntellectual properties related to feasibihity studies and customer relationships These assets are amortized over their respective
estimated useful Lives using the straight-line method

01! and Gas Exploration and Development—

O1l and gas exploration and development costs are accounted for using the successful efforts method of accounting The costs of
acquirmg properties, dnlling and equipping exploratory wells, development wells and related plant and equiprnent are capitalized
and amortized using the unit-of-production method Should the efforts to produce commercial reserves be determined unsuccessful,
the exploratory well costs are charged to expense Other exploranon costs such as geological and geophysical costs are expensed as
mcurred Proved properties are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes i circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable If the proved properties are determined to be impaired, an impairment loss 1s recogmzed based on the
fair value Unproved properties are assessed at feast annually for impairment with any impairment charged to expense

Mimng Operations— :
Minng exploration costs are charged to expense as mncurred until the miming project has been established as commercially viable by !
a final feasibility study Once established as commereially viable, costs are capitalized as mineral nghts and are amortized using the
umt-of-production method based on the proven and probable reserves

The stnpping costs incurred duning the production phase of a mine are accounted for as variable preduction costs and are mcluded
the costs of the mventory produced dunng the period that the stnpping costs are incurred

Employee Benefit Plans—

The Company has defined benefit pension plans, defined contnbution pension plans and unfunded severance indemnity plans The
costs of defined benefit pension plans and unfunded severance indemnity plans are accrued based on amounts determined using
actuarial methods

The Company amortizes the prior service cost principally over the average remayming service period of employees expected to
receive related benefils

The Company amortizes the net actuanal loss principally over the average remaming service peniod of aclive employees expected to
receive benefits

Asset Retirement Obligations—

The Company records the fair value of a liabihity for an asset retsirement obligation 1n the period in which 1t 15 incurred 1n case the faur
value 1s reasonably estimable When a liabihity 1s imtially recorded, the Company capitalizes the related costs by increasing the
carrying amount of the long-lived asset. Over tume, the liability 1s accreted to 1ts present value each peniod and the capitalized cost 1s
depreciated over the useful hife of the related long-hived assets

Stock-based Compensation—

Stock-based compensation cost ts measured ai the grant date, based on the estumated fair value of stock-based awards made to
directors other than outside directors, executive officers and employees, and 1s recognized on a strajghi-line basis over the
employee’s requisite service period The far values of stock options are esumated using the Black-Scholes option pneing model

Revenue Recognition—
The Company recognizes revenues when there 15 persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the goods have been dehivered or the
services have been rendered to the customer, the sales price 1s fixed or determinable, and collectability 18 reasonably assured

The Company manufactures a wide vanety of products, such as metals, machmery, chemicals and general consumer merchandise
and develops natural resources The Company also trades a wide variety of commodities and may take ownership nsk of such
inventory or merely facilitate the Company’s customer’s purchase and sale of commodities and other products, where 1t earns a
commission for this service

The Company acts as a pnincipal or agent 1 11s activities for earning revenues The Company presents revenue transactions with
corresponding cost of revenues on a gross basis as “Revenues from trading, manufacturing and other activiies™ 1n the conselidated
statements of ncome for transactions traded as a pnmary obligor n manufacturing, processing and service rendering for sales with
general mnventory nsk before cusiomer orders For transactions traded as agent, the revenues are presented as “Trading margins and
commissions on trading transactions™ in the consohdated statements of Income on a net basis

The Company acts as a principal seller in manufacturing and other activities I also acts as a principal in various trading transactions
where the Company carmes commodity mventory and generates a profit or loss on the spread between bid and ask prices for
commodities Delivery in these transactions 1s considered to have occurred at the pomnt 1n time when the delivery conditions as
agreed to by customers have been met This 1s generally when the goods have been delivered to and accepted by the customer, title to
the goods has been transferred, or the implementation testing has been duly completed
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The Company also enters 1nto long-1erm construction contracts as part of its manufacturing business Revenues from long-term
construction projects are accounted for using the percentage-of-completion method n cases where the estunated costs to complete
and extent of progress toward completion of long-term contracts are reasonably dependable and there 1s an enforceable agreement
between the parties who can fulfill the obligations, otherwise, the completed contract method 1s used

The Company also performs other activities, which consist of services and rental or leasing activies Service-related activities
include performance of various services such as financial and logistics services, information and commumications, technical support
and other service-related activiies The Company 15 engaged 1n certain rental activities or leasing of properties, including office
buwldings, awrcraft and other industrial assets Revenues from service-related activities are recogmized when the contracted services
have been rendered to third-party customers pursuant to the agreement. For revenues from rental or leasing activitzes, please refer to
the accounting policy of leases descrnibed before

The Company acts as an agent and records revenues eamed from margmms and commussions related to vartous trading transactions 1n
which it acts as an agent Through these trading activities, the Company facilitates its customers’ purchases and sales of commodities
and other products and eamns a commyssion for this service The trading margins and commssions are recoghized when all other
revenue recognition critena have been met

Advertising Costs—
Advertising costs are charged to expense when mcurred Advertising costs for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were
¥14,153 mullion, ¥13,762 mihon and ¥14,420 milhon (3153 mithion), respectively

Research and Development Costs—
Research and development costs are charged to expense when mncurred Research and development costs for the years ended March
31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were ¥4,542 mlhon, ¥4,980 mullion and ¥5,367 million (357 milhon), respectively

Income Taxes—

The provision for mcome taxes 1s computed based on “Income before icome taxes and equity in earmings of Affiliated companies
and other” n the accompanying consolidated statements of mncome The tax effects of temporary d:fferences between the financial
statement and income tax bases of assets and habihities, as well as operating loss carryforwards, are recognized using enacted tax
rates applicable to the penods i whuch the differences are expected to affect taxable mncome A valuation allowance 1s provided for
any portion of the deferred tax assets where 1t 15 considered more-likely-than-not that they will not be reahzed

The Company recognizes the financial statement effects of tax positions when they are more-likely-than-not, based on the technicat
merits, that the tax posihons will be sustamned upon examination by the tax authorities Benefits from tax positions that meet the
more-hkely-than-not recognition threshold are measured at the largest amount of benefit that 15 greater than 50% likely of being
realized upon settlement Interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits are included 1n 1ncome taxes m the
consolidated statements of income

The Parent and 1ts wholly owned domestic subsidianes file a consolidated corporate income tax return as a consolidation group

Denvatives—

The Company utihzes dertvative instruments primanly to manage interest rate nsks, to reduce exposure to movements i foreign
exchange rates, and to hedge the commodity price risk of vanoens inventory and trading commtments All derivative instruments are
reported 1n the balance sheet at fair value as assets or habilities

Generally, on the date on which the denvative contract is executed, the Company designates such denvative as either a fair value
hedge or a cash flow hedge to the extent that hedging criteria are met.

Fair Value Hedge—

Denvative instruments designated as fair value hedges primanty consist of interest rate swaps used to convert fixed-rate assets or
debt obligations to floaung-rate assets or debt Changes n fair values of hedging derivative instruments are recogmzed 1n earnings,
offset against the changes 1n the fair value of the related assets, habilities and firm commitment, and are included in “Other
mcome—net

Cash Flow Hedge—

Denvauve instruments designated as cash flow hedges include interest rate swaps to convert floating-rate habilhities to fixed-rate
lLiabilities, and forward exchange contracts to eliminate variability 1n functional-currency-equivalent cash flows on forecasted
foreign-currency-denommnated sales transactions Additionally, commodity swaps and futures contracts which qualify as cash
flow hedges, are utihzad to hedge the fluctuation of commodity price nisk. Changes m the fawr values of derivatives that are
designated as cash flow hedges are deferred and recorded as a component of AOCI Denvative unrealized gawns and losses
included m AOC] are reclassified into earnings at the time that the associated hedged transactions affect the income statement

Hedge of the Net Investment in Foreign Operations—

The Company uses foreign exchange contracts and nondenivative financial instruments such as foreign-currency-denomnated
debt 1n order to reduce the foreign currency exposure in the net investment 1n a foreign operation Changes i fair values of
hedging instruments are included in foreign currency translation adjustments within AQCI
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Denvative Instruments Used for Other than Hedging Activies—

The Company enters into derivative instruments as part of its brokerage services 1n commodity futures markets and its trading
activittes The Company clearly disinguishes denvatives used for brokerage services and trading activities from derivatives used
for nsk management purposes As part of its internal control polhicies, the Company has set strict limits on the positions which can
be taken n order to manage potential losses for these derivative transactions, and penodically monitors the open positions for
compliance

Changes 1n fair value of denrvatives not designated as hedging instruments and held or 1ssued for trading purposes are recorded
eamings The Company offsets the fair value amounts recognized for cash collateral against the fair value of amounts recognized fer
denvative instruments that are executed with the same counterparty under the same master netting arrangement

Use of Esumates n the Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements—

The preparation of consohidated financial statements in conformity with U S GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reportied therem Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actal results could
differ from those estimates Significant estimates underlying the accompanying consolidated financal statements include the
allowance for doubtful accounts, valuation of investments, valuation of long-lived assets, pension, asset retirernent obhigations and
uncertain 1ax positions

Eamtngs per Share (“EPS”)}—

Basic EPS 1s computed by dividing net income attributable to Mitsubishy Corporatton by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during each year Diluted EPS 1s computed by using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
adjusted to include the potentially dilutive effect of stock options and convertible bonds that were outstanding durnng the year

Guarantees—
The Company recognzes, at the inception of a guarantee, a hability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken for the guarantee

Farr Value Measurements—
Certain assets and hiabilities are required to be recorded at fairr value The estimated fair values of those assets and habilities have

been determuned using market information and valuation methodologies There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure
fair value

Level 1-—Quoted prices for 1dentical assets and Liabilities 1 active markets,

Level 2—Quoted prices for sumlar assets and hiabilies in acuve markets, quoted prices for identical assets or habilites i markets
that are not active, and model-denved valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable 1n active
markets, and

Level 3—Valuation derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are
unobservable

Fair Value Option—
The Company has not adopted the option to measure certam financial assets and financial hatnhties at far value which were not
required to be measured at fair value

Certain Physical Commodaty Swap Transactions Related to Precious Metals—

The Company accounted for certar physical commodity swap transactions related to precious metals as product financings from the
year ended March 31, 2013 Pnor to March 31, 2013, the Company accounted for these transactions as sales and purchases of
physical commodities instead of product finarcings As the result, inventones and other current habilities increased by ¥69,113
mallion ($735 mullion), respecuvely for the year ended March 31, 2013

The Company did not restate the balances 1n connection with such transactions n the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2012, as the amounts did not matenally affect the Company's consohdated financial statements

Subsequent Events—
The Company assesses the necessity of accounting for and disclosures of evenis that occur afier the consohidated balance sheet date
but before the consolidated financial statements are 1ssued

New Accounting Standards—
Recently adopted accounting pronouncements

Effecuve Apnl 1, 2012, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No 2011-08, “Testing Goodwl} for
mpairment ” ASU No 2011-08 provides entiies wath the option of performing a quahtative assessment before performung the
quantitative goodwil] imparment test. Only 1f an entity determines in the qualitative assessment that it 15 more likely than not that the
fair value of the reporting unit s less than the carrying amount mcluding goodw:ll, an entity 1s required to perform the two-step
quantitative goodwill impairment test ASU No 2011-08 does not change how goodwill 15 calculated or assigned to reporting units,
nor does it revise the requirement to test goodwill at least annvally for impairment The Company did not elect the option of
performing a qualitauve assessment and thus the adoption of ASU No 201108 d1d not have impact on the Company's consolidated
financial position and results of operations in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013
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Recent accounting pronouncements not yet adopted

In December 2011, Financial Aceounting Standards Board (the "FASB") 1ssued ASU No 2011-10, “Property, Plant, and
Equipment-Derecognition of m-substance Real Estate a Scope Clanfication ” Under the ASU No 2011-10, the reportg entity
should apply the gmdance in ASC Subtopic 360-20 “Property, Plant, and Equipment - Real Estate Sales™ to determine whether it
should derecogmze the m-substance real estate when the reporting entity ceases to have a controliing financial interest i the
subsidiary that 1s in-substance real estate as a result of a defanlt on the subs:diary’s nonrecourse debt ASU No 2011-10 does not
revise ASC Subtopic 360-20 itself but clanfies the scope it covers ASU No 2011-101s effective for fiscal years, and intenim penods
within those years, beginning on or after June 15,2012 and 1s required to be adopted prospectively by the Company no later than the
first quarter beginning April 1, 2013 The adoption of ASU No 2011-10 15 not expected 1o matenally impact the Company’s
consolrdated financial position or results of operations

In July 2012, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2012-02, “Testing Indefimte-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment ” ASU No 2012-02
provides entities with the option of performing a qualitative assessment before performing the quantitative indefinite-lived mtangible
assets imparment test Only if an entity determines 1n the qualitative assessment that it 1s more likely than not that the fair value of
the indefinite-lived mtangable assets 1s less than the carrying amount, an entity 18 required to perform the quantitative mndefinute-lived
intangible assets impairment test ASU No 2012-02 does not change how indefinite-hived intangible assets are calculated, nor does 1t
revise the requirement to test mdefinite-lived intangible assets at least annually for impaimment ASU No 2012-02 15 effective for
annual and interim unparrment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012 and 15 required to be adopted by
the Company no later than the first quarter beginming Apnl I, 2013 The Company will not elect the option of performmng a
qualitative assessment

In February 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2013-04, “Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liabtlity Arrangements for
Which the Total Amount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporimg Date ™ ASU No 2013-04 provides entities with the guwdance for
the recognihon, measurement, and disclosare of obligations resulting from jomt and several liabilities arrangements for which the
total amount of the obligation 1s fixed at the reporting date ASU No 2013-04 15 effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those years, begmning after December 15, 2013 The Company 15 currently evaluating ASU No 2013-04 to determine 1ts impact on
the Company's consehidated financral position and results of operations

In March 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2013-05, “Parent's Accounting for the Curmnulative Translation Adjustment upon
Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Entity * ASU
No 2013-05 provides entines with guidance for the treatment of the cumulative translation adjustment upon derecognion ASU
No 2013-05 15 effective prospectvely for fiscal years, and nterim periods within those years, beginming afier December 15, 2013
The Company 1s currently evaluating ASU No 2013-05 to determine 1ts impact on the Company's consolidated financial position and
results of operations

In June 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 20t3-08, “Amendments to the Scope, Measurement, and Disclosure Reguirements * ASU
No 2013-08 changes the approach to the mvestment company assessment 1n ASC Topic 946, clanfies the charactenistics of an
investment company, and provides comprehensive puidance for assessing whether an enuty 1s an mvestment company ASU No
2(13-08 also amends the measurement cnitena for noncontrolling ownershup interests m other wmvestment compames and provides
addittonal disclosure requirements ASU No 2013-08 1s effective for fiscal years, and mtenm pertods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2013 The Company 1s currently evaluating ASU No 2013-08 to determine 1ts impact on the
Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations

-24-




3 RETROSPECTIVE ADJUSTMENT OF PRIOR YEAR'S CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company entered 1nto a shareholders' agreement, concerning the management of Anglo
Amencan Sur, S A ("Anglo Sur”, a Chilean copper mmng and smelting company), with Anglo Amencan plc and the other
shareholders The Company had held an equity interest in Anglo Sur since the year ended March 31, 2012, and had previpusly
applied the cost method for the investment

With the execution of the shareholders' agreement, the Company 1s able to exert significant influence over Anglo Sur, and thus for
the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company accounts for 115 mvestment in Anglo Sur under the equity method

Accordingly, the Company has retrospectively adjusted 1ts investment in Anglo Sur and the retaned earnmgs of the Company The
effect of the retrospective adjustment on the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2012 1s as
follows

Millons of Yen

2012
As Ongmally  As Adjusted
Reported
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Investments 1n and advances to Affiliated companies ¥1,660,383 ¥2,097,976
Other investments 1,854,619 1,414,584
Qther assets 178,243 180,492
Noncurrent habilities-Deferred income taxes 197,734 199,051
Retammed earnings-Unappropriated 3,302,093 3,300,588
Net unreahized losses on denvatves (8,421) (8,433)
Defined benefit pension plans (78,318) (78,303)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (426,442) {426,450)
Consohdated Statements of Income
Dividend income 115,498 111,236
Deferred income taxes (38,627) (37,779
Equity 1n earnings of Affiliated companies and other 190,509 192,418
Net income 480,301 478,796
Net mcome atiributable to Musubushy Corporation 453,849 452,344
Yen
2012
As Ongmally  As Adjusted
Reported
Earnings per share
Net income attributable to Mitsubisht Corporation per share
Basic ¥27583 ¥274 9]
Diluted 27522 27430
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4 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Significant business combmanons for the year ended March 31, 2012 and recogmzed adjustments for the vear ended March 31, 2013
were as follows

Acquisition of Chuo Kagaku Co . Ltd

On October 26, 2011 (the acqmsttion date), the Company acquired through a tender offer an additional 46 25% of votng rights 1n
Chuo Kagaku Co, Ltd (“Chuo Kagaku”) whose business mvolves the manufacture and sale of plastic food packaging products

These nghts, added to 1ts previously held equity interest, raised the Company’s ownership of Chuo Kagaku to 60 55% of voting
nghts As aresult, Chuo Kagaku became a subsidiary of the Company as the Company obtamed contro} of Chuo Kagaku The

acquisiion of Chuo Kagaku 15 expected to expand the earnings power of the Company 1 the plastics business and its scope of
business m China

The following table summarzes the estimated farr values of consideration paid, previously heid equity interest and noncontrolling
mnterest, as well as the agsets acquired and habilities assumed at the date of the acquisition

Miflions of Yen

2012
Fair value of consideration paid ¥3,597
Fair value of previously held equity interest 1,115
Fair value of noncontrolling interest 3,064
Total ¥7,776
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilihes assumed
Current assets ¥27.721
Investments and noncurrent recervables 1,712
Property and equipment 17,759
Other assets 2,072
Current habilities (32,079
Noncurrent liabihties {3,500)
Net assets ¥13,685

Upon remeasuring the fair value of 1ts previously held equity interest, the Company recorded a gain of ¥75 mllion 1n “Gam on
marketable secunties and investments-net” for the year ended March 31, 2012

This business combination resulted 1n a bargawn purchase transaction because the fair value of assets acquired and hiabilities assumed
exceeded the total of the fair value of consideration paud, the fair value of previously held equuty interest, and the fair value of

noncontrolling interest by ¥5,909 million The Company has recognized the amount as a gain for the year ended March 31, 2012 and
recorded the amount 1n “Other ncome-net”

The fair value of the previously held equity mterest and noncontrolling interest in Chuo Kagaku, a listed entity, are measured at
quoted market price

Pro forma results of operations for the above business combination have not been presented because the effects are not matenal to the
consohdated financial statements

The results of operations of Chuo Kagaku since the acquisition date included in the consolidated statements of income for the year
ended March 31, 2012 were as follows

Milliens of Yen
2012
Revenues ¥16,026
Net income atmbutable o Mitsubishi Corporation ¥681
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Acquisition of Crosslands Resources Lid and Oakajee Port and Rasl

On February 20, 2012 (the acquusition date), from Murchison Metals Lid, the Company acquired an addittonal 50% of interests n
Crosslands Resources Litd (“CRL”), which 1s the owner of the Jack Hills iron ore deposit, and Oakajee Port and Rail (“*OPR”) which
15 engaged 1n the associated rail and port infrastructure project in the mid-west region of Westem Ausirahia

These interests, added to 1ts previously held equity interest, rased the Company’s ownership of CRL and OPR to 100% of the

outstanding equity interests As a result, CRL and OPR were wholly owned by the Company as the Company obtamed control of
them

Following completion of the transaction, the Company will support CRL and OPR n recommencing key activities, including
finalization of feasibility stud:es and obtaming necessary approvals for vanous projects When appropnate and in due course, the
Company intends to introduce a suitably capitalized partner(s) or tnvestor(s) to take up the interests acquired through the transaction
The introduction of such partner(s) will assist funding of the projects and re-engagement with OPR Foundation Customers

As the imitial measurement for the business combination, mamiy the purchase price allocation for property and equipment, other
mtangible assets, deferred income taxes, was not completed as of the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company reported provisional
amounts for the items n the consolidated financial statements The instial measurement has been completed for the year ended March
31,2013 The followng table summanzes the final fair values of consideration paid, previousty held equity interest, as well as the
assets acquired and habilities assumed at the date of the acquisibon The measurement penod adjustments did not have a sigmificant

impact on the Company's results of operations and financial position and, therefore, the Company has not retrospectively adjusted
the consolidated financial statements

Milhions of Yen Millions of Yen

2012 2013
Fair value of consideration paid ¥27.830 ¥27,830
Fair value of previously held equity interest 23,224 27,830
Total ¥51,054 ¥55,660
Fair value of assets acquired and habilites assumed
Current assets ¥3,268 ¥2 866
Property and equipment 40,521 33,385
Other intangible assets-net 14,895 14,937
Other assets 7,129
Current habihties (3,176) {2,657)
Noncurrent habilities (9,068)
Net assets ¥46,440 ¥55,660
Goodwll 4,614
Totat ¥51,054 ¥55,660

Upon remeasuning the far value of ts previcusly held equity interest; the Company recorded a gan of ¥15,195 mithion m “Gawmn on
marketable securities and investments-net” for the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 1n total

The fair value of the previously held equily mterest are determined on a comprehensive basis, taking into account the acquisition
value and the valuation, by a third party, of assets and liabilities whach are held by CRL and OPR.

Pro forma results of operations for the above business combination have not been presented because the effects are not material to the
consolidated financial statements
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Sigmficant busmess combinations for the year ended March 31, 2013 were as follows

Acquisition of M Q TEC CORPORATION

On February 20, 2013 (the acquisition date), the Company acquired through a tender offer an additional 52 83% of voting nghts 1n
M O TEC CORPORATION (“M O TEC **) whose business mvolves lease, sales, construction, maintenance and transportation of
materials for temporary constructron

These nghts, added 1o its previously held equity interest, rased the Company’s ownership of M O TEC to 94 56% of voting nghts
As a result, M O TEC became a subsidiary of the Company as the Company obtained control of M O TEC The acquisiuon of

M O TEC s mtended to expand the earnings power 1n the structural steel, ferrous raw materials business and heavy temporary
construction busmess

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of consideration paid, previously held equity mterest and noncontrolling
mnterest, as well as the assets acquired and habilihes assumed at the date of the acquisition

Mitlions of
Millionsof Yen U S Dollars
2013 2013
Fair value of consideration paid ¥2.,580 $£27
Fair value of previously held equity interest 1,962 21
Fair value of noncontroiling interest 281 3
Total ¥4.823 $51
Farr value of assets acquired and hiabilities assumed
Current assets ¥35,892 $382
Investments and noncurrent recervabies 984 10
Property and equipment 10,487 112
Other intangible assets-net 357 4
QOther assets 13
Current habihties {28,690) (30%)
Noncurrent l:abilities (3,438) (37
Net assets ¥15,605 $166

Upon remeasuring the far value of uts previously held equaty interests, the Company recorded a gan of ¥202 rmllion (32 mullion) in
“Gain on marketable secunties and investments-net” for the vear ended March 31, 2013

This business combinations resulted 1 a bargain purchase transactions because the fair value of assets acquired and habilities
assumed exceeded the total of the farr value of consideration paid, the fair value of previously held equuty mterest, and the fair value
of noncontroiling interests by ¥10,782 mithon ($115 muillion) The Company has recognized the amount as a gain for the year ended
March 31, 2013 and recorded the amount in “Other income-net” 1n the Metals segment

The fair value of the previously held equity interest and noncontrolling interest in M O TEC, a Iisted entity, are measured at quoted
market price

Pro forma results of operations for the above business combinations have not been presented because the effects are not materal to
the consohdated financial statements
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Aequisiion of YONEKYU CORPORATION

On February 27, 2013 (the acquisiton date), the Company acquired through a tender offer an additional 44 27% of voting rights in
YONEKYU CORPORATION (“YONEKYU") whose business involves production and sale of meat, foods and beverage, and
management of restaurants, etc

These nghts, added to its previously held equity interest, raised the Company’s ownership of YONEKYU to 71 02% of voting nghts
As a result, YONEKYU became a subsidhary of the Company as the Company obtained contrel of YONEKYU The acquisition of
YONEKYU 1s expected to enhance the Company's feed and meat business

The following table summanzes the estimated fair values of consideration paid, previously held equity interest and noncontrolling
interest, as well as the assets acquired and habihities assumed at the date of the acquisition

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2013 2013

Fair value of consideration paid ¥10,670 $113
Farr value of previously held equity interest 6,447 69
Fair value of noncontrolling nterest 5,426 58
Total ¥22,543 3240
Fair value of assets acquired and habilities assumed
Current assets ¥34,076 $363
Investments and noncurrent receivables 5,902 63
Property and equipment 18,336 195
Other intangible assets 716 7
Other assets 1,396 15
Current habilities (24,550) (261
Noncurrent habihitzies (2,636) (28)
Net assets ¥33,240 $354

Upon remeasuring the fair value of its previously held equity interest, the Company recorded a gamn of ¥985 mullion ($10 mullion) in
“Gan on marketable secunties and mvestments-net” for the year ended March 31, 2013

This business combinanon resulted in a bargam purchase transaction because the farr valoe of assets acquired and habilines assumed
exceeded the total of the fair value of consideration paid, the fair value of previously held equity nterest, and the fair value of
noncontrolling interest by ¥10,697 million ($114 million) The Company has recogmized the amount as a gain for the vear ended
March 31, 2013 and recorded the amount i “Other income-net” in the Living Essentials segment

The fair value of the previously held equity interest in YONEKYU, a listed entity, 15 measured at the quoted market price The fairr

value of noncontrolling interest in YONEK YU, 1s measured at the price based on the quoted market price with an adjustment for
control premium

Pro forma results of operations for the above busmess combination have not been presented because the effects are not matenal to the
consolidated financial statements
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5 INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE AND NONMARKETABLE SECURITIES
Investments 1n marketable and nonmarketable securities at March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Milhons of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
(Short-term nvestments) 2012 2013 2013
Trading ¥9,021 ¥11,800 $126
Available-for-sale (excluding cash and cash equivalents) 10,306 15,080 160
Total ¥19,327 ¥26,880 $286
Millions of
Miilions of Yen US Dollars
(Other investments) 2012 2013 2013
Available-for-sale ¥973,879 ¥1,067,805 $11,360
Investments in Other than Debt and Marketable Equity Secunities 440,705 429716 4,571
Total ¥1,414,584 ¥1,497 521 15,90

Debt and Marketable Equity Securities—Investments mn debt and marketable equity securities are classified as erther trading
securities or available-for-sale secunties Fair values of debt and marketable equity secunttes are estimated using the valuation
methodology used to determine fair value 15 1n the "Assets and Liabilaties Measured at Fair Value on a Recurmng Basis™ section of
Note 12 Information regarding each category of secunties classified as trading and available-for-sale at March 31, 2012 and 2013

was as follows

Miliions of Yen
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2012 Cost Gans Losses Value
Secunues classified as
Trading ¥9.021
Available-for-sale
Marketable equity securtties
Domestic ¥369,584 ¥282,195 ¥(16,374) 635,405
Forcign 118,099 165,333 {1,032} 282,400
Total marketable equity secunties 487,683 447,528 (17,4086) 917,805
Debt securhes
Domestic 19,317 12 (10) 19,319
Foreign 55,325 288 (5,403) 50,210
Total debt securities 74,642 300 (5,413) 69,529
Total available-for-sale ¥562,325 ¥447.828 ¥(22.819) ¥987,334
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Millions of Yen

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealzed Farr
March 31, 2013 Cost Gans Losses Value
Securities classified as
Trading ¥11,800
Available-for-sale
Marketable equity secunties
Domestic ¥361,904 ¥357,632 ¥(7,875) 711,661
Foreign 116,662 190,216 (875) 306,003
Total marketable equity secunties 478,566 547,848 {8,750) 1,017,664
Debt secunties
Domestic 19,083 11 (3) 19,091
Foreign 52,483 124 {3,251) 49,356
Total debt securities 71,566 135 (3,254) 68,447
Total available-for-sale ¥550,132 ¥547,983 ¥(12,004) ¥1,086,111
Mithons of U S Dollars
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2013 Cost Gains Losses Value
Securnities classified as
Trading $12¢6
Available-for-sale
Marketable equity secunties
Domestic $3,850 $3,805 $(84) 7,571
Foreign 1,241 2,023 ()] 3,258
Total marketable equity secunties 5,091 5,828 (93) 10,826
Debt securities
Domestic 203 203
Foreign 558 2 (35) 525
Total debt securities 761 2 (35) 728
Total avajlable-for-sale $5,852 $5,830 $(128) $11,554

Marketable equity securities classified as available-for-sale primarily consist of domestic stocks and debt securities primarily consist

of comnmercial paper and corporate bonds, as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

The carrying amounts of debt secunities classified as available-for-sale secunties with onginal matunties of three months or less
mcluded m cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheets were ¥3,149 milhon and ¥3,226 million ($34 million) at

March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively

-31-




The carrymg values of debt securities classified as available-for-sale at March 31, 2012 and 2013, by contractual maturity, were as
follows

Mullions of Yen
2012
Due m one year or less
Domestic ¥7,097
Foreign 6,358
Total due m one year or less 13,455
Due after one year through five years
Domestic 12,182
Foreign 36,759
Total due after one year through five years 48,941
Due after five years through ten years
Doemestic 40
Foreign 7,093
Total due after five years through ten years 7,133
Total ¥69,529
Milhions of
Milions of Yen _ U S Dollars
2013 2013
Due in one year or less
Domestic ¥6,198 $66
Foreign 12,108 129
Total due 1n one year or less 18,306 195
Due after one year through five years
Domestic 12,253 130
Foreign 37,248 3596
Total due after one year through five years 49,501 526
Due afier five years through ten years
Domestic 640 7
Foreign
Total due after five years through ten years 640 7
Total ¥68,447 £728

Certamn debt secunties, such as morigage-backed secunties, are not due at a single maturity date since 1ssuers of the securities may
have the right to redeem the securitigs pnior to their contractual final matunty date Such secunties are grouped in the table above
based on their anticipated matunty date as of March 31, 2013

Proceeds and gross realized gamns and losses from sales of investments 1n debt and marketable equity securities classified as
available-for-sale securities for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Milhions of
Millions of Yen U} § Dollars
201 2012 2013 2013
Proceeds from sales ¥50,068 ¥20,831 ¥65,602 $698
Gross realized gains ¥31,774 ¥11,399 ¥38,237 $407
Gross realized losses (485) (989) {544) {6)
Net realized gamms ¥31,289 ¥10,410 ¥37,693 $401

The amounts of trading gamns and losses for the period that relate to trading securities still held at the reporting date were losses of
¥316 milhion, losses of ¥967 million and losses of ¥400 mllion ($4 mullion), for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013,
respectively
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For the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, mpaument losses of ¥12,073 mulhon, ¥3,314 million and ¥11,459 mullion
($122 mullzon), respectively, were recognized on the investments m debt and marketable equity securities classified as
available-for-sale securiues as the decline n the fair value was considered 1o be other-than-lemporary

With respect 1o the foreign debt secunnes, the Company recogmized impairment Josses in earmings as the impairments were deemed
to be atinbutable to credit losses No impairment loss has been recognized on domestic bond The following table sets forth a
12-month rell forward of such credit losses for debt secunties held as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

Millions of
Millions of Yen US Dollars
2012 2013 2013

Balance at beginning of year ¥8.310 ¥8,310 $88
Additions for debt secunties that have been previously impaired
Additions for debt secunities that have not been previously impared
Reductions due to sales or redemptions
Balance at end of year ¥8.310 ¥8.310 £88

The Company considers the investment rating, the contractual nature of the investments, the underlying collateral, the nghts to and

pronty of the investment's cash flows and the conditron of the 1ssuers, when recognizing and measuring the amount related to credit
losses

The following table sets forth gross unrealized losses and the fair value of the Company’s investments 1n debt and marketable
securties classified as available-for-sale secuniies with unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporary, aggregated

by investment category and by the length of time that individual securities have been 1 a continuous unrealized loss position, at
March 31, 2012 and 2013

Mithons of Yen

Less than 12 Months
12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
March 31,2012 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Marketable equity secunties
Domestic ¥95.070 ¥(14,155) ¥13,441 ¥(2,219)  ¥108,511  ¥(16,374)
Foreign 10,422 {835) 389 197 10,811 (1,032)
Total marketable equity secunities 105,492 (14,990) 13,830 (2,416) 119,322 (17,406)
Debt securities
Domesuc 2,990 10) 2,990 {10}
Foreign 21,890 {1,190) 20,231 (4,213) 42,121 (5,403)
Total debt secunties 21,890 (1,190) 23,221 {4,223} 45,111 (5,413)
Total ¥127,382 ¥(16,180) ¥37,051  ¥(6,639) ¥164,433  ¥(22.819)
Millions of Yen
Less than 12 Months
12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Farr Unrealized Fair Unrealized
March 31,2013 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Marketable equity securities
Domestic ¥96,216  ¥(5,202) ¥17,325 ¥(2,673) ¥113,541 ¥(7.,875)
Foreign 19,129 {792) 647 (83) 19,776 (875)
Total marketable equity secunties 115,345 (5,994) 17,972 (2,756) 133317 {8,750y
Debt secunties
Domestic 2,997 3) 2,997 3)
Foreign 8,356 (172) 39,961 (3,079) 48317 (3,251)
Total debt secuntes 8,356 (172) 42,958 (3,082) 51,314 (3,254)
Total ¥123,701  ¥(6,166) ¥60,930  ¥(5,838) ¥184,63]1  ¥(12,004)
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Mullions of U § Dollars

Less than 12 Months
12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fay  Unreahized Faur Unreahized
March 31, 2013 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Marketable equity securities
Domestic $1,024 $(56}) 184 $(28) $1,208 $(84)
Foreign 203 (8) 7 oM 210 9
Total marketable equity securities 1,227 (64) 191 29 1,418 (93)
Debt securtties
Domestic 32 32
Foreign 89 2) 425 33 514 (35)
Total debt secunties 89 (2) 457 (33) 546 (35)
Total $1,316 $(66) $648 $(62) $1,964 $(128)

Marketable equity secunties—The Company’s unrealized losses on mnvestments 1n marketable equity securibes mainly relate to
investments 1n the common stock of approximately 100 customers and supphers of the Company The unrealized losses were due to
decline 1n market prices The fair values of ndividual investments are approximately 1% to 26% less than cost. The Company
determines whether the decrease i fair value of the investments in marketable domestic and foreign stocks categonzed as

* Available-for-sale” 15 other than temporary by taking inio consideration the period and the extent that the fair value 1s less than the
book value, and the Company's ability and intent t0 hold the investnents for a reasonable period of ime sufficient for a recovery of
fairr value The Company does not consider these mmvestments to be other-than-temporanly tmparred at March 31, 2013

In connection with certamn reargamizations undertaken by 1ssuers m which the Company held shares, the Company recognized gams
or losses on the exchange of 1its investment for the acquiree's shares, based on the difference between the fair value of the acquirer’s
shares and the recorded basis of shares surrendered, amountmg to net loss of ¥487 mullion (35 mullion) for the year ended March 31,
2013

Debt secunies—The Company’s unrealized Josses on mvestments 1n debt securities, mainly relate to approximately 30 corporate
bonds and so on, with individual fair value of approximately 1% to 30% less than cost The Company asserts that 1t has no mtent to
sell, and 1t 15 not more-likely-than-not the Company will be required to sell these mvestments before recovery of farr value The
Company has 1ts ongoing review process which includes consideration of the investment rating, the contractual nature of the
mvestments, the underlying collateral, the rights to and prionty of the investment’s cash flows, and the condition of the 1ssuers The
Company currently believes that all amounts will be redeemed when due according to the contractual terms of these investments
Therefore, the Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporanly tmpaired at March 31, 2013

Investments in Other than Debt and Marketable Equity Securities— Other investments include mvestments 1n nonmarketable equity
secunties of unaffibated customers, supphers and certamn financial mstitutions, which include certain preferred stocks, amounting to
¥364,575 mllion and ¥352,991 million ($3,755 miihon) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively Other investments also mclude
guarantes deposits, investments i noncurrent ime deposits, and others, amounting to ¥76,130 milhion and ¥76,725 million ($816
million) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively

Investments 1n nonmarketable equuty securities of unaffihated companies are carried at cost (“cost method investments”™), as far
value 15 not determinable However, 1f there are 1dentified events or circurnstances that have a signuficant adverse effect on the far
value of an investment, the Company determines the fair vatue of the mvestment The fair values of nonmarketable equity secunties
are estimated using the valuation methodology used to determune fair value 15 1n the "Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value
on a Nonrecurring Basis” section of Note 12 If the carrying value of the investment exceeds the estimated fair value and the decline
1n the fair value 15 considered to be other-than-temporary, the investment 1s written down 1o 1ts esumated fair value

Cost method investments of ¥362,828 million and ¥337,085 million ($3,586 mullion) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively, were
not evaluated for impairment stnce there were no 1dentified events or circumstances that could have had a sigmificant adverse effect
on the fair values of the investments, and the Company determmned that it was not pracucable 10 estimate the fair values of the
investments

Impairrment losses recogmzed for cost method mvestments totaled ¥5,261 mullion, ¥3,188 mulhon and ¥10,367 mullion ($110
milhion) for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively
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6 INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Investments 1n and advances to Affilated companies at March 31, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the following

Milhons of
Mithons of Yen U S Dollars

2012 2013 2013
Investments i Affiliated compames ¥1,988,236 ¥2.425 361 $25.802
Advances 109,740 128,800 1,370
Total ¥2,097,976  ¥2,554,161 $27,172

Affiliated compames include, among others, LAWSON, INC (“LAWSON,” 32 49%), Japan Australia LNG (MIMI) Pty, Ltd

(50 00%), Ml Beraw B V (“MI Berau,” 56 00%), Hokuetsu Kishu Paper Co , Ltd (25 15%), SPDC Ltd (30 39%), Mozat SAR L
(25 00%), ENCORE ENERGY PTE LTD {39 40%), Chiyoda Corporation (33 56%), Mitsubishi UFJ Lease & Finance Company
Lid (20 00%), Coal & Allied Industries Ltrmited (20 00%), Cutbank Ridge Partnership {40 00%%), Compama Minera del Pacifico S A
(25 00%), Tron Ore Company of Canada (26 18%}) , Anglo Amernican Sur S A (20 44%), and Sulawesi LNG Development

Ltd (*Sulawes1 LNG Development,” 75 00%)

The Company holds a 56% ownership interest i M1 Beran, a Netherlands corporation MI Berau 1s a joint venture, participating in
the Tangguh LNG Project 1n Indonesia, which was established with INPEX CORPORATION (“INPEX™), a minority sharcholder
holding a 44% ownership mnterest Under the joint venture agreement with INPEX, sigmificant decisions regarding MI Berau’s
OPErahions Tequire unammous consent by the Company and INPEX The nghts given to INPEX m the joint venture agreement are
considered substantive participating nghts, and control over the operations or assets of M1 Berau does not rest wath the Company
Accordingly, the Company accounts for its mnvestment 1n MI Berau using the equity method

The Company holds a 75% ownershup mnterest in Sulawest LNG Development, a UK corporation Sulawess LNG Development s a
holding company, investing 1n the Donggr Senoro LNG Project in Indonesia, which was established wath Korea Gas Corporation
(“KOGAS”), a minonty shareholder holding a 25% ownership interest Under the shareholder's agreement with KOGAS, significant
decisions regarding Sulawes: LNG Development’s operations require unammous consent by the Company and KOGAS The nights
gtven to KOGAS i the shareholder's agreement are considered substantive parhcipaung nghts, and control over the operations or
assets of Sulawes) LNG Development does not rest with the Company Accordingly, the Company accounts for its mvestment m
Sulawes) LNG Development using the equity method

The Affiliated companzes operate mainly in the manufacturing, resource development and service indusiries, and sigmficantly
participate in the Company’s operating transactions as either purchasers or suppliers They principally operate i Japan, Asia,
Oceania, Europe, North Amernca, and Latin Amenca

The difference berween the canrying value of the investments in Affihated companies and the Company's equity i the underiying net
assets of such Affilvated companies was ¥561,685 million and ¥634,284 million ($6,748 nullion) at March 31, 2012 and 2013,
respectively The amoumts represent the difference between the cost of the investments and the carrying amount of the underlying net
assets of the Affiliated compames at the ime of mmitial and subsequent mvestments and were allocated to the identifiable assets and
habilities The unallocated residual amounts were recogruzed as equity method goodwill The amounts allocated to the entifiable
assets and lrabihues of the Affiltated companies are generally attributed to property and equipment which consist pnmanly of
mning nghts and are subject to depreciatson
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Investments in Affiliated companmies mcluded investments in marketable equity secunities with carrying amounts 0f¥399,647 milhion
and ¥407,093 milhon ($4.331 milhien) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectvely Corresponding aggregate quoted market values
(Level 1 at the fair value measurement) were ¥458,331 million and ¥541,536 mullion ($5,761 mulhon), respectively Included 1n such
amounts was the investrnent in LAWSON of ¥142,394 milbion and ¥147,425 million ($1,568 mullion} with quoted market values of
¥168,800 mlhion and ¥234,895 milhon ($2,499 million) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively

Summarized financial mformation with respect to the Affiliated companies accounted for using the equity method as of and for the
years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars

2012 2013 2013
Current assets ¥6,705,818 ¥7,066,227 $75173
Property and equipment—net 4,264,599 5,136,327 54,642
Other assets 2,230,066 2,610,868 27,775
Total assets ¥13,200,483 ¥14,813,422 $157,590
Current habihiies ¥5,052.977 ¥5,344,164 $56,853
Noncurrent habihities 3,395,550 3,860,754 41,072
Affiliated companies’ shareholders’ equity 4,607,060 5,481,217 58,311
Noncontrolling interest 144,896 127,287 1,354
Total habilities and equity ¥13,200,483 ¥14,813,422 £157,590
Mailions of
Millhions of Yen 1S Dolars

2011 2012 2013 2013
Revenues ¥6,930,557 ¥7,032,248 ¥7,005,842 $74,530
Gross profit ¥2,101,288 ¥2,154,118 ¥2,085,170 $22,183
Net income attrnibutable to Affilhated companies ¥588.380 ¥651,296 ¥596,915 $6,350

The Companies’ revenues and purchases from the Affiliated companies for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were as
follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Revenues ¥362,117 ¥280,770 ¥266,017 $2,830
Purchases 560,171 532,399 742,117 7,895

Dividends recerved from the Affiliated companies for the years ended March 31, 2081, 2012 and 2013 were ¥147,023 million,

¥144,141 mllion and ¥134,616 million ($1,432 muthon), respectively

In connection with certain business combinations and reorganizations undertaken by the Company’s Affiliated companies, the
Company recognized exchange gans of ¥35,444 million for the years ended March 31, 2011 The gains were the result of the
difference between the carrying amount and farr value of the shares exchanged The gans are recorded 1n “Gain on marketable
secunties and investments—anet” in the consolidated statements of income
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7 ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES

The Company conducts vartous transactions where it extends credit to its customers 1n the form of trade credit, including accounts
recervable, advance payments and financings The Company 1s exposed to credit nisk from losses ansing from the detersoration 1n the
credit or bankruptcy of its customers

The Company engages in transactions with customers 1 varnious businesses and industnes However, the Company, regardless of the
type of business and industry, evaluates the nature and charactenstics of the credit risk using a consistent method Regardless of the
business or industry, the customers’ financial position 15 faciored o the calenlanon The Company does not manage s crednt nsk
using vanous categories of credit nsk, based on the business or industry of the customer, because the Company views credit nsk as a
lower nsk than market and foreign currency nsks

Therefore, the Company manages credit nsk and evaluates the necessity of its allowance for credit losses based on a smgle in-house
policy

However, the Company manages credit risk for consumers separately from corporate customers because the Company 15 not able to
obtamn information of consumers and there are limitations in evaluating the consumer’s financial condition Receivables from
consumers are primanly loans n the automobile sales finance business

Short-term or long-term receivables are contractual nghts to receive money When 1t 15 probable that, based on current conditions,
the Company wll not be able to collect all amounts, including amounts with interest added according to the contractual terms of the
recervables agreement, the receivables are considered to be impaired receivables

The Company does not consider receivables that are past due as an impaired recervable if the Company expects to collect all amounts
due, mehuding nterest accrued, during the penod the receivable 1s past due In pninciple the Company recognizes interest mcome on
impaired receivables on a cash basis Interest income on impaired receivables recognized in the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013 was not matenal

The Company determines an appropriate amount of allowance for financing receivables that are pasi the due date based on terms of'
the contract, and the receivables are charged-off at uncollectible amount when the Company’s nghts to collect are lost as a result of a
legal hquidation of its customer

The credit risk management pelicy and the accounting policy for the allowance for credit losses for corporate customers and
consumers are described in the following paragraphs

Corporate customers—

The Company establishes credit and transaction lrmits for each corporate customer and applies an internal rating system The intemal
rating system 15 determined based on the corporate customers’ financial information, credit ratings from applicable agencies and
other credit indicators These mternal ratings are updated once a year

The Company evaluates recervables from corporate customers for inpairment based on changes in the internal ratings and the
financial condition of corporate customers

The Company deterrmines an allowance for credit Josses to be recorded for imparred recervables based upon factors surrounding the
coliection history, past credst Joss expenence, credit ratings from applicable agencies and other information For the valuation of
long-term recervables, the Company uses the discounted cash flow method based on assumptions such as an estimate of the future
repayment plan and the discount rates, or evaluates based on the observable market price of the receivable or the fair value of the
underlying collateral The Company also collectively evaluates recervables which are not considered to be imparred receivables and
deternmunes an amount of allowance for credit losses based on the past credit loss rate and the probability of future default

Consumers—

The Company performs ongoing credit valuations of consumers and establishes credit limits based upon the length of the current
credit-worthiness using the consumers” payment history The Company evaluates recervables with consumers for impairment based
on any delay 11 collection The Company evaluates an allowance for credit losses to be recorded for impaired receivables with
consumers based upon the length of the period past due, the collection status and other informat:on The Company also collectively
evaluaies consumer receivables which are not considered impaired receivables and determanes an amount of allowance for crednt
losses based on the past credit loss rate
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Imparired recervables—

Impaired recervables and the related allowance for credit losses at March 31, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the followng

Millions of
Millions of Yen U § Dollars
2012 2013 2013

Recorded mnvestment

Corporate customers ¥50,725 ¥97,652 51,039

Consumers 7,910 8,516 S0

Total ¥58,635 ¥106,168 $1,129
Related allowance

Corporate customers ¥31,106 ¥34,096 $363

Consumers 3,705 4,145 44

Total ¥34.811 ¥38,241 $407

The average recorded investments in the imparred receivables from corporate customers and consumers for the quarter ended March
31, 2011 were ¥54,973 mullion and ¥12,266 mullion, respectively

The average recorded investments 1n the impatred recervables from corporate customers and consumers for the year ended March 31,
2012 were ¥53,155 mullion and ¥7,287 mullion, respecuively

The average recorded investments in the impaired receivables from corporate customers and consumers for the year ended March 31,
2013 were ¥66,081 milhon ($703 mullion) and ¥7,852 mullion ($84 million), respectively

The allowance for credit losses related to financing receivables—

Financing recervables include loans and noncurrent accounts receivable—trade that have the charactenstics of financings, and do not
mclude the receivables without the charactensucs of financings such as current accounts receivable—trade

Financing receivables are mainly included in “Loans and other receivables™ and “Noncurrent notes, loans and accounts
receivable—trade™ line items 1n the consohdated balance sheets
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The following table presents the activity of the allowance for credit 1osses related to financing receivables, the balance of the
allowance for credit losses related to financing recervables and the balance of financing recervables as of and for the quarter ended

March 31, 2011

Balance at Yanuary 1, 2011
Provision for credit losses
Charge-offs

Other*

Balance at end of year

Ending balance of allowance for credit losses
Collective impairment allowance

(higher credit quality financing receivables)
Individual impairment allowance**

(lower credit quality firancing recervables)

Ending balance of financing recervables
Higher ecrednt quality recervables
Lower credit quality recesvables

Total

Mallions of Yen
2011
Corporate
customers Consumers
¥27,266 ¥6,395
1,429 387
(2,675} (284)
4,373 388
¥30,393 ¥6,886
2,005 2,978
28,388 3,908

¥593,702 ¥292,645

41,304 7,392

¥640,006 ¥300,037

* “Other” pnnaipally mcludes allowances that were recorded on trade recervables where the trade receivables have been modified
during the quarter and are now classified as financing recervabies as of March 31,2011 Other aiso includes the effect of changes in

foreign currency exchange rates

** Finance receivables are tndividually evaluated for impairment and the related allowance 1s included 1n 1mpaired receivables

The following table presents the activity of the allowance for credit losses reiated to financing receivables, the balance of the
allowance for credit losses related to financing recervables and the balance of financing recetvables as of and for the year ended

March 31, 2012

Milltons of Yen

Balance at beginning of year
Provision for credit losses
Charge-offs

Other*

Balance at end of year

Ending balance of allowance for credit losses
Collective impatrment allowance

(hgher credit quality financing receivables)
Individua) impairment allowance**

(lower credit quality financing receivables)

Ending balance of financing receivables
Higher credit quality receivables
Lower credit quality receivables

Total

2012
Corporate
customers Consumers
¥30,393 ¥6,886
2,650 1,718
{(11,636) (410)
7,936 (368)
¥29,343 ¥7,826
4,139 4,121
25,204 3,705

¥608,731 ¥329,552

38,623 7,910

¥647.354 ¥337,462

* “Other” principally includes the effect of consolidation and deconsolidation of certain subsidiaries and the effect of changes

foreign currency exchange rates

** Finance recevables are individually evaluated for impairment and the related allowance is included in impaired recervables
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The following table presents the activity of the allowance for credit losses related to financing receivables, the balance of the
allowance for credit losses related to financing recervables and the balance of financing receivables as of and for the year ended

March 31, 2013
M:llions of
Millions of Yen U S Doliars
2013 2013
Corporate Corporate
customers Consumers Customers Consumers

Balance at beginning of year ¥29,343 ¥7.826 $312 $83
Provision for credit losses 3,987 3,423 42 37
Charge-offs (3,456) {771) 37) 8)
Other* 214 1,142 3 12
Balance at end of year ¥30,088 ¥11620 $320 $124
Ending balance of allowance for credit losses
Collectrve umpairment allowance
(higher credit quality financing receivables) 1,467 7,475 16 )
Indsvidual impairment allowance* *
(lower credit quality financing receivables) 28,621 4,145 304 44
Ending balance of financing receivables
Higher credit quality receivables ¥697,592 ¥457,100 $7.421 $4.863
Lower credit quality recevables 88,312 8.516 940 90

Total ¥785,904 ¥465,616 $8.361 34,953

* “Other” principally mcludes the effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
** Finance receivables are individually evaluated for impairment and the refated allowance 1s included 1n impaired recervables

Age analysis of past due financing recervables—

Age analysis of past due financing recervables as of March 31, 2012 15 as follows

Milthions of Yen

2012
Corporate customers
Past due 1n one year or less ¥10,878
Past due after one year through two years 6,018
Past due afier two years through three years 774
Past due afier three years through four years 192
Past due after four years through five years 1,099
Past due greater than five years 19,166
Total ¥38,127
Mitlions of Yen
2012
Consumers
Past due mn three months or less ¥27.124
Past due after three months through six months 2,280
Past due after six months through one year 518
Past due greater than one year 21,341
Total ¥32,263
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Age analysis of past due financing recervables as of March 31, 2013 1s as follows

Millions of
Mitlions of Yen U S Dollars
2013 2013
Corporate customers

Past duc in one year or less ¥26,568 $314
Past due after one year through two years 1,006 11
Past due after two years through three years 654 7
Past due afier three vears through four years 532 5
Past due after four years through five years 168 2
Past due greater than five years 19,250 205
Total ¥51,178 $544
Miilions of

Milhonsof Yen U S Dollars

2013 2013
Consumers

Past due in three months or Jess ¥43,584 $464
Past due after three months through six months 3,472 37
Past due after six months through one year 952 10
Past due greater than one year 2,571 27
Total ¥50,579 $538

Troubled Debt Restructurmg ("TDR"}—

A restructuning of a debt constiutes a TDR 1f the Company for economuc or legal reasons related to the debtor’s financial difficulties
grants concession to the debtor Concession s granted, for example, by modifying contractual terms to reduce the face amount or
maturity amount of the debt or to extend the maturtty dates more than three months The Company determines an amount of
allowance for credit losses by considering the modified contractual terms

Corporate customers—
The TDRs for the year ended March 31, 2012 were as follows

The Company modified the terms of sales contracts of ¥23,920 million and lease agreements of ¥10,632 mullion whereby the
Company reacquired the goods, leased them for five to fifteen years to separate third parties, and will resell the goods to 1ts mitial
customers after the end of the lease penods As a result, for the mitial customers, the maturity amounts of the ongimnal debts were
reduced and the mamnty dates of them were extended as well

The Company retains the titles of the leased goods and intends to sell them at farr value if the lease payments are not expected to be
made Therefore, the Company has determined the allowance for doubtful recetvables by taking into consideration the amount
expected to be collected by selling them at fair values or by leasing and reselling them according to the modified terms This

modification of terms did not have a matenal impact on the Company’s consohdated financial positien and results of operations for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012

With respect to the financing recervables of ¥4,982 muilion held by the Company, a resolution has been reached for a rehabilitation
plan of a debtor under the Crvil Rehabilitation Act Under the rehabilitation plan, approximately 90% of the amount of the financing
receivables excluding the amount covered by collateral has been forgiven and the remaining 1096 will be paid to creditors on an
installment basis until the year 2017 As a result, the matunty amount of the financing recervables was reduced and s matunty date
was also extended

The Company determuned the allowance for financing receivables by taking into consideration the amount expected to be collected
according to the rehabilitation plan The modification of the term did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position and results of operations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012

There were no matenal TDRSs for corporate customers during the year ended March 31, 2013
Consumers—
There were no material TDRs for consumers during the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2013

For the amount of the financing receivables held by the Company which TDRs occurred after April 1, 2011, the defaults in payment
have been immaterial during the year ended March 31, 2012

Far the amount of the financing receivables held by the Company which TDRs occurred dunng last 12 months, the defauits in
payment have been immatenal during the year ended March 31, 2013
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8 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Depreciation expense for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was ¥123,223 million, ¥125,184 mulhon and ¥133,359
mullion ($1,419 mallion), respectively

The ympairment Yoss on long-lived asseis for the year ended March 31, 2013 was principally attnbutabe to a decline of market price
and profitability related to vessels,which are included n the Machinery segment, and increased production costs for certan o1l and
gas properties owned by subsidianes 1n the Energy Busmess segment.

The impairment loss on long-hved assets for the year ended March 31, 2012 was principally attnbutable to a decline of land price and
profitability related to real estate properties in Japan, which are included in the Industnal Finance, Logistics & Development segment,
and abandonment of exploration and developing right for a certain o1l and gas property owned by a substdiary 1n the Energy Business
segment

The mmpairment loss on long-lived assets for the year ended March 31, 2011 was principally attributable to a dechne of profitability
related to certain logistics properties owned by a subsidiary 1n the Living Essentials segment and certain o1] and gas properties owned
by a subsidiary in the Energy Business segment.

Impairment losses recogmized for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were applicable to the following segments

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars

Segment 2011 2012 2013 2013
Industrial Finance, Logistics & Development ¥248 ¥2412 ¥876 $9
Energy Business 2,920 1,315 11,229 119
Metals 1,005 533 328 4
Machimnery 60 27 13,666 145
Chemucals 96 367 234 3
Living Essentials 2,878 1,145 1,972 21
Other 38 20 641 7
Total ¥7.245 ¥5.819 ¥28.946 $308

*1 For the year ended March 31,2013, the amount of “Machinery” includes ¥13,665 milhion ($145 mllion) as a result of a decline of
market price and profitability related to vessels as described above

*2 “Other” represents impawrment losses attmbutable to the assets for corperate use which have not been allocated to speaific
operating segments

These impairment losses were included 1n “Loss ¢n property and equipment—net™ in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income The Company assesses whether the carrymg amount of long-lived assets are recoverable by using undiscounted cash flows,
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Estimated fair
values of assets were primarly determined based on independent appraisals and discounted cash flows

Capitalized interest was ¥138 mullion, ¥161 mulhion and ¥7,479 mullion ($80 mullion) for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and
2013, respecuvely

For the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company entered into sales contracts for centain long-lived assets These contracts require
the sales and delivery of the assets within one year These long-lived assets are classified as long-lived asset to be disposed of by sale
and were included in "Other current assets” 1n the consolidated balance sheets The camrymng amounts of long-lived assets to be
disposed of by sale included in "Other current assets” as of March 31, 2013 were as follows

Mifhions of Yen 1?4 é]l;gglsl:;
Segment 2013 2013
Industrial Finance, Logisues ¥13,i31 $139
& Development
Real estate 20,754 221
Total ¥33,885 $360
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9 PLEDGED ASSETS

At March 31, 2012 and 2013, assets pledged as collateral for short-term debt, long-term debt and guarantees of contracts and others
of the Company were as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Notes, accounts receivable—trade, Joans and others (cwrent and noncurrent) ¥38,077 ¥68,620 $730
Inventones 1,306 70,781 753
Noncurrent investment secunties and others (carrying value) 100,824 79,132 842
Property and equipment {net of accumulated depreciation) 197,221 187,458 1,994
Other 2,981 18,618 198
Total ¥340,409 ¥424.609 $4,517
The above pledged assets were classified by type of habilities to which they relate as follows
Millions of
Milliens of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Short-term debt ¥26,632 ¥17,665 $1388
Long-term debt 229,998 240,844 2,562
Guarantees of contracts and others 83,779 166,100 1,767
Total ¥340,409 ¥424,609 $4,517

Trust receipts 1ssued under customary import financing arrangements give banks a secuyity interest in the merchandise imported
and/or sales proceeds resulting from the sale of such merchandise The Company follows the practice of repaying the related notes
and acceptances payable at matunty without applying the sales proceeds to specific notes or acceptances Due to the large volume of
transactions, 1t 1s impracticable to determine the aggregate amounts of assets covered by outstanding trust receipts

The Company may be required by the lending banks to provide collateral (or additional collateral) under certain conditions Please
refer 1o Note 13

-43.




10 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Other Intangible Assets

The followng tables present information regarding carrying amounts and accumulated amortization balances of other intangible
assets by mayor asset class at March 31, 2012 and 2013

Milhiens of Yen

Gross
Camrving  Accumulated
March 31, 2012 Amount Amortization Net
Intangibie assets subject to amortization
Software ¥122,029 ¥69,773)  ¥52,256
Manufactuning, sales and service hicenses
and trademarks 18,990 (11,028) 7,962
intellectual properties
related to feasibility studres 14,895 14,895
Customer relationships 11,143 (1,549) 9,594
Other 15,385 (7,366) 8,019
Total ¥182.442 ¥(89,716)  ¥92,726
Intangible assets not subject to amortization
Trade names ¥4.473
Rughts to use land 4,295
Customer relationships 2,266
Other 3,326
Total 14,360
Intangible assets total ¥107,086
Miilions of Yen Millhions of U S Dollars
Gross Gross
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying  Accumulated
March 31, 2013 Amount Amortizanon Net Amount  Amorfization Net
Intangble assets subject to amortization
Software ¥136,292 ¥(73,476) ¥62.816 $1.450 $(782) $668
Manufacturing, sales and service licenses
and trademarks 21,068 (12,924) 8,144 224 (137) 87
Intellectual properties
related to feasibility studies 17,118 17,118 182 182
Customer relationships 12,946 (2,679) 10,267 138 29 109
Other 17,268 (7,335) 9,933 184 (78) 106
Total ¥204 692 ¥96,414) ¥108,278 $2,178 $(1,026) $1,152
Intangible assets not subject to amortization
Trade names ¥4,714 $50
Rights to use land 4,738 50
Customer relanonships 2,266 24
Other 3,408 37
Total 15,123 161
Intangble assets total m -—m

Intangible assets subject to amortization acquired during the year ended March 31, 2012 were ¥47,700 million, which primarnily
consisted of ¥23,094 million of software and ¥14,895 million of intellectual properties related to feasibility studies Intellectual
properties related to feasihility studies consist of engineering related know-how and knowledge that provide us a compentive
advantage 1n advancing projects The weighted-average amorhization peried for intangible assets subject to amortization acquired
during the year ended March 31, 201215 13 years The weighted-average amortization period for software and intellectual properties
related to feasihility studics is 5 years and 235 years, respectively
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Intangible assets subject to amortization acquired duning the year ended March 31, 2013 were ¥29,082 mullion ($309 mitlion), which
primanly conststed of ¥24,972 mulhion ($266 mullion) of software The weighted-average amortization period for intangible assets
subject to amortization acquired duning the year ended March 31, 2013 1s 11 years The weighted-average amortization period for
software 15 1] yvears

Intangible assets not subject to amortizaton acquired dunng the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were ¥4,345 million and ¥604
mtllion ($6 mullion), respectively

Amortization expense for imntangible assets subject to amortization was ¥16,852 oullion, ¥16,247 million and ¥17,364 mullion ($185
mullion) for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively

As of March 31, 2013, eshmated amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years is as follows

Mihons of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars
Year ending March 31
2014 ¥15,872 5169
2015 14,219 151
2016 11,633 124
2017 8,746 93
2018 5,580 59

Based on the results of impairment testing, wnpairment losses of ¥204 mihon, ¥3,224 milhon and ¥534 malhion (36 million) were
recorded for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively

These impairment losses are mcluded i “Loss on property and equipment—net™ i the consohidated statements of income

Goodwill

The following tables show changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable operaung segment for the years ended March 31,
2012 and 2013

March 31, 2012
Mulbions of Yen
Beginaing of Year Changes Dunng Year End of Year
Gross  Accumulated Gross  Accumulated
Camying  Impairment Goodwill Impairment Cumency Carrying  Impainment
Segment Amount Losses Net Additons  Losses  Divestitures Exchange Other  Amount Losses Net
Industnal

Finance,

Lopisues &

Development ¥7,244 ¥934) ¥6,310 ¥3,002 ¥312) K934) ¥156) ¥7910 ¥7,910
Energy Business 296 296 ¥2 298 268
Metals 13,465 (1,446) 12,019 4,465 143 (328) 17,750 ¥1,446) 16,304
Machinery 2,983 2,983 (428) (1) 2,971 (428) 2,543
Chemicals 374 374 3 377 377
Laving Essentials 26,880 (1.295) 25,585 7356 21 (123) 34,134 (1,295) 32,839
Other 1,639 1,639 341 (130) (1,622) {1) 357 (130) 227

Total ¥52,881 ¥(3.675) ¥49,206 ¥15,164  ¥870) ¥934) ¥1,621) 44T} ¥63,797 ¥(3,299) ¥50,498
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March 31,2013

Millions of Yen
Beguning of Year Changes Dunng Year End of Year
Gross  Accumulated Gross  Accumulated
Carrying  Impairment Goodwll Impairment Currency Camying  Imparrment

Segment Amount Losses Net Additons Losses Divestitures Exchange Other*  Amount Losses Net
Industnal

Finance,

Logstes &

Development ¥7,910 7,910 ¥4s ¥ ¥8932 ¥8.932
Energy Busmess 298 298 ¥339 48 ) 684 684
Metals 17,750 ¥1,446) 16,304 79 39 (6,362) 11,506 ¥(1,446) 10,060
Machinery 2971 (428) 2,543 17 2988 (428) 2,560
Chemucals 31 377 64 441 441
Living Essentials 34,134 (1,205) 32,839 2,393 936 15 37,528 {1,295) 36,233
Other 357 (130) 227 192 ¥(383) 297 1616 2,079 (130) 1,949

Total ¥53,797 ¥(3,299)¥60,498 ¥3,003 ¥(383)  ¥2232 W4491) ¥64,158 ¥(3,299) ¥60,859
March 31, 2013
Millions of U § Dollars

Beginning of Year Changes Dunng Year End of Year
Gross  Accumulated Gross  Accumulated
Carmying  Impairment Goodwil] Imparment Currency Carrving  Impasrment

Segment Amonnt Losses Net Addipons  Losses  Davestiures Exchange Other*  Amount Losses Net

Industnal

Finance,

Logistues &

Development $84 $84 39 $2 $95 595
Energy Busincss 3 3 $4 7 7
Metals 189 (15) 174 1 1 (69) 122 $(15) 107
Machinery 3z (5) 27 32 (5) 27
Chemacals 4 4 1 5 5
Laving Essentals 363 (14) 349 25 11 399 (14) 385
Other 4 (n 3 2 5(4) 3 17 22 1) 21

Total 8679 $(35) $644 $32 $(4} $24  $(49) 5682 $(35) $647

* “Other” shown in “Changes Dunng Year” includes transfers between reportable operating segments and adjustiments of purchase price allocation resulting
Eom business combinations

During the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012, the Company recognrzed impairment losses of ¥891 million, ¥870 million,
respectively, which are included in “Other mcome—net” i the consolidated statements of mcome
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11 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Overall Risk Management—

The Company, mn the normal course of business, 15 exposed to market risks from changes mn interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
commodity prices To manage the exposures to these nsks, the Company generally identifies 11s net exposures and takes advantage of
natural offsets Additionally, the Company enters into vanous derivatve fransactions pursuant to the Company’s nsk management
pohcies in response to counterparty exposure and to hedge specific risks

The types of denvatives used by the Company are primaniy interest rate swaps, forward exchange contracts, currency swaps and
commodity futures contracts The changes 1n fair value of these hedging mstruments are offset in part or in whole by corresponding
changes in the fair value or cash flows of the underlying exposures being hedged Whenever practical, designation 15 performed on a
specific exposure basis to qualify for hedge accounting In these circumstances, the Company assesses, both at the imnception of the
hedge and on an on-going basis, whether the hedging derivatives are hghly effective m offsetting changes 1n fair values or cash
flows of hedged items Should it be deterrmined that a dervative 1s not hughly effective as a hedge, the Company will discontinue
hedge accounting

The Company does not enter nto matenal denvative instruments that contan credit nsk-related contingent features

The notienal amounts of the Company’s derivative mstruments as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 are as follows

Billions of Yen Millions of U S Dollars

2012 2013 2013
Interest rate contracts ¥2.729 ¥2.789 $29,673
Foretgn exchange contracts 2,484 3,194 33,974
Commodity contracts 6,801 8,259 87,866
Total denvative notional amounts ¥12,014 ¥14.242 $151,513

Interest Rate Risk Management-—

The Company’s financing, investing and cash management activities are exposed to nsks associated with changes 1n interest rates In
order to manage these exposures, the Company has entered into interest rate swap contracts Interest rate swaps are used, 1 most
mstances, to convert fixed-rate assets or debts to floating-rate assets or debts, as well as cottvert some floating-rate assets or debts to
a fixed basis The objective of maintaining this mix of fixed- and floating-rate assets and debts 15 to allow the Company to manage
the overall value of cash flows attributable to certain assets and debt instruments

Foreign Currency Risk Management—

The Company operates globally and 1s exposed to foreign currency nisks related to purchasing, selling, financing and mvesting 1n
currencies other than the local currencies in which the Company operates The Company’s strategy to manage foreign currency nisks
15 to net foreign currency exposures on recognized assets, liabilities and unrecognized firm commrtments by taking advantage of
natural offsets, and purchase forward exchange contracts and other contracts to preserve the economic value of cash flows in
nonfunctional currencies The Company believes that in circumstances where these foreign currency contracts have not been
designated as hedging mstruments, such contracts effectively hedge the impact of the vanability i exchange rates Hedged
currencies pnmanly mclude the U 8 dollar, the Eure and the Australian dollar

Commodity Pnice Risk Management—

The Company 15 exposed to fluctvations 1n commodity prices associated with various commodities used i its trading and other
operating activities The Company enters into commodity futures, forwards, options and swaps contracts to hedge the variability
commodity prices 1n accordance with 1ts sk management procedures Except in certamn cases where these contracis have been
designated as fair value or cash flow hedges, these contracts are generally not designated as hedging instruments

Fair Value Hedge—

Denvative instruments designated as farr value hedges pnmanly consist of interest rate swaps used to convert fixed-rate assets or
debt obligations to floating-rate assets or debts, currency swaps used to hedge foreign currency nsks of loans or debts and
commodnty forwards used to hedge commodity price risks of mventones
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Cash Flow Hedge—

Derivative mstruments designated as cash flow hedges include interest rate swaps to convert floatng-rate liabihties to fixed-rate
liabihitses, and forward exchange contracts to ehiminate vanability in functional-currency-equivalent cash flows on forecasted
transactions Additionally, commodity swaps and futures contracts which qualify as cash flow hedges are utilized Current open
contracts hedge the Company’s exposure to the vanability 1n future cash flows for forecasted transactions through 2020

Hedge of the Net Investment in Foreign Operations—

The Parent uses foreign exchange contracts and nondenvative financial wmstruments such as foreign-currency-denorunated debt 1n
order to reduce the foregn currency exposure i the net investment 1n a foreign operation The amount included m the foreign
currency translanon adjustments was net gains of ¥38,180 miliion, ¥17,108 milion and net losses of ¥52,264 milhon ($556 mullion)
for the years ended March 31,2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively

Denvatve Instraments Used for Other than Hedging Activihes—

The Company enters into derivaiive mstruments as part of sts brokerage services in commodity futures markets and its trading
activittes The Company clearly distinguishes derivatives used for brokerage services and trading actsvities from dervatves used for
risk management purposes As part of its internal control policies, the Company has set stnct limets on the posstions which can be
taken 1n erder to minmize potential losses for these denvative transactions, and periodically monstors the open positons for
compliance
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Impact of Denivatives and Hedgmng on the Consolidated Balance Sheets—
The following are the fair values of derivative mstruments designated and not designated as accounting hedges by type of denvative
contract on a gross basis as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

Mullions of Yen
Asset Denvatives Liability Denvatives
As of March 31, 2012 Balance Sheet Line Item Fair Value Balance Sheet Line Item  Fair Value
Denvatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts Other current assets ¥356 Other current hiabilites ¥19
Other assets 68,949 Other noncurrent habihities 6,907
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 7,856 Other current hahihties 22,738
Other assets 1,975 Other noncurrent habihities 3,278
Commodity contracts Other current assets 3,611 Other current habilities 830
Other assets 1,094 Other noncurrent habilitres 1,668
Totat ¥B3,841 ¥35.440
Denvatives not designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts Other current assets ¥495  Other current Liabilities ¥904
Other assets 8,354 QOther noncurrent hiabihities 11,266
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 26,269 Other current habilities 21,389
Other assets 7,065 Other noncurrent liabilities 7,691
Commodity contracts Other current assets 142,285 Qther current habilities 135,360
Other assets 24,986 Other noncurrent liabilities 25,185
Total ¥206,454 ¥201,798
Total Denvatives (gross basis) ¥293,295 ¥237,238
Netting ¥(187,796) ¥(188,066)
Net Derivanves on Consolidated Balance Sheets
Other current assets ¥38,051 Other current habilities ¥32,569
Other assets 67,448 Other noncurrent habilites 16,603
Total Net Denvatives on Consohdated Balance Sheets ¥105,499 ¥49,172

* The Company offsets fair value amounts recognized for denvative instruments against fair value amounts recogrized for cash collateral receivables or cash
collateral payables ansing from denvative instruments executed with the same counterparty when a legally enforceable master netting agreement exists At
March 31, 2012, the cash collateral recervables and payables that were offset were ¥8,023 million and ¥7,753 mullion, respecuvely The cash collzteral
receivabies and payables that were not offset were ¥7,993 million and ¥3,376 milhon, respectrvely

Carrying Amount
Nondenvatives designated as hedging instruments Balance Sheet Line Item Millions of Yen
Foreign-currency-denominated debt Current matunities of long-term debt ¥3,945
Long-term debt 35,506
Total ¥39,451
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Millions of Yen

Asset Denvatives Liability Derivatves
As of March 31, 2013 Balance Sheet Line Item Fair Value  Balance Sheet Line ltem  Fair Value
Derrvatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts Other current assets ¥992 Other cuwrrent liabilities ¥40
Other assets 82,408 Other noncurrent habilities 4,467
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 15,933 Other current habilities 13,200
Other assets 2,913 Other noncurrent habiliies 11
Commodity contracts Other current assets 3,094 Other current habilities 145
Other assets 928 Other noncurrent liabilities 3,052
Totat ¥106,268 ¥20,915
Dervatives not designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts Other current assets ¥818 Other current habihities ¥952
Other assets 5,924 Other noncurrent Liabihties 10,195
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 35,473  Other current habilities 50,834
Other assets 14,280 Other noncurrent liabilities 30,667
Commodity contracts Other current assets 229,997 Other current habilities 203,316
Other assets 19,898 Other noncurrent liabihties 19,265
Total ¥306,390 ¥315,239
Total Denvatives (gross basis) ¥412,658 ¥336,154

Netting
Net Derrvatives on Consolidated Balance Sheets
Other current assets

Other assets
Total Net Denvatives on Consolidated Balance Sheets
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¥84,051 Other current habihties
60,882 Other noncurrent habihties

¥144.933

¥(270,637)

¥44,932
20,585

¥65,517



Millions of U S Dollars
Asset Denvatives Liability Denvatives
Balance Sheet Line Item  Fair Value  Balance Sheet Line Item  Fair Value

As of March 31, 2013

Denvatives designated as hedging instruments

Interest rate contracts Other current assets $11  OQther current habilities
Other assets 877 Other noncurrent habilities 548
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 169 Other current liabihties 140
Other assets 31 Other noncurrent liabilities
Commodity contracts Other current assets 33 Other current Liabilities 2
Other assets 10 Other noncurrent habihittes 32
Total $1,131 $222
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts Other current assets $9 Other current habilines $10
Other assets 63 Other noncurrent habihities 109
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 377 Other current habilihes 541
Other assets 152 Other noncurrent abilities 326
Commodity contracts Other current assets 2,447 Other current habilities 2,163
Other assets 211 Other noncurrent habilities 205
Total $3,259 $3,354
Total Derivatives (gross basis) $4.390 $3,576
Netting $(2,848) $(2,879)
Net Denvatives on Consolidated Balance Sheets
Other current assets $894 Other current habilities $478
Other assets 648 Other noncurrent hiabihties 219
Total Net Denvatives on Consohdated Balance Sheets 31542 %697

* The Company offsets fair value amounts recognized for denvative instruments against fair value amounts recogmzed for cash collateral receivables or cash
collateral payables ansing from denvative instruments executed with the same counterparty when a lepally enforceable master nctting agrecment exists At
March 31, 2013, the cash collateral receivabies and payables that were offset were ¥5.512 mulhon ($59 million) and ¥2,600 mulion ($28& mrilion),
respectively The cash coilateral recesvables and payables that were not offset were ¥7 730 mullion ($82 million) and ¥1,402 million ($15 msllion),
respectively

Carrying Amount
Milhons of
Nondenvatives designated as hedging instruments Balance Sheet Line Item Millions of Yen U S Dollars
Foreigon-curmrency-denominated debt Current maturities of long-term debt ¥4514 $48
Long-term debt 8,769 93
Total ¥13,283 S1q1
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Impact of Denvatives and Hedged liems on the Consohidated Statements of Income and on Other Comprehensive Income—

The following are the pretax effects of derivative instruments on the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31,
2011, 2012 and 2013

During the year ended March 31, 2011
Dernvatives Designated as Fair Value Hedge

Line Item of Gain or Loss Amount of Gan or Loss Amount of Gain or Loss
Recognized in Eamings Recognized in Eamings Recognized in Earnings
Dernivative type on Denvative/Hedged Item an Denvative on Hedged ltem
Milhions of Yen Millions of Yen
Interest rate contracts Other income-—net ¥(2,700) ¥2,722
Foreign exchange contracts Other ncome—net 5,348 (5,378)
Commodity contracts Revenues/(cost of revenues) 989 (989)

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2011

*2 There were ho gans or losses recogmzed in earmings as a result of hedged firm commitments no longer quahfying as fawr value hedge during the year ended
March 31, 2011

*3 The line items 1n the Conschdated Statements of [ncome corresponding to “Revenues/(cost of revenues)” arc “Revenues” and “Cost of revenues from
trading, manufacturing and other activines ” The same applies to the succeeding tables

Denvatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedge

Amount of Gain or Loss

Amount of Gawn or (Loss) Reclassified from AQCI
Recogmzed 1n OCI Line Item of Gain or Loss mto Earnings
Dervative type (effective portion) Reclassified from AOC] into Earnmgs ({effective portion)
Millions of Yen Milhens of Yen
Interest rate contracts ¥(2,947) Interest expense ¥309
Foreign exchange contracts 52,038 Other income—net (31,410)
Commodity contracts (5,073) Revenues/(cost of revenues} (2,440)

*1 Amounis related to hedge meffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2011

*2 Dunng the year ended March 31, 2011 there were no gains or losses reclassified from AOCI into eamutgs as 2 result of the discontinuance of cash flow
hedges because 1t 15 probable that the ongnal forecasted transactions will not occur by the end of the ongnally specified time penod
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Dernivatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Amount of Gam or Loss
Amount of Gamn or (Loss} Reclassified from AQCI
Recogmzed i OCI Line [tem of Gain or Loss into Earnings
Derivative type {effective portion) Reclassified from AQCI mto Eamings (effective portion)
Mitlions of Yen Millions of Yen
G ketabl
Foreign exchange contracts ¥2,277 2m on marketab’e ¥(1,115)

securities and mvestments—net

*1 Amounts related to hedge neffechveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2011

Nondenvatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Dertvative type Amount of Gamn or (Loss} Recogmzed 1n OCI (effective portion)
Millions of Yen
Foreign-currency-denominated debt ¥6,028

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and ameunts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immaterial for the year ended March 31,
2011

*2 Dunng the year ended March 31, 2011, there were no gains or losses reclassified from AOCT imto eamimgs

Derrvatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Line Item of Gain or Loss Recognized 1n Amount of Gain or Loss
Derivative type Earmungs on Denvative [tem Recognized in Earnings
Millions of Yen
Interest rate contracts Interest expense ¥(2,101)
Other income—net (214)
Forergn exchange contracts Interest expense 1,532
Other income-——net (18,121)
Commodity contracts Revenues/(cost of revenues) {220)
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During the year ended March 31, 2012
Denvatives Designated as Farr Value Hedge

Line Item of Gan or Loss Amount of Gan or Loss Amount of Gan or Loss
Recogmzed in Eamings Recogrized in Eamnings Recognized in Eamings
Dernvative type on Denvative/Hedged Item on Denvative on Hedged Item
Milhions of Yen Milhons of Yen
Interest rate contracts Other income—net ¥(10,427) ¥10,429
Foreign exchange contracts Other income—net 6,932 (6,922)
Commodity contracts Revenues/(cost of revenues) 8,828 (9,283)

*1 Amounts related to hedge meffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of the hedge effectiveness are immaterial for the year ended March 31

2012

*2 There were no gains or losses recogmzed in earmings as a result of hedged firn commitments no longer quahfying as far value hedge dunng the year ended

March 31,2012

*3 The hne items in the Consolidated Statements of Income corresponding to “Revenues/{cost of revenues)™ are *Revenues™ and “Cost of revenues from
trading, manufactunng and other activities ” The same applies to the succeedmg tables

Denvauves Designated as Cash Flow Hedge

Amount of Gam or Loss
Amount of Gain or (Loss) Reclassified from AOCI
Recogmzed in OCl Line Item of Garm or Loss into Earnings
Denvative type {effective portion) Reclassified from AOC! into Eamings (effective portion)
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen
Interest rate contracts ¥(6,852) Interest expense ¥223
Foreign exchange contracts 4,679 Other income—net (39,316}
Commodity contracts (8,544) Revenues/(cost of revenues) (1,376)

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of bedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,

2012

*2 Dunng the year ended March 31, 2012, there were no gains or losses reclassified from AQCI into earnings as a result of the discontmuance of cash flow
hedges because it 15 probable that the onginal forecasted transachons will not occur by the end of the onginally specified me period

-54.-




Denvatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Amount of Gam or Loss
Amount of Gawn or (Loss) Reclassified from AOCI
Recognmized 1n OCI Line Item of Gain or Loss inte Eamings
Dentvative type {effective portion) Reclassified from AOCI into Eamings (effective portion)
Millions of Yen Millicns of Yen
Foreign exchange contracts ¥(19,206) Gawn on marketable X(3,770)

securities and mmvestments—net

*1 Amounts related to hedge neffectiveness and emounts excluded from the sssesement of hedge effectiveness are itmmatenial for the year ended March 31,
2012

Nondenvatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Denvative type Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in OCI (effectrve portion)
Millions of Yen
Foreign-currency-denommated debt ¥1,904

*1 Amounts related to hedge meffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2012

*2 Dunng the year ended March 31, 2012, there were no gains or losses reclassified from AOCI 1nto eammgs

Denvatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Line Item of Gain or Loss Recognized 1n Amount of Gain or Loss
Derivative type Earmings on Denivative Item Recogmzed in Earmnings
Millions of Yen
Interest rate contracts Interest expense ¥(1,057)
Other mcome—net 984
Foreign exchange contracts Interest expense 1,210
Other income—-net 23,957
Commodity contracts Revenues/{cost of revenues) 23,500
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Dunng the year ended March 31, 2013
Derivatives Designated as Fair Value Hedge

Line Item of Gain or Loss Amount of Gam or Loss Amount of Gan or Loss
Recogmized in Earmings Recogmzed 1n Earnings Recogmzed in Earmnings
Denvauve type on Denvatve/Hedged ltem on Denvative on Hedged item
Milhions of Mithons of
Milonsof Yen US Dollars Millionsof Yen U S Dollars
Interest rate contracts Other income—net ¥(17,093) $(182) ¥17,087 $182
Foreign exchange contracts Other income—net {1,047) an 1,086 12
Commodity contracts Revenues/(cost of revenues) (510) (3 509 5

*1 Amounts related to hedge meffectuveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of the hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2013

*2 There were no gains or losses recognized i earmngs as & result of hedged firm commuments no longer quahifying as fan value hedge dunng the year ended
March 31, 2013

*3 The linc items 1n the Consohdated Statements of Income comresponding to “Revenues/(cost of revenues)” are “Revenues™ and “Cost of revenues from
trading, manufactunng and other acivities ™ The same applies to the succeeding tables

Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedge

Amount of Gain or Loss
Amount of Gamn or (Loss) Line Item of Gan or Loss Reclassified from AQCI
Recognized 1n OCI Reclassified from mnto Eamings
Denvative type (effective portion) AQCILinto Eamnings (effective portion)
Millions of Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars Millions of Yen U S Dollars
Interest rate contracts ¥(8,686) $(92) Interest expense ¥352 54
Foreign exchange contracts 17,011 181 Other income—net (8,284) (88)
Commodity contracts 1,235 13 Revenues/(cost of revenues) (2,288) 24)

*1 Amounts related 10 hedge incffectiveness and amounts exciuded from the assessment of hedge effectivencss are immatena for the year ended March 31,
2013

*2 Denvative unrealized gans and losses mncluded in AOCI are reclassified into earnings a1 the ime that the associated hedged transactions impact earnings

Approximately ¥2,400 milhon (326 mlhon) of net unrealized gains, net of tax, inctuded 1n AOCI at March 31, 2013 walt be reclassified into camings within
12 months from that date

*3 Dunng the year ended March 31, 2013 there were no gains or losses reclasafied from AOC] 1nto earnings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow
hedges because 1t 15 probable that the onginal forecasted transactions will not oceur by the end of the onginally specified ume period
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Denvatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Amount of Gam or Loss
Amount of Gan or {Loss} Line Item of Gain or Loss Reclassified from AOCI
Recognized in OCI1 Reclassified from mto Eamings
Dernvative type (effecuve portion} AOCI into Earnings (effective portion)
Mithons of Milhons of
Ma:llions of Yen U S Dollars Millions of Yen U S Dollars
Foreign exchange contracts ¥(66,012) $(702) Gain on marketable ¥(126) $(1)

securities and 1nvestments—net

*1 Amounts related to hedge imeffeciveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2013

Nondenvatives Designated as Net Investment Hedge

Denvative type Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in OCI (effective portion)
Milhions of
Miilions of Yen U S Dollars
Foreign-currency-denominated debt ¥(3,234) $(34)

*1 Amounts related to hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness are immatenal for the year ended March 31,
2013

*2 Dunng the year ended March 31, 2013, there were no gans or losses reclassified from AOCH imto eamngs

Dertvatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Line [tem of Gamn or Loss Recognized m Amount of Gain or Loss
Derivative type Earnings on Denvative Item Recognized 1n Eamings
Millions of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars
Interest rate contracts Interest expense ¥380 $4
Other income—net 1,268 13
Foreign exchange contracts Interest expense 4,916 52
Other income—net (34,474) (367}
Commodity contracts Revenues/(cost of revenues) (4,619) {49
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12 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Vahte on a Recurning Basis

The followng tables present information regarding assets and liabihties that are measured at far value on a recurring basis at March

31,2012 and 2013
Mithons of Yen
March 31, 2012 Levell  Level2 Level3 Netting Total
Assets
Cash equivalents
Domestic ¥3.098 ¥3,098
Qverseas 51 L] |
Investments
Trading secunities ¥9,021 9,021
Avalable-for-sale
Equity securities
Domestic ¥635,405 635,405
Overseas 280,228 2,172 282,400
Deblt securities
Domestic 16,221 16,221
Overseas 10,784 39,375 50,159
Total investments ¥926,417 ¥57,768 ¥9,021 ¥993.206
Dervative assets
Interest rate
confracts 12 78,142
Foreign exchange
confracts 1 43,164
Commodity
contracts 11,400 159,108 1,468
Total denvative
assets ¥11,413 ¥280,414 ¥1,468 3¥187,796) ¥105,499
Total assets ¥037.830 ¥341,331 ¥10,489 ¥(187,796) ¥1,101,854
Liabilities
Denvative habilines
Interest rate
contracts ¥l ¥19,088
Foreign exchange
conftracts 4 55,092
Commodity
contracts 12,024 149,575 ¥1444
Total derivative
Liabilities ¥12,039 ¥223,755 ¥1,444 ¥(188,066) ¥49.172
Total habiltties ¥12,039 ¥223,755 ¥1.444 ¥(188,066) ¥49,172
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Millions of Yen

Millions of U § Dollars

March 31, 2013 Levell  Level2 Level3 Netung Total Level | Level 2 Level 3 Netting  Total
Assets
Cash equivalents
Domestic ¥3,198 ¥3,198 $34 $34
Overseas 28 28
Investments
Trading secuntzes 2,498 ¥9,302 11,800 27 $99 126
Available-for-sale
Equity secunties
Domestic ¥711,661 711,661 $7,571 7,571
Dverseas 305,580 423 306,003 3,251 4 3,255
Debt securities
Domestic 15,893 15,893 169 169
Overseas 7,433 41,895 49328 79 446 525
Total investments  ¥1,024,674  ¥60,709 ¥9,302 ¥1,094,685 510,901 3646 $59 $11,646
Derivative assets
Interest rate
contyacts 90,142 960
Foreign exchange
contracts 68,599 729
Commodity
contracts 17,825 235476 616 189 2,505 7
Total denvative
assets ¥17,825 ¥394,217 ¥616 ¥(267,725) ¥144,933 $189 $4,194 $7 $(2,848) §1,542
Total assets ¥1,042,499 ¥458,152 ¥9,918 ¥(267,725) ¥1,242.844 $11,090 $4,874 5106 $(2,848) $13,222
Liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Interest rate
contracts ¥1 ¥i5,663 $167
Foreign exchange
contracts 94,712 1,007
Commodity
contracts 14489 210,697 ¥592 $154 2242 $6
Total denivative
Liabilities ¥14,490 ¥321,072 ¥592 ¥(270,637) ¥65,517 $154 $3,416 56 $(2,879) $697
Total habilities ¥14,490 ¥321,072 ¥592 ¥(270,637) ¥65,517 $154 $3.416 $6  3(2,879) $697

*1 The Company offsets fair value amounts recogmized for denvative instruments against fair value amounts recognzed for cash collateral recervables or cash
collateral payables ansing from denvative instruments executed with the same counterparty when a legally enforceable master neting agresment exists

*2 There were no stgmficant transfers between Leve] 1 and Level 2

*3 There were no significant transfers out and 1o Level 3

The majonity of investments 1n marketable equity securiues and debt secuniies classified as avaable-for-sale securities are

designated as Level 1 and are valued using quoted market prices in active markets Debt secunties, includmng those classified as cash
equivalents, which include investments 1n corporate bonds and commercial paper are designated as Level 2 and are valued using

quoted market prices for similar assets in active markets, or quoted prices for identical or sumalar assets in markets that are not active
Investmenis 1 securities classified as trading securities, compnsed principally of nvestments in hedge funds (*alternative
investments”) are designated as Level 3 and are valued based on net asset value per share of investees
The fair value of the alternative mvestments at March 31, 2012 and 2013 was ¥9,021 mullion and ¥9,302 mullion ($99 million),

respectively The investment strategies of investees are mainly arbitrage and multi-strategy Redemption frequencies of these

mvestments are mainly monthly or quarterly These investments can be redeemable with 3180 days' notice Redemption dates of
these investments are undetermined at March 31, 2013
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Denvatives are compnised of mterest rate derivative contracts, foreign exchange denvative contracts and commodity denvahve
contracts Denvatives clasaified in Level 1 are compnised principally of commodity denvative contracts traded erther on exchanges
or hiqud over-the-counter markets, which are valued using quoted prices Denvatives classified in Level 2 are compnsed principally
of commodity denvative contracts traded m over-the-counter markets, which are valued by pricing models using observable market
mputs such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices Denvatives classified in Level 3 are compnised
principally of more structured commodity denvatives, which are valued based on wnobservable inputs

Credit nsks are adjusted for the net balance of derivative assets and habiines allocated on dertvative contracts with master netting
agreements

The following tables present the changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities that are measured at fawr value using uncbservable inputs for
the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013

Millions of Yen
Net Reahized/  Net Realized/ Change in
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Gans Gains (Losses) Gans (Losses)
Balance at  (Losses)  Included in Other Redemptions Balance at ~ Still Held
Beginning  Included Comprehensive and Endof  Recognized
March 31, 2012 of Year i Farmings  Income (Loss) Purchases  Sales  Setlements  Year 0 eamings
Investments
Trading securities ¥9,160 ¥(325) ¥(174) ¥790 ¥(430) ¥9,021 ¥967)
Denvatves, net
Commodity contracts 23 478 ¥(477) 24 23
Total ¥9,183 ¥153 ¥(174) ¥790  ¥(430) ¥(477) ¥9,045 ¥(944)
Mithions of Yen
Net Realized/  Net Realized/ Change in
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Gains Gains (Losses) Gams (Losses)
Balance at  (Losses}  Included in Other Redemptions Balance at  Sull Held
Begmning  Included Comprehensive and Endof  Recogmzed
March 31, 2013 of Year i Farmings  Income (Ioss} Purchases Sales  Seftlements  Year I earmnmgs
Investments
Trading secuniies ¥9,021 ¥653 ¥a46 ¥31  ¥(849) ¥9,302 ¥400
Derivauves, net
Commodity coniracts 24 24 ¥(24) 24 24
Total ¥9,045 ¥677 ¥446 ¥31  ¥(849) ¥(24) ¥9,326 ¥424

Milhons of U § Dollars

Net Realized/ Net Realized/ Change 1n
Unrealized Unreahzed Unrealized
Gams Gams (Losses) Gains (Losses)
Balance at  (Losses) Included in Other Redemptions Balance at  Sull Held
Beginming  Included Comprehensive and Endof  Recognized
March 31, 2013 of Year 1n Earmings  Income (Loss) Purchases  Sales  Settlements  Year in earnings
Investments
Trading secunties $96 58 $5 3 $100 §s
Dernivatives, net
Commedity contracts
Total 596 £8 85 (9 $100 $5

* Certain Level 3 denvatrve assets and habilines are netted 1n these tables for presentation purpeses only
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The investments classified in Level 3 are alternative investments, which are valued by the accounting personnel in the Group
Admumstration Department of the Parent who manage the investments or the accounting personnel 1n the subsidiary managing the
mvestment The mvestment 1s valued based on the net asset value per share of the investees which is obtamed by these personnel
The denvatives classified in Level 3 are the complex commodity derivative mstruments, which are vaiued by the accounting
personnel of the subsidiary managing the denivatives The denvative instruments are valued based on pricing information obtamned
from an external financial msttution All the valuations are reviewed quarterly by the accounting personnel and approved by the
managements of the Group Administration Department of the Parent or those 10 accounting depattment of the subsidiary

The valuation policies and procedures for the fair value measurements are decided and pertodically revised by the Corporate

Accounting Department

All gams and losses included in earnings are reported in “Gam on marketable securities and investments—net” for mvestments and
“Revenues” and “Cost of revenues from trading, manufacturing and other activities™ for derivative assets and habihues in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

Other comprehensive income (loss) related o investments are included in the “Foreign currency translation adjustments” in the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecummng Basis

The following tables present information regarding assets measured at fair value on nonrecurnng basts as a result of
other-than-temporary unpairments for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013

Millions of Yen

Fair Value
Measurement Total Gains
March 31, 2012 Amount Level | Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
Investments
Investments 1n Affiliated compames ¥29,543 ¥13,518 ¥16,025 ¥(19,008)
Cost method mvestments 3,440 3,440 (3,188)
Qther investments 92 ¥3 89 (103)
Total Investments ¥33,075 ¥13,518 ¥3 ¥19,554 ¥(22,299)
Fixed Assets ¥11,162 ¥11,162 ¥(9,043)
Millions of Yen
Fair Value
Measurement Total Gans
March 31,2013 Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 {Losses)
Other current assets
Real estate to sell ¥5,000 ¥5,000 ¥337
Investments
Investments 1n Affiliated compames ¥24.776 ¥24.776 ¥{6,576)
Cost method investments 15,906 15,906 (10,226)
Other investments 32 ¥10 22 28)
Total Investments ¥40,714 ¥10 ¥40,704 ¥(16,830)
Fixed Assets ¥32,019 ¥32,019 ¥(28.,001)
Milhons of U S Doliars
Fair Value
Measurement Total Gamns
March 31,2013 Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
Other current assets
Real estate to sell 553 $53 $(4
Investments
Investments in Affilated compames $264 5264 8(70)
Cost method investments 169 169 (109)
Other investments
Total Investments $433 $433 $(179)
Fixed Assets $341 $341 $(298)
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The fair value of the investments classified in Level 1 are determined using guoted prices in active markets

The fair value of the other current assets classified i Level 2 are valued based on the discounted future cash flow method

The farr value of the investments and fixed assets classified in Level 3 are valued by the accounting personnel m the Group
Adminsstration Department of the Parent who manage these assets or the accounting personnel 1n the subsidiary managing these
assets The mvestments are valued maunly based on the discounted future cash flow method with the use of unobservable inputs such
as future cash flows of the investees or transaction price The fixed assets are valued manly based op the independent appraisals or
the discounted future cash flow method

In each case, valuations are reviewed by the accounting personnel and approved by the management of the Group Administration
Department of the Parent or those m accounting department of the subsidiary

The valuation peheies and procedures for the fair value measurements are decided and penodically revised by the Corporate
Accounting Departrnent

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents information about valuaton techniques and unobservable mputs used for the major level 3 assets
measured at fair value by the sigmficant and unobservable mputs for the years ended March 31, 2013

Fair Value
Fair Value Milhions of Valuation
Millions of Yen U § Dollars Technmique Unobservable Input  Range

¥7,973 ggs Dseoumted o ntrate 3%

cash flow

Investments 1n nonmarketable secunties of

unaffiliated companies Discount rate 7%

¥1.503 $16 Discounted
’ cash flow Revenue growth 1
rate °

Property and equipment Discounted o

(Mineral nghts) ¥8,700 $63 cash flow Discount rate 11%
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13 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company, i the normal course of 1ts business, deals with various financial instruments The Company engages in operating
transactions with a sigmficant number of customers in a wide vanety of industries all over the world, and its recervables from and
guarantees to such parties are breadly diversified Consequently, in management’s opinion, no significant concentration of credit nsk
exists for the Company The Company manages credit risk of these financial instruments through credit line approvals by
management and by pertodically momtoring the counterparties based on the Company’s nsk management policy The Company
requires collateral to the extent considered necessary

The valuation methodology uvsed to determune fair value 15 discussed in Note 12 The following methods and assumptions were used
1o esumate the fair value of each class of finanaial instruments

Current Financial Assets other than Short-term Investments and Current Finaneial Liabiities—

The carrying amounts of these items approximate their fr values due to the relatively short matunties of these instruments See
“Assets and Liabihties Measured at Fair Value on a Recurming Basis” section of Note 12 for the valuation methodelogy of the farr
value of Level 2 mstruments which consist of debt securities classified as avarlable-for-sale secunities with original matuntes
within three months ircluded mn “Cash and cash equivalents™

Short-term Investments and Other [nvestments—

“Short-term nvestments” and “Other investments™ mclude investments in marketable secunties See Note 12 for the valuation
methodology of the fair value of these investments “Other tnvestments” also includes nonmarketable investments which are
composed of nonmarketable equity secunities, guarantee depostts and other miscellaneous mvestments It ts not practicable 1o
estimate therr fair values as there are a large number of mvestments of which the information to measure faur value 1s not readily
available However, the fair values of nonmarketable investments measured on a nonrecurring basis as a result of
other-than-temporary impairments are esimated using the valuation methodology of Level 3 instruments described in “Assets and
Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis™ section of Note 12

Noncurrent Notes, Loans, Accounts Receivable and Advances to Affihated Companres—

The fair values of these 1items are determined using a discounted cash flow model based on estimated future cash flows which
thcorporate the characteristics of the assets, including principal and contractual interest rates, and discount rates reflecting the
Company's assumptions related to credit spreads

Long-term Debt—

The fair values of the Company’s debt are esumated based on the present value of estimated future cash flows computed using
interest rates that are currently available to the Company for debt with simular terms and remaining matunities

Denvative Instriments-——
The fair values of derivative imstruments are estimated using the valuation methodology set forth 1n Note 12

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of financial tnstruments at March 31, 2012 and 2013 The fair
values of denvative mstruments are excluded from the table below as they are disclosed in Note 11

Millions of Yen Milhons of U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Carrying Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount  Farr Value Amount  Fair Value

Financial assets
Current financtal assets other than short-term
investments, net of allowance for doubtful
receivables ¥4,605,840 ¥4,605,840 ¥4,901,117 ¥4901,117 $52,140 $52,140
Short-term investments and other
nvestments, for which 1t 15
Practuicable to estimate fair value 995,268 995268 1,110,591 1,110,591 11,815 11,815
Not practicable to esumate fair valuye 438,643 413,810 4,402
Noncurrent notes, loans and accounts
recervable and advances to Affiliated
compames, net of allowance for doubtful
recervables 279,936 301,085 343,134 373,645 3,650 3,975

Financial habilites

Current financial hahlities 3,412,778 3,412,778 3475738 3,475,738 36,976 36,976
Long-term debt, mcluding current maturities,

and noncurrent trade payables, mciuded

“Other noncurrent habilihes™ 4,275,535 4,274,363 5,171,906 5,162,516 55,020 54920
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The fair values of each class of financial instruments are designated as Levels | through 3 based on the below

Current Financia} Assets other than Short-term Investments and Current Fmancaial Liabihties—

The carrymng amounts of these items approximate their fair values due to the relatively short maturities of these instruments 1If
measured at faur value, cash on hand and deposits would be designated as Level 1, and substantially all other itemns can be
determined based pnmanly on observable mputs and thus would be designated as Level 2

Short-term Investments and Other Investments—

Investments in marketable equity secuniies and debt secunties classified as available-for-sale secunties valued using quoted
market prices in active markets are designated as Level 1, investments valued usmg quoted prices for identical or sinmlar assets 1n
nonactive markets are designated as Level 2, and mvestments classified as trading secunties valued based on net asset value per
share of investees and nonmarketable investments measured on a nonrecurning basis as a result of other-than-temporary
impairments are designated as Level 3

The far values designated as Level 1, Level 2, Levetl 3 related to these wems at March 31, 2012 and 2013 are ¥926,417 mallion,
¥58,083 million, ¥10,768 mullion, and ¥1,024,674 mullion ($10,901 million), ¥60,709 million ($646 million), ¥25,268 million
{$268 million), respecuvely

Noncusrent Notes, Loans, Accounts Receivable and Advances to Affihated Compames—

The fair values to which unobservable inputs are significant to the entire measurement are designated as Level 3, and the fair
values to which unobservable mputs are not significant to the entire measurement are designated as Level 2

The fair values designated as Level 2, and Level 3 related to these items at March 31, 2012 and 2013 are ¥54,068 mullien,
¥247.017 milhon, and ¥60,415 mullion ($643 million), ¥313,230 million ($3,332 muthon), respectively

Long-term Debt—

The interest rates which are used 1n computing the present value of estimated future cash flow are based primanly on observable
inputs and thus the fair values of these ttems are designated as Level 2
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14 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Short-term debt at March 31, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the following

2012 2013 2013
Milhons Interest Millions Interest Millions of
of Yen Rate of Yen Rate U S Dollars
Bank loans ¥731,329 17% ¥590,193 17% $6,278
Commercial paper 155,102 08 209,790 04 2,232
Total ¥886,431 ¥76%,983 $8,510

The nterest rates represent weighted average rates on outstanding balances at March 31, 2012 and 2013
Assets pledged as collateral for short-term debt are disclosed in Note 9

Long-term debt at March 31, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the following

Milhions of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Long-term debt with collateral (Note 9)
Banks and insurance companies, matunng senally thorough 2034—oprincipally
0% to 1 9% as of March 31, 2013 ¥108,700 ¥92,273 $982
Government-owned banks and government agencies, maturing senally through
2023—pnncipally 0% to 2 9% as of March 31, 2013 5,893 4,876 52
Banks and insurance companes, maturing serially through 2023 (payable 1n foreign
currencies }—prncipally 0% to 4 9% as of March 31, 2013 15,481 48,824 519
Govemnment-owned banks and government agencies, matunng senally through 2013
{payable in foresgn currency }—prmcipatly 6% to 10 9% as of March 31, 2013 1,849 1,023 1
Japanese yen bonds
(floatng rate 0 44% to 2 35%, due 2018 as of March 31, 2013) 580 200 2
U S dollar bonds
(fixed rate 6 08%, due 2017 as of March 31, 2013) 4,513 4,643 49
Total ¥137,016 ¥151,839 31,615
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Millions of

Mithons of Yen US Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Long-term debt without collateral
Banks and insurance compames, matunng senally through 2033—prmcipally 0% to
1 9% as of March 31, 2013 ¥2,133,577  ¥2,204,320 $23,450
Govemnment-owned banks and government agencies, matiring senally through
2024—principaliy 0% to 1 9% as of March 31, 2013 231,357 193,972 2,064
Banks and insurance companies, maturng senally through 2029 {payable in foreign
currencies ) —principatly 0% 1o 2 9% as of March 31, 2013 437,572 835,551 8,889
Government-owned banks and government agencies, maturing senally through 2032
{payable i foreign currency}—pnncipally 0% to 1 9% as of March 31, 2013 91,876 383,039 4,075
Japanese yen callable bonds
{adjustable fixed rate 1 50%, due 2015 as of March 31, 2013) 10,000 10,000 106
Japanese yen bonds
{floating rate 0 21% to 2 11%, due 2013-2021 as of March 31, 2013) 200,000 200,000 2,128
Japanese yen bonds
(fixed rate 0 56% 1o 3 18%, due 2014-2022 as of March 31, 2013) 624,000 632,000 6,723
US dollar bonds
{fixed rate 1 88% to 2 75%, due 2015-2017 as of March 31, 2013) 123,285 211,613 2,251
Medium-term notes (payable 1n Japanese yen),
0 01% to 2 07%, due 2013-2022 as of March 31, 2013 64,420 80,495 856
Medpum-term notes (payable in U S dollars),
0 94%to 3 10 %, due 2014-2017 as of March 31, 2013 821 7,516 80
Medium-term notes (payable 1n Australian dollars),
6 00%, due 2013 as of March 31, 2042 1,705
Medium-term notes (payable in New Zealand dollars),
3 46%, due 2017 as of March 31, 2013 787 8
Commercial paper (payable 1o Japanese yen),
with average mterest rate of 0 10% as of March 31, 2013 75,000 95,000 1,01t
Total 3,993,613 4,854,293 51,641
Total long-term debt 4,130,629 5,006,132 53,256
Less unamortized 1ssue discount 672) (879 &)
Add adjustments to fair value under fair vaive hedge accounting 65,365 84,406 B9&
Total 4,95322 5,089,659 54,145
Less current maturities (435,349)  {590,006) (6,277)
Less adjustments to far value under farr value hedge accounting related to “current
maturities” 128 (570) (10)
Long-term debt, less current matunties ¥3.760,101 ¥4 498 683 $47.858

Annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2013, based on their contractual terms, are as follows, excluding the effect of

adjustments to fair value under fair value hedge accounting

Millions of
Millions of Yen S Dollars

Year ending March 31
2014 (mcluded m current habihities)
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019 and thereafter
Total

¥590,006 36,277
557,464 5,930
561,517 5,973
618,666 6,581
758,373 8,068

1,920,106 20,427

¥5,006,132 $53,256

The Company enters into interest rate swap and currency swap contracts for certain short-term and long-term debt to manage interest
rate and foreign currency exposure The effective interest rates taking the effect of such swap agreements into consideration are

principally based on the three month LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate)
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The Company mamtans lines of credit with vanous banks The short-term and long-term portions of unused hnes of credit,
including overdraft contracts and facilities discussed below, totaled ¥891,523 mallion and ¥408,812 miltion, respectively, at March
31, 2012, and ¥882,648 mullion ($9,390 mulhon) and ¥663,567 mullion ($7,059 million), respectively, at March 31, 2013

The Imes of credit include Japanese yen facilities of ¥510,000 milhon ($5,426 milhon) held by the Parent and ¥90,000 mullion ($957
mullton) held by a domestic subsidiary, and foreign currency facilitzes for major currencies of $1,000 million and for soft currencies
of $300 nullion held by the Parent and foreign subsidianes at March 31, 2013 The Parent and the subsidianes compensate banks for
these facilities 1n the form of commtment fees, which were msigmficant in each of the past three years Certain commitment fees on
these facilines are based on the Parent's credit raung The Parent and the subsidianies are required to comply with certain financaal
covenants to maintain these facilities

The Parent utihzes 1ts long-tetm portions of unused lines of credit, discussed above, totaling ¥410,000 milhon which terminate in
December 2017, to support the Parent's commercial paper program The commercial paper program 1s used to fund working capital
and other general corporate requirements as needed The outstanding commercial paper of ¥75,000 mullion at March 31, 2012 and
¥95,000 miHion (81,011 mllion) at March 31, 2013 was classified as long-term debt on the consohdated balance sheets since the
Parent has the intent and ability to refinance these borrowings on a long-term basis through continued commercial paper borrowings,
supported by the available lines of credit.

Substantially all of the short-term and long-term loans from banks are made under agreements which, as 1s customary 1 Japan, allow
banks, under certain conditions, to require the Company to previde collateral (or additional collateral) or guarantors with respect to
the loans, and to treat any collateral, whether furmshed as secunity for short-term or Jong-term loans or otherwase, as collateral for all
indebtedness to such bank Certamn agreements relating to long-term bank loans allow the banks to require the Company to submat
proposals as to the payment of dividends and other appropriations of earnings for the banks' review and approval before presentation
to the shareholders Default provisions of certain loan agreements grant certain priority nghis of assets to the banks Under certain
agreements, principally with government-owned financial institutions, the borrower 15 required, upon request of the lender, to reduce
outstanding loans before scheduled maturity dates when the lender considers that the Company 15 able to reduce such loans through
mcreased earnings or by addittonal cash flow raised through stock 1ssuances or bond offerings Durmg the years ended March 31,
2012 and 2013, the Company did not receive any request of the kind described above and does not expect that any such request will
be recerved
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15 INCOME TAXES

Income taxes in Japan apphicable to the Company, imposed by the national, prefectural and municipal governments, in the aggregate,
resulted 1n a statutory income tax rate of approximately 41% for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012, 38% for the year ended
March 31, 2013 New corporate tax laws of "Partial revision of come tax law, etc 1n response to the changing econormue structure”
and "Special measures to reconstruction fundng after the Great East Japan Earthquake™ were enacted on November 30, 2011 Asa
result, the statutory income tax rate of 41% as of March 31, 2012 was reduced to 38% effective Apnl 1, 2012 through the end of the
fiscal year 2014 and will be reduced further 10 36% thereafier Adjustment of deferred tax assets and habilities in relabon 10 enacied
tax laws decreased income taxes and increased net income attributable to Mitsubishi Corporation by ¥2,919 milhion ($36 million) for
the year ended March 31, 2012 Foreign subsidiaries are subject to income taxes of the countnes m which they operate

On March 29, 2012, the Minerals Resource Rent Tax Act 2012 (MRRT) was enacted (,m Australia Under the MRRT, the Company 1s
hable to pay taxes equal to the sum of its MRRT habilities on mining profits made from extractive taxable resources for a mining
project interest for a year Mining profit consists of mining revenue less muning expenditure, and 1s also reduced by allowances One
of the allowances 15 the starting base allowance MRRT allows entities to elect the market value approach and remeasure the tax
bas:s of the starting base assets at fair value and depreciate or amortize the excess of market value over carrying value as deductible
allowance from mining profit i the future years as the starting base allowance Starting base assets consist of property or a legal or
equitable right relating to a rmning projectinterest To deterrnine the amount of starting base assets the Company plans to elect
market value approach, resulting 10 a temporary difference between the accounting and tax basis of the relative assets The Company
recognized deferred tax assets for the temporary difference On the other hand, because the royalty allowance and other vanous
allowances under the MRRT are prescnibed to be preferentially applied rather than the starting base allowance, 1t 18 more hkely than
not that the starting base allowance will not be used i the future at present forecast and a valuation allowance was provided agamnst
the deferred tax assets recognized upon enactment of the MRRT The valuaton allowance was also provided against the entire
amount of deferred tax assets which fluctuated after the enactment of the MRRT Therefore, unpact of the MRRT 1s not mncluded ina
reconcihation of the combined statutory income tax rates to the effective income tax rates as the net unpact on income taxes was
zero

A reconcihation of the combined statutory income tax rates applied to ncome before ncome taxes and equity in eammngs of
Affiliated companies and other for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 to the effective income tax rates on mcome before

mncome taxes and equity in eamngs of Affihated compames and other reflected 11 the accompanying consolidated statements was as
follows

2011 2012 2013

Combined statutory mncorme tax rate apphed to income before income taxes and

equty in earmngs of Affilated companies and other 41 (% 41 0% 313 0%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 08 09 10
Changes 10 valuation allowance 15 05 25
Tax benefits recognized for accumulated losses of certain subsidianes (1o on on
Lower income tax rates 1n certain foreign countnes (70) 69) 57
Tax effects on undistributed earmings of Affihated companzes 04 14 (1 6}
Effect of taxation on dividends 13 02 {0 5}
Tax assessments 06 06 01
Other—net 01) 00 co
Effective income tax rate on income beforg income taxes and equity in eamings of

Affihated companies and other 37 5% 370% 337%

Amounts provided for income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were allocated as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen US Dollars

2011 2012 2013 2013
Income taxes ¥198,680 ¥168,330 ¥113,486 $1,207
Other comprehensive {loss) income (26,787) (40,335} 56,218 598
Total mcome tax expense ¥171,893 ¥127,995 ¥169,704 $1,805
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Significant components of deferred tax assets and labilities at March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Milhons of Yen U § Doilars
2012 2013 2013
Assets
Allowance for doubtful receivables ¥12,583 ¥12,299 $131
Pension and severance 25456 28,664 305
Property and equipment 185,738 260,776 2,774
Investments 86,092 70,112 746
Net operating loss carryforwards 49,701 76,830 817
Other accrued expenses 22,637 23,645 252
Other 53,249 64,130 682
Gross deferred tax assets 435,456 536,456 5,707
Less valuation ailowance (216,592) {284,729) (3,029)
Deferred tax assets—less valuation allowance 218,864 251,727 2,678
Liabilities
Depreciation 103,489 119,727 1,274
Investments 170,947 220,382 2,344
Property and equipment 38,528 29,095 310
Pension and severance 1,833 1,895 20
Other 29,357 46,928 499
Gross deferred tax Liabihities 344 154 418,027 4,447
Net deferred tax liabilihies ¥(125,290)  ¥{(166,300) $(1,769)

A valuation allowance 15 established to reduce certain deferred tax assets related to deductible temporary differences and net
operating loss carryforwards where 1t 15 more-likely-than-not that they will not be realized The total valuation allowance decreased
by ¥2,135 milhon for the year ended March 31, 2011, increased by ¥170,800 million for the year ended March 31, 2012, and
increased by ¥68,137 mullion (37235 mullion) for the year ended March 31, 2013 The deferred tax assets (Property and equipment)
recorded as a result of MRRT at March 31, 2012 and 2013 were ¥161,993 million and ¥222,403 million, respectively A
comresponding valuation allowance was established for the entire amount of deferred tax assets recorded at March 31,2012 and 2013

Net deferred tax liabilities included 1n the consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Milhons of

Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Current assets—Deferred income taxes ¥45,780 ¥62,135 3661
Other assets 30,550 37,461 399
Other current habilities (2,569) (1,280) (14)
Noncurrent habilities—Deferred income laxes {199,051) (264,616) (2,815)
Net deferred tax habilites ¥(125.290)  ¥(166,300) $(1,769)

No provision for income taxes is recognized for the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries where the Parent considers that such
earnings are not expected to be remutted in the foreseeable future At March 31, 2012 and 2013, the amount of undistnbuted earnings
of subsidianes on which a deferred tax hability has not been recogmized 1n the accompanying eonsolidated financial statements
aggregated ¥1,133,918 mmilion and ¥1,286,009 million ($13,681 million), respectively Determination of the deferred tax hablity
related to the undistnbuted earnings of foreign subsidiaries 1s not practicable
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At March 31, 2013, the Company had aggregate operating loss carryforwards of ¥284,054 mithion ($3,022 million) which may be

used as a deductzon i the determination of taxable income 1n future periods If not utilized, such loss carryforwards expire as

follows

Mithons of
Milhonsof Yen U S Dollars

Year ending March 31
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
20195 through 2023
2024 through 2028
2029 and thereafler

Total

The following table presents components of income before income taxes and equity in earmings of Affiliated companies and other

and income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013
Millions of Yen

¥3,206 $34
3,873 41
1,842 20
3,136 33
7,925 84
35,929 382
4,663 50
223,480 2,378
¥284,054 $3,022

Milhons of U S Dollars

The Parent
and Its
Domestic Foreign

The Parent
and Its
Domestic Foreign

Subsidianies Subsidiaries Total Subsidianes Subsidiaries Total
Year ended March 31, 2011
Income before income taxes and equity
m earmings of Affilated companies and
other ¥153 481 ¥376,624  ¥530,105
Income taxes—Current (77,324) (91,257) (168,581)
Income taxes—Deferred {20,423) (9.676) (30,099)
Income taxes——Total ¥(97,747) ¥100,933) ¥(198,680)
Year ended March 31, 2012
Income before income taxes and equity
in earnings of Affiliated companies and
other ¥180,291 ¥274,417 ¥454,708
Income taxes—Current (56,226) (74,325) (130,551)
Income taxes—Deferred (41,388) 3,609 (37,779
Income taxes—Total ¥(97,614) ¥70,716) ¥{168,330)
Year ended March 31, 2013
Income before income taxes and equity
i earnings of Affilhated companies and
other ¥195,979 ¥141,227 ¥337206 $2,085 $1,502 $3,587
Income taxes—Current (82,253) (38,299) (120,552) (875) (407} (1,282)
Income taxes—Deferred (8,466) 15,532 7,066 (90) 165 75
Income taxes—Total ¥(90,719)  ¥(22,767) ¥(113,436) $(965) 5(242) $(1,207)
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A reconcihation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits 1s as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U 8 Doilars
2012 2013 2013
Balance at beginning of year ¥7,268 ¥4,481 348
Additions for tax positions of the current year
Additions for tax posttions of pnior years 1,431 194 2
Reductions for tax posiions of prior years (315)
Settlements (3.895) (4,439) 47
Other (8) 3
Balance at end of year ¥4.,481 ¥239 53

The amounts of unrecognized tax benefits at March 31, 2012 and 2013 that would affect the effective tax rate, 1f recognized, were

¥4,481 milhon and ¥239 million ($3 mullion), respectively

The Company does not behieve 1t 1s reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will sigmificantly mcrease

or decrease during the next twelve months

The Company recogmzes interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax posiions as a compenent of income taxes 1n the

consoldated statements of income For the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, mterest and penalties recognized as a component
of accrued income taxes and other long-termn lhiabilities 1n the consolidated balance sheets and as a component of 1ncome taxes in the

consolidated statements of income were not matenal

The Company files income tax returns 1n Japan and various foreign tax junsdictions In Japan, regular examinations by tax

authonties have been substantally completed for years before 2010 As of March 31, 2013, the earliest tax years that remain subject
to examinaton by major tax jurisdictions m which the compantes operate are the year ended March 31, 2007 for Japan and the year

ended March 31, 2009 for Austrahia.
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16 ACCRUED PENSION AND SEVERANCE LIABILITIES

The Parent and certam subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans covering substantially ail employees other than directors The
primary defined benefit pension plans are the Corporate Pension Funds under the Defined Benefit Corporate Pension Law The
benefits for these plans are based upon years of service, compensation at the time of severance and other factors

From April 2006, the Parent has started to convert certain portions of the Corporate Pension Funds into a defined contribution plan i

phases

In addition to the pension plans, most of the domestic subsidiaries have unfunded severance indemnity plans under which thewr
employees, other than directors, are entitled, under most circumstances, to lump-sum severance indemnities upon mandatory
retirement at normal retirement age or earlier termination of employment The benefits for these plans are based upon years of

service, compensation at the time of severance and other factors

The Company uses a March 31 measurement date for the pension plans

The following table sets forth the reconcihation of benefit obligation, plan assets and the funded status of the plans

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Change n benefit obhgation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ¥438,153 ¥448,248 $4,769
Service cost 12418 12,715 135
Interest cost 10,840 10,872 116
Employee contributions 190 194 2
Plan amendments 1,601 17
Actuanal loss 8,717 53,540 569
Benefits paid (20,825) (20,532) (219)
Settlements and curtailments (3,016) (2,468) (26)
Acguisitons/divestitures and other—net 2,347 5,337 57
Change in foreign currency exchange rates (576) 5,324 57
Benefit obligation at end of year 448,248 514,831 5,477
Change 1n plan assets
Fair vajue of plan assets at beginning of year 415,510 427,487 4,548
Actual gain on plan assets 11,104 41,430 441
Employer contrnibutions 18,132 26,042 277
Employee contributions 190 194 2
Benefits paid (16,417 (16,130) (172)
Settlements (2,931) (2,494) @n
Acqusittons/divestitures and other—net 2,051 2,978 32
Change m foreign currency exchange rates (552) 4,431 47
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 427 487 483,938 5,148
Funded status at end of year ¥(20,761) ¥(30,893) $(329)
Amounts recognized n the consolidated balance sheets consist of
Prepaid penston cost included in other current assets and other assets ¥29,354 ¥24,996 $266
Other acerued expenses (956) (1,150} (12)
Accrued pension hability (49,159) (54,739) (583)
Net amount recogmzed ¥(20.761) ¥(30,893) $(329)
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The following table presents the pre-tax net loss and prior service cost recognized 1n AOCI for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013

Milhons of
Mitlions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Net loss ¥125,693) ¥(122,17%) ¥{137,097) $(1,458)
Prior service cost (3,465) (3,067) (4,433) 47
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ¥(129,158) ¥(125,242) ¥(141,530) $(1,505)

Net periodic pension costs related to the Company's pension and nndemnity plans for the years ended March 31,2011, 2012 and 2013
mclude the following components

Millions of
Muilhions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013

Service cost—benefits carned dunng the penod ¥12,227 ¥12,418 ¥12,715 $135
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 11,041 10,840 10,872 116
Expected return on plan assets (7,228) (7,489) (8,058) {86)
Recogmzed net actuanal loss 7,566 7,903 7,126 76
Amortization of unrecogmzed prior service cost 369 3N 465 5
Settlement and curtailment loss 1,006 1,034 837 9
Net penodic pension cost ¥24.981 ¥25,097 ¥23.957 $255

Other changes 1n plan assets and benefit obhigation recognized 1n other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2011,
2012 and 2013 were as follows

Milhons of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013

Current year actuartal loss ¥6,965 ¥5,419 ¥22,885 $243
Recognized net actuanal loss {7,566) {7,903) (7,126) (76)
Settlement and curtailment loss (1,006) (1,034) (837 %
Prior service cost due 1o amendments 2 (7) 1,831 20
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost (369) (391) (465) 5
Total recognized 1n other comprehensive income ¥(1,755) ¥(3,916) 16,288 $173

The followmng table presents the estimated net loss and prior service cost that will be amoertized from AOCI 1nto net penodic cost for
the year ending March 31, 2014

Millions of
Millionsof Yen U S Dollars

2014 2014
Net loss ¥7.349 578
Pnor service cost 536 6
Total ¥7.885 $84

The total accumulated benefit obligation for the Company's defined benefit pension plans was ¥415,296 million and ¥478,630
million (85,092 million) as of March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively

The aggregate projected benefit obligation, aggregate accumulated benefit obligation and aggregate fair value of plan assets where
accumulated benefit obligauions exceeded plan assets as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars

2012 2013 2013
Aggregate projected benefit obhigation ¥931362 ¥103,104 $1,097
Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation 82,631 96,718 1,029
Aggregate fair value of plan assets 47,124 50,931 542
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Plan Assets
The Company's investment policy for their defined benefit pension plans 1s to procure an adequate return to provide future payments

of pension benefits over the Jong term by optimizing nisk tolerance and formulating a well-diversified portfolio such as equity
securnnes, debt secunites and alternatyve assets

Considering the funded status of the pension plans and swrrounding economic environment for mvestments, the Company's
mvestment strategy may be revised as needed Moreover, the Company continuously momtors and pays extra attention to the
diversification of strategies and investment managers for the purpose of nsk control and thereby pursues efficient nsk management.

Recogmazing the strong uncertanity of the market environment continuing from the previous year, the investment policy of the Parent,
which benefit pension plan assets account for substantial parts of the Company's benefit pension plan assets, for the year ending
March 31, 2014 1s 10 1nvest 1n a conservative portfolio The Parent’s target asset allocations as of March 31, 2013, excluding the
employee pension trust which pnmanly consists of equity secunties, are 20% equity securities, 50% debt secunties, 20% alternative
investments and 10% cash and cash equivalents

The farr values of the benefit pension plan assets of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, by asset category are
as follows The three tevels of input used to measure fair value are described in Note 2

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity secunities”'

Japanese equity securihies ¥110,507 ¥16,942 ¥127.449

Global equity securities 13,285 32,265 45,550
Debt secunties’

Japanese debt securities 84,706 84,706

Global debt secunties 6,169 78,118 ¥4,249 88,536
Hedge funds 14 16,312 16,326
Private equity funds 5,192 5,192
Real estate funds 3,424 3,424
Life msurance company accounts > 14,901 2,615 17,516
Cash and cash equivalents 31814 31,814
Other assets”* 207 6,767 6,974

Total ¥129,961 ¥258,967 ¥38,559 ¥427,487

Millions of Yen

March 31,2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity secunties’

Japanese equity securities ¥131,637 ¥18,778 ¥150,415

Global equity secunties 17,391 39,683 57.074
Debt securiies™

Japanese debt securities 304 7,098 7,402

Global debt secunues 8,239 117,120 ¥9,602 134,961
Hedge funds 13,496 13,496
Pnvate equity funds 4,588 4 588
Real estate funds 22 1,983 2,005
Life insurance company accounts 22,274 2,798 25,072
Cash and cash eqmvalents 80,895 80,895
Other assets™ 910 7,120 2,030

Total ¥157,571 ¥286,780 ¥39,587 ¥483,938
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Millions of U § Dollars

March 31, 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity secuntses™'

Japanese equity secunties $1,400 $200 $1,600

Global equity securities 185 422 607
Debt secunties ™

Japanese debt securitres 3 76 79

Global debt securities 88 1,246 $102 1,436
Hedge funds 144 144
Private equity funds 45 49
Real estate funds 21 21
Life insurance company accounts’’ 237 30 267
Cash and cash equivalents 860 860
Other assets™ 10 75 85

Total $1,676 $3,051 $421 $5.148

*1 Both Japanese equitics and Global equities include the form of fund umits Global equities include 2 mixture of Japancse and non-Japanese equities which are
held m the form of fund unts

*2 Both Japanese debt securitics and Global debt secunties include the form of fund umts Global debi secunties include a mixture of Japanese and
non-Japanese debt secunties which are held in the form of fund umts

*3 Life insurance company accounts consist of investments m hife insurance company general accounts and special accounts General accounts are guarantesd
for pnncipal amount and mterest rate by ltfe insurance companies while special accounts are not guaranteed for their investment return

*4 Other assets pnneipally mclude Collateralized Loan Obligation Funds and Infrastructure Funds

Level 1 assets are comprised principally of equity securnitres, which are valued using quoted market pnices n active markets

Level 2 assets are compnsed primcipally of equity secunties and debt securities which are held 1n the form of fund units These assets
are valued using thewr net asset values (NAV) per share that are calculated by the admimstrator of the fund The NAV per share 15
based on the value of the undertying assets that are traded principally 1n the active market, mmus habilities and dividends by the
number of shares Investment in life insurance company accounts are valued by aggregation of thewr underiying assets that are traded
in the active market

Level 3 assets, consisting principally of hedge funds and private equity funds are valued based on the NAV per share ysing
unobservable mputs, and these investments are not redeemable or redemption dates of these investments are undetermimed, at March
31, 2013

The changes in Level 3 assets for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows
Mithions of Yen

Balance, Netrealized/ Purchases, Transfersin Balance,
Beginning  Unreahized salesand  and/or out End of
March 31, 2012 of Year gans (losses) settlements of Level 3 Other* Year
Debt secunties
Global debt securities ¥2.604 ¥364 ¥1,047 ¥234 ¥4.249
Hedge funds 4,307 59 11,746 16,312
Private equity funds 4,744 428 20 5,192
Real estate funds 1,181 233 2,000 3,424
Life msurance company accounts 2,444 130 126 (85) 2,615
Other assets 7,963 343 (1,664) 125 6,767
Total ¥23.453 ¥1,557 ¥13,275 ¥274 ¥38,559
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Millions of Yen

Balance, Netrealized/ Purchases, Transfers in Balance,
Beginming  Unrealized salesand  and/orout End of
March 31, 2013 of Year gamns (Josses) settlements of Level 3 Other* Year
Debt secunities
Global debt secunties ¥4,249 ¥852 ¥4.223 ¥105 ¥173 ¥9,602
Hedge funds 16,312 7 (3,533) 13,496
Private equity funds 5,192 91 (695) 4,588
Real estate finds 3,424 148 (1,589) 1,983
Life msurance company accounts 2,615 54 214 (428) 343 2,798
Other assets 6,767 2,127 {1,639) (81) 54 7,120
Total ¥38,559 ¥3989 ¥(3,019) ¥(404) ¥462 ¥39,587
Miillions of U 8 Dollars
Balance, Netrealized/ Purchases, Transfers in Balance,
Beginning Unrealized sales and  and/or out End of
March 31, 2013 of Year gams (losses) settlements of Level 3 Other* Year
Debt securities
Global debt securities 545 $9 545 $1 52 5102
Hedge funds 174 8 (38) 144
Private equity funds 55 1 (N 49
Real estate funds 36 2 (17 21
Life msurance company accounts 28 1 2 (5) 4 30
Other assets 72 21 (17) ) 75
Total $410 $42 $(32) $(4) $5 $421

* "Other” includes the effect of changes 1n foreign currency exchange rates

Assumptions
The weighted average assumpnons used to deterrmne benefit obhgations a1 March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

2012 2013
Weaghted average discount rate 26% 18%
Average rate of increase i future compensation levels 26 26

The werghted average assumpticns used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013
were as follows

2011 2012 2013
Weighted average discount rate 27% 2 7% 2 6%
Average rate of iIncrease 1n future compensaton levels 26 25 26
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 26 25 25

The Company determines assumptons for the expected long-tern return on plan assets considering the imvestment policy, the
historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term investment returns
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Contributtons

The Company’s funding policy 1s mamnly to contribute an amount deductible for income tax purpoeses Contnbutions are intended to
provide not only for benefits atiributable to service to date, but also for those expected to be earned 1n the future

The Company expects to contnbute approximately ¥13,000 miflion ($138 milhion) to its defined benefit pension plans during the
year ending March 31, 2014

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

Esumated future benefit payments are as follows

Millions of
Miiliens of Yen UJ S Dollars

Years ending March 31

2014 ¥23,768 $253
2015 24,317 259
2016 24,104 256
2017 25,098 267
2018 25,157 268
2019 through 2023 122,968 1,308

Defined Contnbution Plans

The Parent and certamn substdianes have defined contnbution plans The expenses related to these defined contributton plans were
¥2,307 millron, ¥2,415 mllion and ¥3,378 muliion ($36 miilion) for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively

Early Retirement Program

The Parent has offered an early retirernent program to s employees At March 31, 2012 and 2013, the hability for applicants to the
program, discounted to reflect the present value of the expected cash flows, was ¥3,305 million and ¥3,036 mullion ($32 mulkion),
respectively Current and noncurrent portion of such hability ss included 1n “Other accrued expenses™ and 1 “Accrued pension and
severance liabithties™ in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, respectively, depending on when the additional benefit
payment 1s expected to be made Related expenses recogmzed by the Parent for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013,
mchuded m “Selling, general and admintstrative expenses™ in the accompanying consolidated statements of mcome, were ¥1,079
mzll:on, ¥658 milhon and ¥85% malhion ($9 million), respectively
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17 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Company accounts for asset retirement obligations (“AROs™), consisting pnmarily of costs associated with mine reclamation,

landfiils and dismantlement of facilities These are related to legal obligations associated with the normal operation of the Company's
coal mining and o1l and gas facilities

These habiiities are included in “Other cwrent habilities” and “Other noncwrent habilities” in the consohidated balance sheets

The changes in the camrying amount of AROs for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 wese as follows

Milhons of
Millions of Yen U § Dollars
2012 2013 2013

Balance at beginning of year ¥63,941 ¥70,781 $753
Accretion expense 4,416 4,061 43
Liabilities settled (4,875) (2,810) 30
Liabilies incurred 8,463 13,203 141
Revisions in estimated cash flow (267) (1,160) (12)
Change 1n foreign currency exchange rates (857) 9,707 103
Balance at end of year ¥70,781 ¥93,782 $998

-8 -




18 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock—

The Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act™) requires in pninciple that the ameunt of payment for shares and assets delivered
shall be the amount of common stock However, the Compames Act permits, as an exception, that an amount not exceeding 50% of
such amount of payment and assets 15 able to be mncorporated mto additional patd-in capital

Additional Pard-in Capital and Retamed Earnmgs—
The Compames Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends from retained earmnings to be paid shall be appropnated and set
aside as legal reserve until the total of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve amounts to 25% of the common stock amount

The Companies Act provides that subject to certain conditions, such as a resolution at a shareholders’ meeting, a company may
transfer amounts between common stock, reserves and surplus

The effects of changes in the Parent’s ownership mterest in its subsidiary on the Parent’s equity for the years ended March 31, 2011,
2012 and 2013 were as follows

Mithons of
Milhons of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013

Net meome atiributable to Mitsubishy Corporation ¥464 543 ¥457 344 ¥360,028 $3,830
Increase 1n additional paid-in capital for purchases or sales of certamn

subsidiaries’ comumon shares 1,002 4,591 585 6
Change from net income attnibutable to Mitsubishi Corporation and

transfers to noncontroliing interest ¥465,545 ¥456935 ¥360,613 $3,836

Dividends—-

Under the Companies Act, the total amount for dividends and acquisition or purchase of treasury stock may not exceed the
distributable amount of the Parent which 1s calculated based on the amount of the retained earnings recorded in the Parent’s general
books of accounts mamntained mn accordance with accounting principies generaily accepted 1n Japan The adjustments to the
consohdated financial staternents to conform with U S GAAP have no effect on the deternmnation of the disinbutable amount under
the Companies Act The distributable amount under the Companies Act was ¥1,530,094 million ($16,278 mullion) as of March 31,
2013 The distnbutable amount may fluctuate until the effective date for the distnbution of dividends as a result of, for example,
subsequent purchases of treasury stocks

The Companies Act allows for the payment of dividends at any ume dunng the fiscal year upon resolution at a shareholders” meeting
Furthermore, the Parent 1s also allowed to distnbute a semiannual interim dividend by resolution of the Board of Directors

In the accompanyng consohdated statements of equity, dividends and appropriations to the legal reserve shown for each year
represent dividends pard out dunng the year and the appropnation to the legal reserve made in relation to the respecuve dividends

Purchase of Treasury Stock—

The Compamnes Act allows Japanese companies to purchase and hold treasury stock. Japanese companies are allowed o decide the
number, amount and others of the treasury stock to be acquired, not exceeding the amount available for distribution, upon resoiution
at the shareholders’ meeting The Compames Act allows the Japanese companies to purchase treasury stock through market
transactions or tender offer by resolution of the Board of Directors, as far as 1t 1s allowed under the Articles of Incorporation, subject
to limitations imposed by the Companies Act

At the ordinary general meeting of shareholders held on June 24, 2004, it was approved that the Parent amended the Articles of
Incorporation to entitle the Board of Directors to purchase outstanding shares of the Company’s treasury stock by its resolutions

In the year ended March 2012, the Parent retired treasury stock (45 mithon shares) subject to approval of the Board of Directors As
a result, additional pard-in capital decreased by ¥9 mmthion, unappropriated retained earmings decreased by ¥128,601 mullion and
treasury stock decreased by ¥128,610 mithion The retirement of treasury stock did not affect total Mitsubishi Corporaton
shareholders' equity
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19 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income attnbutable to Mitsubishy Corporation for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the
followng

Millions of
Milhoens of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Net income attnbutable to Mitsubishi Corporation ¥464,543  ¥452,344  ¥360,028 $3,830
Other comprehensive (loss) income aftnbutable to Mitsubishi
Corporation
Net unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale securities (Note 5)
Net unrealized holding (losses) gains duning the year (23,769) (16,345) 141,337 1,504
Reclassification adjustments for net gains included mn net income
attributable to Mitsubish: Corporation (19,763) (7,246) (26,246) (280)
Net change during the year (43,532) (23,591) 115,091 1,224
Income tax benefit (expense) (Note 15) 19,027 17,161 (40,006) (425)
Total (24,505) (6,430) 75,085 799
Nei unrealized gamns {losses) on denvatives (Note 11)
Net unrealized gans (Josses) dunng the year 44,018 (10,724) 9,560 102
Reclassificabion adjustments for pet gains included n net income
attnbutable to Mitsubisht Corporation {27,054y {36,821) (3,311) 36)
Net change dunng the year 16,964 {47.545) 6,249 66
Income tax (expense) benefit (Note 15) (4,519} 14,758 (2,584) 270
Total 12,445 32,787 3,665 39
Defined benefit pension plans (Note 16)
Net unrealized losses dunng the year (7,081) {6,008) (23,238} (247
Reclassification adjustments for net losses included in net moome
attnbutable to Mitsubish: Corporation 8,892 9,236 3,286 88
Net change dunng the year 1,811 3,228 (14,952) (159)
Income tax {expense) benefit (Note 15) (978) (1,977 5,368 57
Total 833 1,251 (5,584) (102)
Forewgn currency translation adjustments
Translation adjustments duning the year (87,853) (45,322) 353,929 3,765
Reclassification adyjustments for net losses included in net income
attnbutable to Mitsubishi Corporation 3,134 4,196 1,252 14
Net change dunng the year (84,719) (41,126) 355,181 3,779
Income tax benefit (expense) (Note 15} 13,257 10,393 (18,996) (203)
Total (71,462) (30,733) 336,185 3,576
Total othet comprehensive (loss) income attnbutable to
Mitsubishs Corporation (82,689) (68,699) 405,351 4,312
Comprehensive income attributable 10 Mitsubishi Corporation ¥3IR1,854 Y383 645  ¥T765379 $8,142
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20 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Reconailiavons of the basic and diluted net income atinbutable to Mitsubishy Corporation per share are as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Numerator
Net income attributable to Mitsubishi1 Corporation ¥464,543 ¥452,344 ¥360,028 $3,830
Thousands of Shares
2011 2012 2013
Denominator
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 1,643,687 1,645,406 1,646,519
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 3,610 3,527 3,649
Japanese ven convertible bond 762 134
Diluted outstanding shares 1,648,059 1,649,068 1,650,169
Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Per share amount
Basic ¥282 62 ¥274 91 ¥218 66 §233
Daluted 281 87 274 30 21818 232
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21 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterpnise that engages in business activities from which revenue may be
earned and expenses mcurred for which discrete financial information 1s available that 1s evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker 1n deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance

The operating segments were determined based on the nature of the products and services offered The Company’s reportable
operating segments censist of the following six business groups

Industral Finance, Logistcs & Development—
The Industrial Finance, Logistics & Development Group 1s developng shosha-type industrial finance businesses These include

asset management businesses, buyout investment businesses, leasing businesses, real estate development and finance businesses,
and logistics services

Energy Business—

The Energy Business Group conducts o1l and gas exploration, development and production (E&P) business, investment in
hiquefied natural gas (LNG) liquefaction projects, and sales of crude o1l, petroleum products, carbon tmatenals and products,
LNG, and hquefied petroleum gas (L.PG) and so forth

Metals-—
The Metals Group trades, develops businesses and mnvests 1 a range of fields These include steel products such as steel sheets

and thick plates, steel raw materaals such as coking coal and 1ron ore, and non-ferrous raw materials and products such as copper
and aluminum

Machinery—

The Machinery Group engages in sales, finance and logystics for machinery across many different sectors, in which it also invests
These ficlds range from large-scale plants for production of natural gas, petroleum, chemtcals or steel, to marine, automotive and
other transpon equipment, as well as aerospace-related equipment, muning equipment, construction machinery, indusinal
equipment and elevating machines

Chemcals—
The Chemucals Group trades chemical products in a broad range of fields, 1 which it also develops businesses and 1nvests These
fields extend from raw materials used in industrial products such as ethylene, methanol and salt produced from crude oil, natural

gas, minerals, plants, manne resources and so forth, to plastics, electronic matertals, food mgredients, fertilizer and fine
chemucals

Living Essentials—
The Living Essentials Group provides products and services, develops businesses and invests in vanous fields closely linked with

people’s lives, including food products and food, texules, essential supplies, healthcare, distribution and retail These fields
extend from the procurement of raw matenals to the consumer market

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those desenibed 1n the summary of significant accounting policies
except that the disapgregated financial nformation has been prepared using a2 management approach, in which management
internally disaggregates financial information for the purpose of assisting 1n making internal operating decisions Management
evaluates segment performance based on several factors, of which the primary financial measure 15 net income (Joss) atiributable to
Mitsubishs Corporation

Intersegment transactions are priced with reference to prices apphcable to transactions wath unaffihiated parties
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The Company’s operating segment mformation at and for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was as follows

Mllions of Yen
Industnal
Finance, Adjustments
Logistics & Energy Living and
201] Development  Business Memls  Machinery Chemials  Essentials Total Other  Ehmunabions Consohdated
Revenues ¥90,051 ¥1,248912  ¥834.812  ¥662,899  ¥B03,702 ¥1,525,834 ¥5166210 ¥51288  ¥(10,625) ¥5206,873
Gross profit 44,546 43,798 326,281 167,179 84,180 456,783 1,122,767 37,760 (10,625} 1,145,902
Equity in eamings of
Affiliated companies
and other 8,892 55,720 41880 18,554 14,688 23,308 163,042 6,370 (2.410) 167,002
Net income (loss)
attnbutable 10 Matsubish
Corporation 11,062 94,007 231,468 59,077 29,117 46,260 470,991 (11374) 4,926 464,543
Scgment assets 789,062 1279639 3,030,266 1,571,527 708,598 2,183,855 9,562,947 2,568,927 (859,099 11,272,775
Investments in Affiltated
companics 132,400 194,843 244,398 157,952 105,098 337,389 1,172,080 107,805 1,553 1,281,438
Depreciation and
amortzation 19,413 18,732 37 681 18,826 3,651 28,273 126,576 17,243 143,819
Caputal expenditures for
long-lved asscts 41,701 38418 68,086 22,545 4,483 25,839 201,072 9,203 210,275
Operating transactions
External customers ¥147,639 ¥3B60,109 4407057 ¥2,377558 ¥2,019272 ¥5306,i56 ¥18,117791 ¥1,242,162 ¥(126,510)¥19.233,443
Intersegment 21,617 14,047 1,760 5,065 8,096 7451 58,036 28,551 {86,587)
Total ¥169,256 ¥3,874,156 ¥4,408817 ¥2,382,623 ¥2027368 ¥5313,607 ¥18,175,827 ¥1.270,713  ¥(213,097)¥19,233,443
Milliens of Yen
Industmal
Finance, Adjustments
Logistics & Energy Laving and
2012 Developmen:  Busmess Metals ~ Machinery Chemicals  Essenfals Total Other  Ehminations Consolidated
Revenues ¥94,621 ¥1406,407  ¥B56,356  ¥567,184 ¥1000410 ¥1,571,720 ¥5505,698 ¥62,025 %(1,891) ¥5,565,832
Gross profit 45,400 61,828 267,553 161,849 86,564 462,996 1,086,190 43,561 (1,891) 1,127,860
Equity in earmings of
Affihiated companics and
other 9,157 71,939 38,324 22,406 17,968 25,792 185,586 7,388 (556) 192,418
Net mcome (loss)
attributable to Mitsubishy
Corporation 14216 120,639 170,636 49,763 37,085 56,642 448,981 3,557 (194) 452,344
Segment assets 864,500 1,594,140 3,571,003 1,655475 806,218 2383577 10,874,913 2,720 506 (1,007,099) 12,588,320
Investments in Affihated
companies 146,533 334,281 775 162 155,903 106,725 346,172 1,864,776 115 604 7,856  1,988.236
Depreciatien and
AMoruzanon 20,405 15,991 41 357 18392 4346 28,801 129,292 16,136 145,428
Caputal expenditures for
long-hived assets 104,531 41,763 143,919 39221 5,298 25478 360,210 26,106 386,316
Operatng transactions
External customers ¥170,982 ¥4.554997 ¥4.396,774 ¥2.293 857 ¥2207119 ¥5442466 ¥19,066,195 ¥1,062,829 ¥(2,703) ¥20,126,321
Intersegment 19,647 9,473 2,779 14,659 11,468 8,223 66,249 36,366 {102,615)
Total ¥190,629 ¥4 564,470 ¥4,390553 ¥2308,516 ¥2218,587 ¥5450,689 ¥19,132,444 ¥1,099,195 ¥i05,318)¥20,126,321
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Millions of Yen

Industnial
Finance, Adjustments
Lomstcs & Energy Living and
2013 Development  Busmness Metals  Machinery Chemucals Essennals Total Other  Elmnations Consohdated
Revenues ¥172,086 ¥1,540,908  ¥690,903  ¥847,141 ¥1,136,137 ¥1528200 ¥5915375 ¥55679 ¥(2,280) ¥5968,774
Gross profit 56,006 52811 133,602 194,583 92,1069 464,865 993,976 37962 {2,281y 1,029.657
Interest expense (9,667 (9809) (21421} (25,705) (5,187)  (11.449)  (8323%) 22,100 17907  (43,231)
Interest income 3,249 2,749 4,848 22,063 293 1,077 34,279 20,602 (17,640) 37,241
Income taxes (10984)  (22492) (13056}  (20.838) (7.620)  (33.872) (108 862) 1,548 (6,172)  (113,486)
Equity in eamings of
Affihated comparues and
other 16,512 72,195 18,537 20,213 13,724 22,788 163,969 (75} 380 164,274
Net income (ioss)
attnbutable to Mitsubishi
Corporation 24,963 142 376 36,910 61,895 22,627 67,537 356,308 1,627 (3,907 360,028
Segrment assets 1,027,218  1,909013 4145036 1,972,989 916,614 2612950 12583,820 3351,739 (1,524,894) 14,410,665
Investrnents in Affiliated
compames 184,072 577,235 796,286 197,336 118,534 351,893 2225356 196,507 3,498  2,425,36]
Depreciation and
amortization 20,440 15,070 48,949 19,611 6,295 32,270 142,635 14,770 157,405
Capital expenditures for
long-lived assets 136,631 44,714 224,060 92,575 5,776 36,419 540,175 11007 551,182
Operating transactions
External customers ¥214.894 ¥4 955765 ¥4,003,543 ¥2,473363 ¥2380,238 ¥5555,728 ¥19 583,531 ¥625,126 W1,474)¥20,207,183
Intersegment 19,406 8,359 3,860 6,157 16,634 8,432 62,848 40,551 {103,409)
Total ¥234 300 ¥4,964,124 ¥4,007,403 ¥2,479,520 ¥2,396,872 ¥5,564,160 ¥19,646 379 ¥665,687  ¥(104 883}¥20,207,183
Millions of U S8 Dollars
Industnial
Finance, Adjustments
Logistcs & Energy Living and
2013 Development  Business Mesls  Machinery Chemicals Essentials Total Other  Ehminatons Consolidated
Revenues 51,81 $16,393 $7.350 $9,012 $12,087 £16,257 $62,930 8592 $(24) $63,498
Gross profit 59 562 1,421 2,070 980 4,945 10,574 404 (24) 10,954
Interest expense (103) (104) (228) (273) (55) (122) (885) 235 190 (460)
Interest income 35 29 52 233 3 1l 365 219 (188) 396
Income taxes Qa17) (239) (139) @222) (81} (360) (1 158) 16 (65) (1,207}
Equity 1n earnings of
Affiliated companies and
other 176 768 197 215 146 242 1,744 (0] 5 1 748
Net mcome {loss)
attnibutabie to Mitsubishi
Corporation 266 1,515 363 658 241 718 3,791 81 (42) 3,830
Segment assets 10,928 20,309 44096 20,989 9,751 27,797 133,870 35,657  (16222) 153305
Investments tn Affilkated
COMpanIes 1,958 6141 8,471 2,099 1,261 3,74 23674 2091 37 25,802
Depreciatiot and
amortzation 217 160 521 209 67 343 1517 158 1,675
Captal expenditures for
long-lived assets 1 454 476 2,384 985 61 387 5,747 n7 5,864
Operating transactions
External customers $2,286 $52,721 $42,591 $26,312 $25322 $59,103  $208,335 $6,650 $(15} $214,970
Intersegment 206 89 41 66 177 90 669 432 (1,101)
Total $£2.492 $52,810 $42,632 £26,378 $25,496 $59,153  $205,004 $7,082 5(1,116) 3214970
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Operating ansactions, as presented above, are voluntary disclosures solely for the convemence of investors in Japan Operahing transactions represent the
gross transacton volume or the aggregate nomnal vahie of the sales contracts in which the companies act as pnncipal and transactions 1n whach the
companies serve as agent

“Other” represents the corporate departments which primanty provide services and operationa! supports 1o the Company and Affiliated companies

Thrs column also includes certain revenues and expenses from business activities related to financing and human resource services that are not allocated to

reportable operating segments

Unallocated corporate assets categonzed 1n “Other” consist primanly of cash, ime deposits and secuntes for financial and investment achvities

“Ad)ustments and Ehmizations™ inciude certain income and expense items that are not allocated to reportable operating segments and miersegment

chimunations

Effective Apnl 1,2012, the Company transfermed parts of the busiaess of the *Industnal Finance, Logistics & Development” and "Machmery* to "Other*

The consolidated financial position and the results of operations of related reportable operating segments for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012
have been reclassified accordingly

From the year ended March 31, 2013, “Interest expense”, “Interest income” and “Income taxes” are disclosed “Interest expense™ allocated to each

reportable operating segment wnchudes intercompany interest expenses charged from the corporate departments m accordance with uternal regulations,

while “Interest expense™ in “Other™ represents mterest income recerved from each reportable operating segment “Income taxes™ allocated to each

reportable operating segment includes both current taxes and deferred taxes attributable to each segment, wiule “Income taxes™ in “Adjustments and

Eliminations™ represents current taxes and deferred taxes which are not attnbutable to each segmemnt

For the year ended March 31, 2011, the amount of “Net tncome (loss) attributable 1o Matsubish: Corporation™ includes guins on a share exchange held by

“Metals” of ¥36,619 mallion (before tax) For the year ended March 31, 2012, the amoum of “Net income (loss) atmbutable to Mitsubishi Corporation”

on “Metals™ hine includes gains of ¥12,542 mulhion (before tax) on remeasurement at faur value of the previously held equity nterests in Crosslands

Resources Ltd and Cakajee Port and Rail which were wholly owned by the Company as a result of acquining additonal nterests 1n them
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Geographic Information

Revenues, gross profit, long-lived assets and operating transactions at and for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were
as follows

Mithions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Revenues
Japan ¥3,812.066 ¥4,229,907 ¥4.463,439 $47,483
Thailand 380,969 295,829 560,978 5,968
Austrahia 493,399 494,353 377,862 4,020
Other 520,439 545,743 566,495 6,027
Total ¥5,206,873 ¥5,565,832 ¥5,968,774 $63,498
Gross profit
Japan ¥735,109 ¥767,423 ¥772,561 $8,219
Tharland 53,278 45,031 72,368 770
United Kingdom 42,753 47,631 59,118 629
Other 318,762 267,775 125,610 1,336
Taotal ¥1,149 902 ¥1,127 860 ¥1,029,657 $10,954
Long-lived assets
Australia ¥494,690 ¥648,475 ¥953,037 $10,139
Japan 703,255 674,152 692,428 7,366
Canada 75,547 85,511 110,887 1,180
USA 80,350 83,138 100,160 1,066
Other 312,570 389,634 585,979 6,233
Total ¥1,666,412 ¥1,880,910 ¥2,442 49] $25984
Operating transactions
Japan ¥15,667,224 ¥16,400,378 16,134,926 $171,648
USA 886,257 951,260 1,084,460 11,537
Thailand 634,555 541,892 922,238 9,811
Other 2,045,407 2,232,791 2,065,559 21,974
Total ¥19,233,443 ¥20,126,321 ¥20,207,183 $214,970

*1 Revenues, gross profit and operating transactions are attnbuted to geographic areas based on the location of the assets producing such revenues, gross profit
and operafing transactions

*2 “Operating transachons™ 15 a voluntary disclosure commenly made by Japanese trading companies, and 1s not meant to represent sales or revenues in
accordance with U S GAAP See Note 1

Neither the Company nor any of 1ts segments depended on any single customer, small group of customers, or government for mare
than 10% of the Company’s revenues for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively
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22 OTHER INCOME—NET

*Other mcome—net™ for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 consisted of the foliowing

Millions of
Miilions of Yen U S Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013

Net foreign exchange gains ¥(45,205) ¥(42,877) ¥(1,961) 52N

Insurance recovery gains (531) (4,099) (24,748) (263)

Bargain purchase gains from the acqusition (Note 4) (5,909 {21,479) (229)
Impairment loss of goodwill (Note 10) 891 870

Miscellaneous (4,335) (8,654) (6,844) (72)

Total ¥(49,180) ¥(60,669) ¥(55,032) $(585)
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23 LEASES

Lessor
The Company leases, as lessor, vehicles, vessels and other industrial machimery and equpment under arrangements which are
classified as direct financing leases

Current portion, ncluded tn "Accounts receivable—trade™ and "Loans and other receivables” and noncurrent portion, included
"Noncurrent notes, loans and accounts receivable—trade” of net investments in direct financing leases at March 31, 2012 and 2013
were as follows

Milhons of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013

Total mummum lease payments to be recerved ¥479,605 ¥606,436 $6,451
Estimated unguaranteed residual value of leased assets 1,402 528 6
Less—unearned mcome {87,885) (99,465) (1,058)
Investment in direct financing leases 393,122 507,499 5,399
Less—allowance for doubtful recervables (6,152) (11,071} )
Net investment n direct financing leases ¥386,970 ¥496,428 $5,281

The Company also leases, as lessor, aircrafl, vessels and other industrial assets under operating leases

The following provides the Company’s mvestment in property on operating leases and property held for lease by classes at March
31,2013

Miilions of Yen Milhons of U S Dollars
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Net Cost Depreciation Net
Land ¥79,182 ¥79,182 $842 $842
Buildings 59,183 ¥(33,595) 25,588 630 $(358) 272
Machinery and equipment 100,952 (56,966) 43,986 1,074 (606) 468
Aarcrafi 410,569 (105,089} 304,480 4,368 (1,129 3,239
Vessels and vehicles 174,631 {74,376) 100,255 1,857 (790) 1,067
Total ¥824,517 ¥(271,026) ¥553,491 $8,771 $(2,883) $5,888

Future minimum lease payments 1o be received as of March 31, 2013 are as follows

Miihons of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
Direct Noncencelable
Financing Operating
Leases Leases Total Total
Years Ending March 31
2014 ¥176,100 ¥64,586 ¥240.686 $2,560
2015 134,076 50,027 184,103 1,959
2016 85,976 41,912 127,888 1,361
2017 58,565 35,052 93617 996
2018 30,850 28,853 59,703 635
2019 and thereafter 120,869 99,795 220,664 2,347
Total ¥606,436 ¥320,225 ¥926,661 $9.858

This amount does not include contingent rentals that may be received under certain lease contracts
Contingent rentals for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were ¥45 mullion, ¥57 million and ¥19 m:thon ($0 2 milhon),
respecuvely
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Lessee

The Company leases, as lessee, machinery and equipment, real estate and others under capital leases Certain of these leases have

renewal and purchase options

Current portion of obligations under capital leases 1s included 1n “Other current babilities” and noncurrent portion of obhigations
under capita] leases 15 included 1n "Other noncurrent l1ahilities” on the Consohdated Balance Sheets
The following provides the Company’s leased assets recorded under capital leases as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

Millions of Yen
Accumulated
2012 Cost Depreciation Net
Buildings ¥11,025 ¥(6,185) ¥4,840

Machinery and equpment
Vessels and vehicles

42,261 (22,330) 19,931
4365 (2,457) 1,908

Total ¥57,651 ¥(30,972)  ¥26,679
Millions of Yen Mallions of U § Dollars
Accumulated Accumulated
2613 Cost Depreciation Net Cost Depreciation Net
Buildmgs ¥11,487 ¥6913)  ¥4,574 $122 $(73) $49
Machmery and equipment 44,225 (22,017 22,208 471 {235) 236
Vessels and vehicles 3,960 (1,930) 2,030 41 20) 22
Total ¥59.672  ¥(30,860) ¥28.812 $635 $(328) $307

Future immmum lease payments under capital leases together with components of the present value of the net mmimum lease

payments as of March 31, 2013 are as follows

Millions of
Years Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U S Doilars
2014 ¥13,266 5141
2015 11,496 122
2016 8,498 g0
2017 6,377 68
2018 4,605 49
2019 and thereafier 15,285 163
Total muinimum lease payments 59527 633
{_ess amount representmg interest (3,721) (39
Present value of net rummum lease payments 55,806 594
Current capital lease obligations 13,219 141
Long-term capital lease obligations ¥42,587 $453
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Minrmum payments have not been reduced by mimmum sublease revenues of ¥25,456 mmllion (8271 million) due in the future under
subleases

The Company leases, as lessee, office space and certain other assets under operating leases Certain of these leases have renewal and
purchase options

Total rental expenses under operating leases for the vears ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were ¥56,554 million, ¥67,543

mullion and ¥83,764 mullion ($891 million), respectively Sublease rental mcome for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013
were ¥6,608 million, ¥11,702 mullion and ¥22,673 miliion ($241 million), respectively

Future mimmuim lease payments under noncancelable leases as of March 31, 2013 are as follows

Mithions of

Years Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2014 ¥53,111 $565
2015 33,421 356
2016 29,794 n7
2017 26,504 282
2018 22,307 237
2019 and thereafier 73,532 782

Total ¥238,669 $2,539

Minimum payments have not been reduced by mmimurn sublease rentals 6f ¥30,945 million ($329 mitlion) due 1n the future under
noncancelable subleases
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24 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Parent had two types of stock ophon plans, stock option Class A and Class B, for certamn directors and executive officers,
however, the Parent resolved to umify the plans at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on July 20, 2007

The stock option plans resolved by the Board of Directors’ meetings held i and before June 2007

Under the Class A plan, the nght to purchase the shares of the Parent 15 granted at an exercise price determned based on the greater
of the quoted price of the shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange on the grant date or the average quoted price for 2 month prior to the
grant date The stock options are vested and immediately exercisable after 23 months from the grant date, and exercisable penods are
8 years from the vested day

Under the Class B plan, the nght to purchase the shares of the Parent 15 granted at an exercise price of ¥1 per share The contractual
term of the Class B stock optien 1s 30 years The stock option holders may exercise therr stock acqusition nght dunng the 10-yvear
pertod starting on the day after leaving their position as both director and executive officer of the Parent Notwithstandmg the above,
1f the stock option holders do not leave their position as both director and executrve officer of the Parent, they may exercise their nght
from the day after 25 years from the grant date If they leave their position before June 30 of the next year after the grant date, the
exercisable number 1s determined based on the tenure peniod from the grant date

The stock option plans resolved by the Board of Directors’ meetings held in and after July 2007

Under the unified plan, the right to purchase the shares of the Parent 1s granted at an exercise price of ¥1 per share The contractual
term of the stock option 15 30 years The stock options are vested and exercisabie from the earlier of either the day after 23 months
from the grant date or the day after leaving their pesition as both director and executive officer of the Parent. The stock option holders
may exercise thewr stock acquisition nght during the 10-year penod starting on the day after leaving their position as both director
and executive officer of the Parent If they leave their position before June 30 of the next year after the grant date, the exercisable
number 15 determned based on the tenure penod from the grant date

The total stock-based compensation cost recognized for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was ¥1,240 million, ¥1,256
muflion and ¥1,006 miihion {$11 milhion), respectively The total tax benefit recognized related thereto for the years ended March 31,
2011, 2012 and 20 3 was ¥508 mmllion, ¥452 mlhon and ¥362 million ($4 milhon), respectively The tax benefii realized from stock
options exercised for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was ¥102 muthion, ¥471 milhion and ¥356 million {$4 million),
respectively No stock-based compensation cost was capitalized for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

The weighted-average fair value of options granted under the Parent’s stock option plan for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013 was ¥1,600, ¥1,569 and ¥1,042 ($11 09) per share, respectively

The fair value of these stock options 15 estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the assumptions noted in the
following table The risk-free interest rate 1s based on the yield of government bonds 1n effect at the grant date having a remaining Iife
equal to the option’s expected ife Expected volatilities are based on the lustonical volatlity of the Parent’s stock for the period equal
to the option’s expected hfe from the grant date The expected dividend yield 1s based on the actual dividends made in the preceding
year Expected life represents the pertod of tupe that the options granted are expected to be outstanding

2011 2012 2013
Rusk-free interest rate 071%085% 0 76%-0 86% 067%072%
Expected volatiity 40 88%—40 99% 40 49%—40 68% 39 21%-3960%
Expected dividend yield 2 02%-204% 3 16%3 33% 421%439%
Expected hife 8 years 8 years 9-9 25 years

The following table summarizes information about stock option activities for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013

2011 2012 2013
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise  Number of Weighted Average
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Exercise Price
us
Years Ended March 31 Yen Yen Yen Dollars
QOutstanding at beginning of the fiscal year 6,079,000 ¥1,041 6,160,900 ¥947 5,609,100 ¥881 $94
Granted 665,400 1 796,100 1 970,000 1
Canceled or expired (2,100) 1 (400) 1 (8,400) i
Exercised (581,400) 847  (1,347,500) 666 (917,300) 472 50
OQutstandmng at end of the fiscal year 6,160,500 947 5,609,100 881 5,653,400 797 85
Exercisable at end of the fiscal year 4,113,990 1,418 4,319,000 1,144 4,165,400 1,082 115
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The foliowing table summanzes information for optrons outstandmg and exercisable at March 31, 2013

Weighted
Exercise Average
Price Number of Remammng Aggregate
Range Shares Life Intnnsic Value
Mitlionsof  Millions of
Yen Years Yen U S Dollars
Outstanding ¥1-2,435 5,653,400 148 ¥5,348 $57
Exercisable ¥1-2.435 4,165,400 100 2,753 29

The total mtrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was ¥730 mulhion, ¥1,582
million and ¥1,059 million ($11 malhion), respectively As of Mareh 31, 2013, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to

nonvested stock options granted under the plans was ¥223 million ($2 million), which 15 expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average peniod of 0 3 years
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25 VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

The Company evaluates its snvolvement with VIEs to determine whether the Company has vanable interests 1n VIEs If the
Company 1s determined to have vanable interests in a VIE, the Company evaluates 1ts power to direct the activities of the VIE that
maost significantly impact the economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or the nght to recesve benefits from the
VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE to determme whether the Company 1s the primary beneficiary

For VIEs that meet certain cnitena, the Company 15 determined to be the pnmary benefictary 1f the Company absorbs a majonty of
the VIE’s expected losses or receives a majority of the VIE’s expected residual returns

The following 1s the information regarding the VIEs that are consolidated and not consol:dated by the Company

Consohdated VIEs

The Company utilizes VIEs primartly in the real estate development business The Company purchases real estate or beneficial
mnterests in real estate with the intention to resel} after enhancing its value by developing real estate properties These VIEs are
financed maimnly by borrewings The Company utilizes these VIEs to obtawn nonrecourse loans from third parties to hmit the
Company’s nisks on activiies related to the real estate development and real estate investment trusts businesses

The following table summarizes total assets of the VIEs and carrying amount of the VIEs' total assets and lLiabilities on the
Consohdated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

Milhions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars

2032 2013 2013
Total assets of the VIEs ¥195,452 ¥149,334 $1,589
Carrying amount of the VIEs' total assets on the Consohdated Balance Sheeis 194,080 149,333 1,589
Carrymg amount of the VIEs' total habilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets 73,018 60,969 649

Carrying amount of the VIES' total assets on the Consoelidated Balance Sheets consisted primarnly of property and equipment and
Joint investments 1 real estates that could be used only to settle long-term debt of the consolidated VIEs Carrying amount of the
VIEs' total habilities on the Consohidated Balance Sheets consisted pnimanly of long-term debt, including current maturities for
which creditors or beneficial interest holders do not have recourse of the general credit of the Company

A portion of the assets are pledged as collateral for the long-term debt of these VIEs The carrying amount was ¥112,884 mullion and
¥85,061 muillion {$905 mullion) as of March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively, and was pnmarily classified as property and equipment
and joint investments in real estates in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Several consolidated VIEs of the Company as of March 31, 2012 were no longer conselidated as of March 31, 2013 due to the
Company’s disposition of mterests 1 the VIEs and the hquidation of the VIEs The effect on the consolidated financial staternents
for the year ended March 31, 2013 was not matenal

Nonconsohdated VIEs

The Company has variable mterests iz VIEs involved 1n vartous businesses in the form of equity investments, guarantees and loans
for which the Company 1s not the primary bereficiary These VIEs are financed mamnty by borrowings Most of the VIEs are entities
established to conduct real-estate-related business, shipping-related business, or project financing mn the infrastructure busmess

The following table summanzes total assets of the VIEs, carrying amounts of assets and habilities in the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets of financial position that relate to the Company’s vanable interests in the VIEs, and the Company’s maximum

exposures to losses as a result of the Company’s involvement m these VIEs as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 Total assets of the VIEs
represent the latest information available to the Company

Milhons of Yen
March 31, 2012 Real Estate Shippmmg  Infrastructure Other Total
Total assets of the VIEs ¥247,002 ¥280,683 ¥187,688 ¥157,865 ¥873,238

Carrymng amounts of assets in the Company’s

Consohdated Balance Sheets of financial

position that relate 10 the Company’s vanable

mterests 1 the VIEs 20,176 40,029 14,158 17,883 92,246
Carrying amounts of liabilities 1 the

Company’s Consohdated Balance Sheets of

financial posimon that refate to the Company’s

vanable mterests 1n the VIEs 259 2,385 947 1,455 5,046
Maximum exposures to losses 24,944 73,825 14,158 20,634 133,561
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Mittions of Yen

March 31, 2013 Real Estate Shipping  Infrastructure Other Total
Total assets of the VIEs ¥444 569 ¥353,699 ¥228,357 ¥164,171 ¥1,190,796
Carrying amounts of assets in the Company’s

Consohdated Balance Sheets of financial

posttion that relate to the Company’s vanable

interests 1n the VIEs 51,738 60,845 20,541 17,225 150,349
Carrying amounts of liabilities 1n the

Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets of

financral position that relate to the Company’s

vartable interesis 1n the VIEs 166 1,267 559 1 1,993
Maximum exposures to losses 58,232 116,084 30,838 17,423 222,577

Millions of U S Dollars

March 31, 2013 Real Estate Shipping  Infrastucture Other Total
Total assets of the VIEs $4,729 $3,763 $2,429 $1,747 $12,668
Carrying amounts of assets mn the Company’s

Consohidated Balance Sheets of financial

position that relate to the Company’s vanable

interests 1n the VIEs 550 647 219 183 1,599
Carrying amounts of habihities 1n the

Company’s Consohdated Balance Sheets of

financial position that relate to the Company’s

varable mterests 1n the VIEs 2 13 6 21
Maxumum exposures to losses 620 1,235 328 185 2,368

Carrymg amounts of assets in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets of financial position that relate to the Company’s vanable

interests i the VIEs consisted primanly of investments m and advances to Affihated companies, noncurrent notes, loans and

accounts receivable—irade, 1oans and other receivables Carrying amounts of habilities in the Company’s Consohdated Balance
Sheets of financial position that relate to the Company’s vanable interests in the VIEs consisted primanly of deferred mncome taxes
and payables to Affiliated companies There ts a difference between carrying amounts of assets 1n the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets of financial position that relate to the Company’s vanable interests i the VIEs and maximum exposures to losses, as

the Company’s maximum exposures to losses mclude credit guarantees on these VIEs Maximum exposures to losses do not

represent antcipated losses generally to incur fom the Company’s mvolvement with the VIEs, and are considered 10 exceed the

anticipated losses considerably
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26 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Long-term Commitments

The Cormpany, in the normal course of trading operations, enters into substantial long-term purchase commitments for varous
commodities, principally metals, chemical, LNG and crude o1l products at fixed prices or basis prices adjustable to market Such
purchase commitments are, 1n most instances, matched with counterparty sales contracts At March 31, 2013, the outstanding
long-term purchase commitments amounted to ¥4,278,874 mullion ($45,520 milion) for which delivenes are scheduled for vanous
dates through 2042

Purchases made under unconditional purchase obligations for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 were ¥868,762
mullton, ¥996.915 muillion and ¥1,023,898 milhion ($10,893 mallion), respectively

The Company also had long-term finaneing commitments aggregaung ¥22,582 million ($240 million) at March 31, 2013 for loans,
Investments 1n equity capital and financing on a deferred-payment basis for the cost of equipment to be purchased by customers
Guarantees

The Company 1s a party to various agreements under which 1t has undertaken obhigations resulting from the 1ssuance of certain
guarantees The guarantees have been 1ssued for the Affiliated compames, customers and suppliers of the Company

Credit Guarantees

The Company provided credit guarantees for certamn customers and supphers, and for the Affiliated comparues, 1n the form of
standby letters of credit and performance guarantees

The outstanding amount and the maximum potential amount of future payments under these credit guarantees as of March 31, 2012
and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013
Guarantees for customers and suppliers

Qutstanding amount ¥258,0%4 ¥301,54] $3,208
Maximum potential amount of future payments 317,099 381,778 4,061

Guarantees for the Affillated companies
Qutstanding amount 107,445 422,747 4,497
Maximum potential amount of future payments 170,535 627,146 6,672

These credit guarantees enable the Company's customers, suppliers and the Affilated companies to execute transactions or obtain
desired financing arrangements with third parties Most of these guarantees outstanding at March 31, 2013 wil] expire within ten
years, with certain credit guarantees expiring by the end of 2038 Should the customers, suppliers and the Affiliated companies fail to
perform under the terms of the transaction or financing arrangement, the Company would be required to perform on their behalf

The Company has sef internal ratings based on vanous information, such as the guaranteed party’s financial statements, and manages
nsks of credit guarantees by establishing limits on guarantees for each guaranteed pariy based on these internal ratings and requires
collateral or reassurance as necessary

At March 31, 2012 and 2013, the amount of possible recovenes under recourse provisions from third parties or from collateral
pledged was ¥16,697 million and ¥165,625 million ($1,762 million), respecuvely

The habihties for these credit guarantees were ¥1,571 milhon and ¥2,286 mullion ($24 million) at March 31, 2012 and 2013,
respectively

As of March 31, 2013, there were no credit guarantees with a high probability of a sigmficant loss due to enforcement of the
guaraniee

LNG project in Russia
The Company, along with other sharchelders, provided an agreement to indemnify the financing party from any loss that might be

incurred due to the farlure of the investee (10% owned by the Company) to register the title of the properties associated with this
LING project to obtam $6,700 million financing for the project

The amount of maximum future payment under this indemmnification 1s not included in the amount of the credit guarantee described
above because it cannot be estimated due to the nature of the mdemmficaton No provisions have been recorded for the
indemnfication as the Company’s obligation under the mdemnification 15 not probable and estimable

The investee repays $6,700 mutlion financing based on the schedule under the ioan agreement

LNG project 1n Australia

An Affiliated company of the Parent acquired participating interest m a project to develop LNG m Austrahia (the “Project™ The
Affiliated company has obtained a $1,927 million (¥181 bilhion) line-of-credit from a bank to secure funding for the acquisition of
the participating interest and for the future development of the Project The Parent, along with another participant to the Project,
provides a credit guarantee to the bank on the hne-of-credst The maximum potential amount of future payments of the Parent
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resulting from the default on the line-of-credst 1s §1,533 mullton (¥144 billion), and 15 mcluded in “Guarantees for the A fihated
compantes — Maximum potential amount of future payments” Line item on the table above As of March 31, 2013, the portion of the
Affiliated company's draw-down against the line-of-credit that the Parent 1s responsible for amounted to $300 million (¥28 billion)
The amount 15 reflected in “Guarantees for the Affilated companies — Outstanding amount™ line tem in the table above

In addition, the Parent, along with other participants to the Project, provide a performance guarantee to the seller of the participating
interest in the Project The performance guarantee 15 a joint guarantee of the payments for the parhcipating interest m thus Project and
for the future funding commuitment 1n accordance with the jomt venture agreement The obligation from tius performance guarantee
15 considered 1o anse at the execution of project agreements and the total guarantee as of March 31, 2013 15 $2,764 milhion (¥260
bilhon) The amounts are included n both “Guarantees for the Affihated companies — Maximum potential amount of future
payments” and “Guarantees for the Affillated compames — Qutstanding amount™ line 1tems in the table above

The performance guarantee obligation encompasses future planned payments, which will be funded, 1n part, by the hine of credst
Within the hine item “Guarantees for the Affilated companies — Maximum potential amount of future payments”, the amounts
related to the performance guarantee wili be reduced to the extent that the Affililated company makes cash call payments for
participating interest and development fonding, while the amount relating to the maximum potential amount of future payments of
credst guaraniee will remain the same In this case, within the lme item “Guarantees for the Affihated companies - Outstanding
amount”, the amount relating to this performance guarantee wall be reduced as cash call payments are made, while the amount
relating to the credit puarantee will increase

Indemnification

In the context of certain sales or divesutures of business, the Company occasionally commuts to ndemnify contingent losses, such as
environmental losses, or the imposition of additional taxes Due to the nature of the indemnafications, the Company’s maximum
exposure under these arrangements cannot be esumated No provisions have been recorded for such indemnifications as the
Company’s obhigations under them are not probable and estimable, except for certain cases which already have been claimed
Product Warranties

Certain subsidianes accrue esimated product warranty cost, in relation to their sales of products, to provide for warranty claims

The changes i the accrued product warranty cost for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U S Dollars
2012 2013 2013

Balance at beginning of year ¥2.600 ¥1,978 $21
Accrued cost 782 1,268 14
Payments (550) (787) (8)
Other* (854) 414 4
Balance at end of year ¥1,978 ¥2.873 $31

* “Other” pnncipally includes the effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and the effect of divestture of certamn subsidianes

Latigation

The Company 15 a party to liigation arsing 10 the ordmary course of business In the opinion of management, the hiabtlity of the
Company, if any, when ultimately determined from the progress of the htigation, wall not have a matertally adverse effect on the
consolidated operaung results or consohidated financial position of the Company
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27 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental information related to the Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows 15 as follows

Millions of
Millions of Yen U 8 Dollars
2011 2012 2013 2013
Cash paid dunng the year for
Interest, less amounts capitalized ¥41,109 ¥40,894 ¥41,766 $444
Income taxes 139,507 178,790 80,213 853
Noncash investing and financing activities
Exchange of shares in connection with business combinations and
reorganizations mnvolving investees (Note 5)
Fair market value of shares received 45,909 2,513 27
Cost of shares surrendered 10,465 3,000 32
Acquisition of businesses (Note 4)
Fair value of assets acquired (including goodwall) 39,556 176,602 132,690 1,412
Fair value of habilities assumed 4,008 70,569 79,902 850
Noncontrolling interest in acquirees 5,024 10,461 111
Acqusition-date carrying amount of previpusly held equity
Interests 20,7113 7,222 77
Gam on remeasuring the previously held equity interests to fair
value—net and gain on bargam purchase 23,220 22,666 242
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired 35,548 57,076 12,439 132
Assets by entening into caprtal leases 3,947 42
Assets transferred to direct finance leases 10,127 5116
Issuance of common stock upon conversion of convertible bonds 905
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28 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through June 21, 2013

Dividends

At the general shareholders’ meeting held on June 21, 2013, the Parent was authonized to pay a cash dividend of ¥30 (80 32) per share,
or a total of ¥49,420 mihon ($526 million) to shareholders of record on Match 31, 2013
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SUPPLEMENTAL OIL AND GAS INFORMATION (Unaudited)

The Company’s 01] and gas exploration, development and production activities are conducted through subsidianes and Affiliated
companies in offshore and onshore areas of the Pacific Raim, Amenica, Africa and Europe The tables below present supplementary

information on these activities

In the following tables, natural gas producing activities include hquefied natural gas (“LNG”) producing activities

Table I Capitalized Costs Relatig to O1f and Gas Producing Activities

Millions of Yen
Consohdated
Companies Affilated Companies
March 31, 2011 Total North ) ustraha  Indonesia  Total
America
Proved o1l and gas properties ¥131,552 ¥150,294  ¥121,892  ¥312,186
Unproved oil and gas properties 43,722 34,586 34,586
Subtotal 175,274 190,294 156,478 346,772
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization
and valnation alfowances (49,247) (96,203) (32,384) (128,587)
Net capitalized costs ¥126,027 ¥94.091 ¥124,094 ¥218.,185
Mallions of Yen
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companies
March 31, 2012 Total North — \ istraba  Indonesa  Total
America
Proved ol and gas properties ¥121,177 ¥34.053  ¥188,939 ¥122712  ¥345,704
Unproved o1l and gas properties 43,393 84,124 33,778 117,902
Subitotal 164,570 118,177 188,939 156,490 463,606
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization
and valuation allowances (36,131} {95,181) (37,132) (132,313)
Net capitalized costs ¥128,439 ¥118,177 ¥93,758  ¥119,358  ¥331,293
Millions of Yen
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companies
March 31,2013 Total North —  straha Indonesia  Total
America
Proved o1l and gas properties ¥148,675 ¥58,408  ¥244298  ¥151,329  ¥454,035
Unproved o1l and gas properties 71,057 109,139 113,722 36,470 259,331
Subtotal 219,732 167,547 358,020 187,799 713,366
Accuemulated depreciation, depletion, amortization
and valuation allowances (48,821) (3,057)  (119,141)  (52,015) (174213)
Net capitalized costs ¥170,911 ¥164,490 ¥238,879¢ ¥135,784  ¥539,153
Miilions of U § Dollars
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companes
March 31, 2013 Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
Amenca
Proved o1l and gas properties $1,582 $622 $2.599 £1,610 $4,831
Unpreved o1l and gas properties 756 1,161 1,210 388 2,759
Subtotal 2,338 1,783 3,809 1,998 7.590
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization
and valuation allowances {520} (33) (1,268) (553) (1,854)
Net capitahized costs $1,818 $1,750 $2,541 $1,445 £5,736
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Table 2 Costs Incurred 1n O1l and Gas Property Acquisiton, Exploration and Development Activities

Millions of Yen

Consolidated
Compames Affiliated Compamnies
Year Ended March 31, 2011 Total Noth  \istralia Indonesia  Total
America
Acquisition of proved properties ¥26,792
Acquisinon of unproved properties 11,986
Exploration costs 5,666 ¥4 ¥640 ¥646
Development costs 9,189 8,950 5,175 14,125
Total costs incurred ¥53,633 ¥8,956 ¥5815 ¥14,771
Millions of Yen
Consolidated
Companmes Affilated Companies
Year Ended March 31,2012 Total North — \istralia  Indonesia  Toral
Amenca
Acquisiion of proved properties ¥36,091 ¥36,091
Acquisihon of unproved propertes ¥i4,319 82,058 82,058
Exploration costs 4,960 7,098 ¥693 ¥559 8,350
Development costs 8,142 10,114 7,887 18,001
Total costs incurred ¥27.421 ¥125247 ¥10,807 ¥8.446  ¥144,500
Miilions of Yen
Consolidated
Companes Affillated Companmies
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total North Austraha  Indonesia Total
Amenca
Acquisition of proved properties ¥17.466 ¥707 ¥18,173
Acquisiion of unproved properties ¥7,051 101,988 746 102,734
Exploration costs 27,606 ¥18,998 3,432 447 22,877
Development costs 24,104 10,886 13,579 12,843 37,308
Total costs incurred ¥58,761 ¥29.884  ¥136,465 ¥14.743  ¥181,092
Millions of U S Dellars
Consolhidated
Companies Affiliated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total North Austraha  Indonesia Total
America
Acqusition of proved properbies $186 57 5193
Acgusison of unproved properties $7s 1,085 8 1,093
Exploranon costs 294 $202 37 5 244
Development costs 256 116 144 137 397
Total costs incurred $625 $318 $1,452 3157 $1,927
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Table 3 Results of Operations for Producing Activities

Milhions of Yen
Consohdated
Companies Affiliated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2011 Total North Austrahia  Indonesia Total
America
Revenues
Sales to external customers ¥27.451 ¥88,332 ¥14,135 ¥102,467
Intersegment sales 11,284 5,806 5,806
Expenses
Production costs 16,739 21,983 8,886 30,869
Exploration costs 5,416 85 434 519
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and
valuation allowances 17,067 8,378 5,580 13,958
Income tax expense 1,241 17,336 3,508 20,844
Results of operations from producing activities
(excluding corporate overhead and interest costs) ¥(1,728) ¥40,550 ¥1,532 ¥42,082
Milhons of Yen
Consohdated
Companies Affihated Companies
Year Ended March 31,2012 Total North Australba Indonesia Total
America
Revenues
Sales to external customers ¥35,417 ¥91,656 ¥25317  ¥116,973
Intersegment sales 10,727 6,401 6,401
Expenses
Production costs 18,412 24,006 11,607 35,613
Exploration costs 3,074 1,039 549 1,588
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and
valuation allowances 12,185 8,885 7,378 16,263
Income tax expense 4,610 17,455 3,906 21,361
Results of operations from producing activities
(excluding corporate overhead and interest costs) ¥7,863 ¥40,271 ¥8278 ¥48,549
Milhions of Yen
Consolidated
Companies Affilhated Companies
Year Ended March 31,2013 Tota) NOF - stralia  indonesia  Toual
Amenca
Revenues
Sales to external customers ¥27,229 ¥1,567  ¥101,771 ¥33,325  ¥136,663
Intersegment sales 10,133 6,286 6,286
Expenses
Production costs 14,333 738 26,835 12,724 40,297
Exploration costs 13,135 1,063 335 1,398
Depreciation, depleton, amortizatton and
valuation allowances 9,367 2,804 11,408 7,934 22,146
Income tax expense 1,959 19,16t 7,857 27,018
Results of operations from producing acuvities
{excluding corporate overhead and interest costs) ¥(1,432) ¥(1,975)  ¥43,304 ¥10,761 ¥52,090
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Mithons of U S Dollars

Consohdated
Companies Affiliated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
America
Revenues
Sales to external customers £290 517 $£1,083 £354 $1,454
Intersegment sales 108 67 67
Expenses
Production costs 153 8 286 135 429
Exploration costs 140 11 4 15
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and
valuation allowances 99 30 121 84 235
Income tax expense 21 204 84 288
Results of operations from producing activities
{excluding corporate overhead and interest costs) $(15) $(21) $461 $114 $554
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Table 4 Reserve Quantity Information

Proved gas reserves are constrained to those volumes that are related to firm sales commitments The naturat gas reserves at the end
of each year are therefore only a fraction of the volume that 15 expected to be commutted to sales over time and upon which the
decision to proceed with development was based Amounts were calculated based on the average of the price as of the first day of
each month duning the fiscal year Reserves in the following tables include quantities related to production-sharing contracts ("PSC")
Of the total reserve quantities of crude oil, condensate, natural gas liquids, and natural gas in barrels of o1l equivalents, the

PSC-related reserve quantities compnse 66 percent, 57 percent, and 69 percent of the total reserve quantities for the years ended
March 31, 2011, 2012, and 2013 respectively

Crude On, Condensate and Natural Gas Liquds

{Mallions of Barrels)
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2011 Total North Australla  Indonesia Total
America

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves

Beginning of year 45 33 19 52

Revisions of previous estimates 13 2 1

Tmproved recovery 2

Purchases 4

Sales (1) )

Production ) (5 (2) )]

End of year 55 30 19 49
Proved developed reserves—end of year 44 13 16 29

Natural Gas
(Bilhons of Cubac Feet)
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companies
Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
America

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves

Beginning of year 54 650 1,256 1,946

Revisions of previous eshmates 1 (12) 30 18

Lmproved recovery 28 28

Purchases 259

Sales (48) {48)

Producton N (59 (39) (98)

End of year 307 619 1,227 1,846
Proved developed reserves—end of year 33 255 986 1,241
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Crude Qul, Condensate and Natural Gas Liquids
(Milhons of Barrels)

Consohidated
Comparnes Affihated Companies
Year Ended March 31,2012 Total North Australia  Indonesia Tota]
Amernca
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves
Begmning of year 55 30 19 49
Rewvisions of previcus estunates 12 1 (1)
Extensions and discovenes 1
Purchases 1 1
Sales 0)]
Production 8) “) (3) O]
End of year 59 1 27 15 43
Proved developed reserves—end of year 44 14 i3 27
Natural Gas
(Billions of Cubic Feet)
Consohdated
Companies Affihated Companies
Total North Australila  Indonesia Total
America
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves
Beginning of year 307 619 1,227 1,846
Revisions of previous estimates {12) 2 (3) 1)
Improved recovery 9
Purchases 380 380
Sales 27
Production (12) 57 (43) (100)
End of year 265 380 564 1,181 2,125
Proved developed reserves—end of year 19 209 942 1,151
Crude Oil, Condensate and Natural Gas Liquids
(Millions of Barrels)
Consohdated
Companies Affihated Compames
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total Norh —  istraha  Indonesia  Total
America
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves
Beginning of year 59 I 27 15 43
Revisions of previous estimates 10 1 6 7
Purchases 3 1 4
Production ) {4) 2 (6}
End of year 63 1 27 20 48
Proved developed reserves—end of year 49 12 13 25
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Natural Gas

{Ballions of Cubic Feet)
Consolidated
Companes Affihated Compames
Total North Austraba  Indonesia Total
America

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves

Beginmng of year 265 380 564 1,181 2,125

Rewisions of previous estimates (270) 136 (134)

Extensions and discoveries 20

Purchases 194 194

Production (9) (6) (55) (65) (126)

End of year 276 104 703 1,252 2,059
Proved developed reserves—end of year 31 30 181 1,008 1,359
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Table 5 Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows and Changes therein Relating to Proved Onl and Gas Reserves

A standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to the proved reserve quantittes 15 based on prices and costs,

currently enacted tax rates and a 10% annual discount factor Prices and costs were calculated based on the average of the price as of
the first day of each month dunng the fiscal year The natural gas acuivities’ standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows
includes the fulf commutted costs of development and operation for the asset under the integrated Production Shating Agreement On
the other hand, revenues are registered only 1n relation to the currently estimated proved reserves stated in Table 4 (Reserve Quantty

Information)

The proved gas reserves are constrained to those volumes that are related to firm sales commitments The natural gas reserves at the
end of each year are therefore only a fraction of the volume that 15 expected to be commutted to sales over tme and upon which the
decision to proceed with development was based Estimates of proved reserve quantities may change over time 2s new sales
comrutments become available Censequently, the mformation provided here does not represent management's estimate of the
Company’s expected future cash flows or value of the proved reserves

(1) Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows

Miilions of Yen
Consolidated
Compantes Affilated Companies
Year Ended March 31, 2011 Total AI;Inoe:hca Australia Indonesia Total
Future cash nflows ¥338,683 ¥704,576 ¥414,411 ¥1,118,987
Future production costs (105,358) (180,322) (103,968) (284,290)
Future development costs (57,729 (76,064) (41,410) (117,474)
Future income taxes (38,210) (130,306) (89,628) (219,934)
Undsscounted future net ¢ash flows 137,386 317,884 179,405 467,289
10946 annual discount for esumated uming of cash flows (61,115) {126,287) (70,944) (197,231)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ¥76,271 ¥191,597 ¥108,461 ¥300,058
Mullions of Yen
Consoldated
Companies Affiliated Companies
Total North Australia Indonesia Total
Year Ended March 31, 2012 Amerca
Future cash inflows ¥450,186 ¥116,018 ¥762,612 ¥434972  ¥1.313,602
Future production costs (125,312) (48,425) (197,524) (100,532) (346,481)
Future development costs (74,067) {49,521) {98.953) {36,651) (185,165}
Future income taxes (85,385) (142,192) (114,708) {256,800)
Undiscounted future net cash flows 165,422 18,072 323,943 183,041 525,056
1026 annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows (58,256) (21,421) (118,385) (59,428) (199,234)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ¥1907,166 ¥(3,349)  ¥205,558 ¥123,613 ¥3253822
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Millions of Yen

Consclidated
Companies Affihated Companies
North
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total Amenca Austraha Indonesia Total
Future cash mflows ¥521,815 ¥22,737  ¥L,117,674  ¥1,078,135 ¥2218546
Future production costs (167,150) (13,376) (261,343) (232,813) (507,532)
Future development costs (78,066) (5,672) (213,401) (116,892) (335,965)
Future income taxes (98,982) (195,960) (272,631) (468,5%1)
Undiscounted future net cash flows 172,617 3,689 446,970 455,799 906,458
10% annual discount for estimated tming of cash flows {66,965) (2.063) (207,889) (303,095) (513,047
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ¥110,652 ¥1,626 ¥239,081 ¥152,704 ¥393.411
Millions of U S Dollars
Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companses
North

Year Ended March 31,2013 Total Amenca Australia Indonesia Total
Future cash mflows $5,551 $242 $11,890 $11,470 $23,602
Future production costs (1,778) {143) (2,780) (2,477) (5,400)
Future development costs (830) (60) 2,270) (1,244) (3,574)
Future income taxes {1,053) (2,085) (2,900) (4,985)
Undiscounted future net cash flows 1,830 39 4,755 4,849 9,643
10% annual discount for estimated tuming, of cash flows {(713) (22) 2,212 (3,224 (5,458)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows $1,177 517 $2,543 $1,625 $4,185
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{2) Detasls of Changes for the Year

Millions of Yen
Consol:dated
Companies Affihated Companies
North
Year Ended March 31, 2011 Total America Australba  Indonesia Total
Discounted future net cash flows at Apnil 1 ¥4097 ¥137,902 ¥36,128 ¥174,030
Sales and transfer of 01l and gas produced, net of production costs (19,677) (68,457) 18,353 (50,104)
Development costs mcurred 8,584 9,234 2,336 11,570
Purchases of reserves 20,948
Sales of reserves {4,029) {4,029)
Net changes 1n sales and transfer pnces and production costs
related to future production 34,094 92,833 112,657 205,490
Changes 1n estimated future development costs 19,159 4,610 (813) 3,797
Revisions of previous quantity estimates (16,793) 115 1,982 2,097
Accretion of discount (10%) 4,661 13,933 (6,791) 7,142
Net change th income taxes (13,57%9) 2 (47,200) (47.198)
Difference of foreign exchange rates (2,043) 1,425 (4,162) 2,737)
Discounted future net cash flows at March 31 ¥76,271 ¥191,597  ¥108,461  ¥300,058
Milhons of Yen
Conschdated
Companes Affihated Companies
Total North Australia  Indonesia Total
Year Ended March 31, 2012 Amenca
Discounted future net cash flows at Apnl 1 ¥76,271 ¥191,597  ¥108,461  ¥300,058
Sales and transfer of 011 and gas produced, net of production costs (25.973) {64,918) (4,593} (69,511)
Development costs incurred 7,855 9,705 6,146 15,851
Purchases of reserves ¥(3,349} (3,349)
Sales of reserves {1,574)
Net changes 1n sales and transfer prices and production costs
related to future production 105,990 99,532 41,722 141,254
Changes 1n estunated future development costs (22,933) {37,531} 1,908 (35,623)
Extensions, discovertes and mmproved recovery, less related costs 2,898
Revisions of previous quantity estimates 7,485 6,172 (3,748) 2,424
Accretion of discount {10%}) 9,862 18,235 7,912 26,147
Net change mn i1ncome taxes {50,432} (7,992) (29,204) (37,196)
Dufference of foreign exchange rates (2,283) {9,242) (4,991) (14,233)
Discounted future net cash flows at March 31 ¥107,166 ¥(3,349) ¥205,558  ¥123,613  ¥325822
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Millions of Yen

Consolidated
Companies Affihated Companies
Total North Austraha  Indonesia Total
Year Ended March 31, 2013 America
Discounted future net cash flows at April 1 ¥107,166 ¥(3,349) ¥205,558 ¥123,613  ¥325822
Sales and transfer of 01l and gas produced, net of production costs (20,441) (504) (81,399) (29,168) (111,471)
Development costs tncurred 25,507 11,867 11,844 13,932 37,643
Purchases of reserves 10,521 2,809 13,330
Net changes n sales and transfer prices and production costs
related to future production {10,114) (40,443) 44,193 141,062 144,812
Changes 1n estimated future development costs {22,204) 35,159 (6,295) 12,974 41,838
Extensions, discovertes and improved recovery, less related costs 3,186
Revisions of previous quantity estimates 17,370 5,738 8,077 13,815
Accretion of discount (10%) 11,095 (228) 23,331 14,379 37,482
Net change 1n mncome taxes (9,453) (2,157) (149.031) (151,188)
Dafference of foreign exchange rates 8,540 (476) 27,747 14,057 41,328
Discounted future net cash flows at March 31 ¥110,652 ¥1,626  ¥239081  ¥152,704  ¥393,411
Miihions of U § Dellars
Consohdated
Companies Affihated Compames
Year Ended March 31, 2013 Total A}:]n(;:r::a Australia  Indonesia Total
Discounted future net cash flows at Apnl 1 £1,140 $(36) $2,187 $1,315 $3,466
Sales and transfer of 01l and gas produced, net of production costs (217) (10) (866) (310) (1,186)
Development costs mourred 7 126 126 148 400
Purchases of reserves 112 30 142
Net changes in sales and transfer prices and production costs
related to future production (108) (430) 470 1,501 1,541
Changes in estimated future development costs (236) 374 (67) 138 445
Extensions, discovenes and improved recovery, less related costs 34
Rewisions of previous quantity estimates 185 61 86 147
Accrenion of discount (102%) 118 (2) 248 153 399
Net change 1n income taxes (101) (23) (1,586) (1,609)
Dafference of foreign exchange rates 91 (5) 295 150 440
Discounted future net cash flows at March 31 $1,177 $17 $£2,543 $1,625 $4,185
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Mitsubisht Corporation

We have audited the accompanying nonconsolidated balance sheet of Mitsubishi Corporation as of
March 31, 2013, and the related nonconsolidated statements of income, and changes 1n equity for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

Management's Responsibility for the Nonconsolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these nonconsohdated
financial statements 1n accordance with the Companies Act of Japan and applicable regulations
and accounting principles generally accepted 1n Japan, and for such internal control as
management determines 15 necessary 1o enable the preparation of nonconsoclidated financial
statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to express an opimuon on these nonconsohdated finanaal statements based on
our audit We conducted our audit 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 1n
Japan Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the nonconsolidated financial statements are free from matenal misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the nonconsohidated financaial statements The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
nonconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the nonconsohdated financial statements 1n order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate 1n the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the nonconsolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our optmion, the nonconsolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, 1n all
matenal respects, the financial position of Mitsubishi Corporation as of March 31, 2013, and the
results of its operations for the year then ended 1n accordance with the Companies Act of Japan
and applicable regulations and accounting principles generally accepted 1n Japan.

Emphasis of Matter

As explained 1n Note 1 to the nonconsolidated financial statements, the information provided 1n
the notes to the nonconsohidated financial statements 1s limited to that required by the Companies
Act of Japan and applicable regulations A statement of cash flows 1s not required as a part of the
basic financial statements under the Companies Act of Japan and applicable regulations and,
accordingly, 1s not presented herein Our opimion 1s not qualified 1n respect of these matters

Weloctl Towche Thmatae LLC

June 21, 2013

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Lirnited
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Mitsubishi Corporation

Nonconsolidated Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2013

(Uit Milhons of Yen)

ASSETS LIABILITIES
Total current assets ¥ 3,686,436 | Total current habilities ¥2,174,387
Cash and time deposits 805,193 Trade notes payable 87,714
Trade notes receivable 69,508 Trade accounts payable 891,397
Trade accounts receivable 1,120,513 Short-term borrowings 357719
Short-term 1nvestments 129,959 Commercial paper 95 000
Inventories 305 962 Bonds due for redemption within one vear 140,000
Real estate for sale 33,050 Accounts payable—other 203,526
Advance payments to suppliers 174,334 Accrued expenses 36,141
Accounts receivable—other 147,360 Advances received 156,530
Short-term loans 737 006 Deposit habilities 30,133
Deferred tax assets—current 32302 Allowance for directors' bonuses 100
Other current assets 135,268 Other current habilities 176 124
Allowance for doubtful receivables (4,022)
Non-current habilittes 3,647,763
Long-term borrowings 2,584,120
Total fixed assets 4,426,369 Bonds 912734
Net property and equipment 130,448 Accrued pension and severance liabihties 2,840
Equipment leased to others 263 Retirement allowances for directors and senior vice 2,492
presidents (except Ru’)
Buildings and structures 37.554 Allowance for loss on guarantees of obligations 11113
Land 86,362 Allowance for special repairs 491
Construction 1n progress 1.585 Deferred tax habilities—non-current 105,515
Other property and equipment 4,682 Asset retirement obhgations 1,678
Other long-term Liabiliies 26,776
Intangible assets 40,220 TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,822,151
Software 14,288
Software in progress 25047
Other intangible assets 883 EQUITY
Shareholders’ equity 1,980,354
Total investments and other assets 4,255,701 Common stock 204 446
Investment securities 109] 389 Capntal surplus 214 161
Investment 1n affihates—stock 2,409,703 Addmional paid-in capital appropriated for legal 214,161
reserve
Other investments 1n affihates 137,012 Retamned earmings 1,579,363
Investments other than stock 21,494 Retained carnings appropriated tor legal reserve 31.652
Investments in affiliates—other than stock 130,492 Other retained earnings 1 547,711
Long-term loans recervable 372.714 Reserve for deferred gain on sales of property 10,708
Non-current trade receivables 10,981 General reserve 1,202 760
Long-term prepard expenses 68,126 Unappropriated retained earnings 334242
Other investments 32681 Treasury stock {17 616)
Allowance for doubtful receivables (1B 895) | Valuation and translation adjustments 306,134
Unrealized gains on other securities 338,135
Deferred assets 1,904 Deferred hedging gains (32,000)
Bond issuance cost 1 904 | Stock acquisttion rights 6,070
TOTAL EQUITY 2,292,559
TOTAL ASSETS ¥8,114,710 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ¥8,114,710

See notes to the nonconsohdated financial statements

(Figures less than one million yen are rounded down)




Mitsubishi Corporation

Nonconsolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended March 31, 2013

(Uit Mullions of Yen)

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating loss

Non-operating income
Interest income
Dividend income
Foreign exchange gains
Gain on sales of fixed assets
Gan on sales of investment securities
Other income

Non-operating expenses
Interest expense
Financial derivative expenses
Loss on sales and disposals of fixed assets
Impairment loss on fixed assets
Loss on sales of investment securities
Write-down of investment securities
Provision for doubtful receivables from affiliates
Other expenses

Income before income taxes

Income taxes-current

Income taxes-deferred

Net income

¥10,182,211
(10,025,004)
157,207
(222,173)
(64,965)

524,829
14,177
412,130
36,035
458
39,539
22,486
(131,396)
(17,631)
(41,805)
(682)
(472)
(5.098)
(40,645)
(15,858)
(9,202)
328,467

(21,513)
11,597
¥318,551

See notes to the nonconsolidated financial statements

{Figures less than one milhon yen are rounded down)




Mitsubishi Corporation

Nonconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year Ended March 31, 2013 (Umit Millions of Yen)
Sharcholders' equaty
Cagrtal surphus Retuned earmngs
Addh Retauned Other retauned carmungs Total
pad-0 capdal camngs Treasiny fock
Commen gock a naiod rated dl:;:::: gr::n U od :h:l:.oiltu‘kn
for kegal Tof legal on sales of General reserve retained
resenve teserve propemm earngs
Balance as of Apnl 1 2012 204 446 214 161 36652 10708 995 760 319451 (20 189) 1,755,991
Changes dunng the fiscal vear
Dnadends (95 502) {95,502)
Transfer 1o gencral resene 207 000 (207 000) -
Net tncome 318 551 318,551
Purchase of wrasury stock (6) (6)
Sales of treasun stock (1257) 2579 1321
Ne1 changes in nems other than sharcholdors' squity
dunng 1he fiscal year -
Total changes dunng the fiscal vear - - - 207 000 14 790 2572 2124 363
Balance as of March 31 2013 204 446 214 161 31652 10 708 1 202 760 334 242 {17 616) 1580354
Walualson and translation adjustments
|
|
Totad Stock |
‘:“mml;mh Deferred valuation and acquisiton. T::’ﬂ":‘ |
secunues hedging gamns tramaizboa nghts
adfunimerty |
|
Balance a5 of Apral | 2012 256 833 10320 267,158 6000 2,029,150 :
Changes dusing the liscal vear
Dnadends (95,502)
Transfer 10 general reserve -
Net income 318 551
Purchase of weasun slock 16)
Salcs of treasy stock 1,321
Net changes in uems pther than thareholdears eqoh
durmg the fiscal s car 81297 (42321) 38975 69 39,045
Totat changes during the fiscal voar 81297 (42321) 38,9758 1 263,409
Bulznoe as of March 11 2013 338 135 (32 000) 306 134 6070 2,292,559

See notes to the nonconsolidated financial statements

(Figures less than one million yen are rounded down)




Mitsubishi Corporation

Notes to the nonconsohdated financial statements (for the year ended March 31, 2013):

1. Basis of Presenting Nonconsolidated Financial Statements
The accompanying nonconselidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by Mitsubishi
Corporation (the “Company”), in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Companies Act of Japan and applicable
regulations and 1n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan The information provided in the notes
to the nonconsolidated financial statements s limited to that required by the Companies Act of Japan and applicable
regulations
A statement of cash flows 1s not required as a part of the basic financial statements under the Companies Act of Japan and
applicable regulations and, accordingly, 1s not presented herein
Japanese yen figures less than a million yen are rounded down to the nearest million yen, except for per share data

2. Significant Accounting Policies

| Inventiories
Inventories held for ordinary sale are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value Cost 1s determined by the
average-cost method or specific identification method Inventories held for trading are measured at market value

2 Securities
Securities are measured as follows
*  Held-to-maturity securities, at amortized cost
Securities 1ssued by subsidiaries and affiliates, at cost (the cost of securities sold 15 determined based on the
moving-average method)
Other securities
Marketable securities, at fair value as determined by the market value at the end of the fiscal year
(Unrealized gain and loss 1s recorded in equity The cost of securities sold 1s determuned based on the moving-average
method )
Non-marketable securities, at cost, based on the moving-average method

3 Denvatives
Derwvatives are measured at fair value
The Company utihizes derivative financial instruments to manage 1ts exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and commodity prices For those denivatives that qualify for hedge accounting, gans or losses on derivatives
are deferred until maturity of the hedged items

4 Depreciation and Amortization of Fixed Assets
Depreciation of property and equipment (excluding leased assets) 1s calculated using the declining-balance method
However, depreciation of buildings (excluding fixtures) acquired after March 31, 1998 is calculated using the straight-line
method Intangible fixed assets are amortized using the stratght-line method Software for internal use 1s amortized using
the straight-line method based on an estimated useful life of five years

Leased assets under finance leases other than those that transfer ownership are depreciated using the straight-line method
based on the lease term as the useful life and residual value of zero Of finance leases other than those that transfer
ownership, leases beginning prior to Apnil 1, 2008 are accounted for as ordinary operating leases

5 Deferred Assets
Bond 1ssuance expenses are amortized by the interest method over the bond term

6 Foreign Currency Translation of Assets and Liabilities
Monetary assets and hiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at year-end exchange
rates with the resulting exchange gains or losses recogmzed i the nonconsolidated statement of income

7 Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
The allowance for doubtful receivables 1s established, with general allowance, based on the Company’s past credit loss
experience, and for individual doubtful receivables, based on evaluation of potential losses in the receivables outstanding




8 Allowance for Directors’ Bonuses

The allowance for directors’ bonuses represents the amount deemed to have been incurred n the fiscal year based on
projected payments at the end of the fiscal year

9 Accrued Pension and Severance Liabilities

Accrued pension and severance habilities are accounted for based on the projected benefit obligations and the plan assets at
the balance sheet date The unrecogmzed net actuarial loss 15 amortized using the straight-line method over the average
remaining service pertod for the employees in service from the following fiscal year Prior service costs are amortized
using the straight-line method over the average remaiming service period for employees

10 Reurement Allowance for Directors and Senior Vice Presidents (except “Rii”)

11

Retirement allowances for Directors and Senior Vice Presidents (except “Ruyr”’) are provided at the amount of estimated
retirement benefits to be paid at the end of the fiscal year based on calculation formulas in the bylaws

The retirement bonuses plan for Directors and Senior Vice Presidents (except “Ryi”") was abolished n the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008 The allowance balance as of March 31, 2013 relates to the previous plan

Allowance for Loss on Credit Guarantees of Indebtedness
The Company provides for contingent losses on guarantees of obligations, such as bank loans, for subsidiaries and other
parties 1 the amount deemed necessary in consideration of their financial conditions and other factors

12 Allowance for Special Repairs

13

The allowance for special repairs 1s provided at the amount allocated to the period based on the estimated amount of
expenses required for mandated regular open inspections of o1l storage tanks

Consumption Tax and Similar Local Taxes
Consurmption tax and sumilar local taxes are excluded from income and expenses

14 Income Taxes

The Company applies the consolidated tax return filing system

(Change n Presentation)

3.

1 Nonconsohdated Balance Sheet

In prior years, software and software in progress were presented i “Software and others” of intangible assets However,
the Company changed 1ts presentation of “Software” and “Software in progress” as of March 31, 2013, due to their
increase of monetary matenahty

Notes to Nonconsolidated Balance Sheet

1

2

Assets pledged as collateral and significant liabilities with collateral
(1) Assets pledged as collateral

Short-term investments ¥28 million
Investment securities ¥3,375 million
Investments 1n affihates-stock ¥48.276 million
Investments 1n affiliates-other than stock ¥2.,448 million
Long-term loans recervable ¥89 million

Total ¥54,217 mullion

(2) Significant liabilities with collateral
The Company does not have collateral pledged against the Company’s habilities

Accumulated depreciation for property and equipment ¥76,860 mllion




3 Credit guarantee of indebtedness
(1) Guarantees for bank loans of customers and suppliers

(Affihate) MITSUBISHI DEVELOPMENT PTY LIMITED

(Affihate) PT DIPO STAR FINANCE

(Affiliate) MCAP EUROPE LIMITED

(Affiliate) MITSUBISHI CORPORATION FINANCE PLC

(Affiliate) PETRO DIAMOND COMPANY LIMITED ¥84,588 mulhon

(Affihate) CUTBANK DAWSON GAS RESOURCES LTD ¥83,699 million

Others ¥1,012,386 mullion
Total ¥1.961,527 millien

¥406,962 million
¥152,899 milhion
¥128,232 million

¥92.,758 million

In connection with an LNG project in Australia, the Company provides a performance guarantee to the seller of the
participating interest in the project The performance guarantee 15 a joint and several guarantee of the payments for the
participating interest n this project and for the future funding commitment 1n accordance with the jomt venture agreement
These guarantees amounted to 259,954 million yen as of March 31, 2013
The Company also provides guarantees for bank loans for this project The guarantee amount as of March 31, 2013 1s
mcluded in Others in the table above

4 Trade notes discounted ¥77,178 million
Short-term receivables

Long-term receivables
Short-term payables

5 Due from affiliates ¥959 451 million
¥342,690 million

Due to affihiates ¥235,027 millhon

4. Notes to Nonconsolidated Statement of Income

1 Transactions with affiliates
Operating transactions
Sales ¥2.131,065 million
Purchases ¥2.452.474 milhon
Transactions other than operating transactions ¥361,808 million

5. Notes to Nonconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

1 Number of shares 1ssued and outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
1,653,505,751 shares of common stock

2 Number of shares of treasury stock at the end of the fiscal year
6,166,537 shares of common stock

3 Matters concerning dividends
(1) Matters concerning dividends paid during the fiscal year

Resol Class of Total Dhvidend Record Effective
esolution Shares Dividend per Share Date Date

June 26, 2012 Common ¥54.332 March 31, June 27,

Ordinary General stock million ¥33 2012 2012

Meeting of Shareholders

];ove:bfe[r)z, 2? 12 Common ¥41,170 ¥s September | December
oard of Directors stock million 30,2012 3,2012

Meeting




(2) Matters concerning dividends to be paid after the end of the fiscal year
The following was approved at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on June 21, 2013

Total dividend ¥49.420,176,420
Dividend per share of common stock ¥30
Effective date June 24, 2013
Source of funds for dividend Retained earnings
Record date March 31, 2013

4 Equivalent number of shares resulting from the potential exercise of stock acquisition rights at the end of the
fiscal year
5,653,400 shares of common stock (excluding shares for which the exercise period has not commenced)

6. Notes Concerning Income Tax Effects

1 Breakdown of the sigmficant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets

Allowance for doubtful receivables %9073 mitlion
Accrued expenses ¥9.178 million
Wnite-down of investment securities ¥90,448 mithion
Impairment loss on fixed assets and real estate held for sale ¥2,149 million
Other ¥35,248 milhon
Subtotal ¥146,099 million
Less valuation allowance (¥5.864 million)
Total deferred tax assets ¥140,234 million
Deferred tax liabilities
Expenses related to accrued pension and severance hiabilities (¥12,776 million)
Deferred gain on sales of property (¥5,930 million)
Unrealized gain on other securities (¥187,525 million)
Other (¥7,215 million)
Total deferred tax habilities (¥213.447 million)
Net deferred tax habilities (¥73.213 million)
Deferred tax assets-current ¥32,302 mullion
Deferred tax habilities—noncurrent (¥105,515 mithon)

2 Reconciliation of the combined statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rate after giving effect to
ncome tax allocation

Combined statutory income tax rate 38 0%
(Adjustments}
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 05%
Dividend income (37 4%)
Tax benefits on foreign tax credits 03%
Aggregate taxable income of specified foreign subsidharies, etc 15%
Others 01%
Effective income tax rate 30%

7. Notes Concerning Leased Property and Equipment

In addition to fixed assets shown in the balance sheet, the Company uses leased office equipment, including personal
computers, extensively




8. Notes Concerning Transactions With Related Parties

Relationship Transaction Year-end
Voting Rights With Amount QOutstanding Balance
Category Name of Company (Ownership) Related Transactions (Milhons balances (Millions
Party of yen) of yen)
MITSUBISHI Dhrectly held
SHOKUHIN 61 98% Sale of processed food 473,225 Trade accounts
Subsidhary COMPANY Indirectly held Customer {Note 1) recesvable 87,467
LIMITED 002%
Advance of funds 71,539 Short-term loans 292,800
MC FINANCE {Note 2)
Subsidiary | AUSTRALIA PTY ?(;Biﬁ"y held Advance of | o eipt of mterest 198 | Others 22
() funds
LTD recerved (current assets)
(Note 2)
Advance of funds 92,125 Short-term loans 104 420
MC FINANCE & (Note 2)
Substdiary | CONSULTING ?Sai;"y held t.'_\ui\:;;nce of Recept of interest 279 | Others 21
ASIA PTE LTD ¢ received (current assets)
(Note 2)
Guarantee obhgations
MITSUBISHI (Note 3) 406,962 - -
Subsidiary | DEVELOPMENT lljéroijlly held oGl;]I?raall:::;s Recetpt of guarantee —
PTY LIMITED * & fee 102
(Note 3)
Guarantee obhigations 152,899 _
Subsuds P I DIPO STAR Indirectly held Guarantee &Nm; 31)01- waraniee 1323 -
Y | FINANCE 95% obhigations | 2P 1B ’ -
(Note 3)
Guarantee obligations 128,232 _
Subsds MCAP EUROPE Indirectly held Guarantee E{ND:; 31)of warant 271 -
¥ | LIMITED 100% obhigations f:’c“ pt ob guarantee -
(Note 3)
Guarantee obligations 92 758 _
MITSUBISHI (Note 3) _
Subsidiary | CORPORATION [ Drtecty held Guarafitee | ecerpt of guarantee 62 _
FINANCE PLC ° g fee
(Note 3)
PETRO DIAMOND Directly held Guarantee Guarantee obligations — —
Subsidtary | COMPANY o 84,588
LIMITED 100% obligations {Note 4}
Guarantee obligations 83,699
CUTBANK (Note 3) _ ~
Subsidiary | DAWSON GAS Il':;:;;ecuy held SI::?I :‘l‘l‘(‘)’:s Receipt of guarantee 249
RESOURCES LTD ° & fee
(Note 3)

Transaction terms and policy

Notes
1

Prices and other transaction terms are determined through price negotiations based on market prices The transaction

amounts do not include consumption taxes, etc However, the year-end balances include consumption taxes, etc
The Company determines conditions of advances rationally based on market interest rates

The Company prevides guarantees for bank loans and recerves a guarantee fee based on market interest rates
Desprte the guarantees provided for bank loans, etc, the Company does not receive a guarantee fee from the
company as the Company does not require the company to bear the transaction risk

In addition to the above, 1in connection with an LNG project in Austrahia discussed under “3 Credit guarantee of
indebtedness” 1n “Notes to Nonconsolidated Balance Sheet,” the Company provides a joint and several performance

guarantee for related parties




9. Notes Concerning Per Share Information

Net assets per share ¥1,387 99
Basic net income per share ¥193 44
Diluted net income per share ¥193 02

10. Notes Concerning Matured notes at fiscal year-end

Matured notes at fiscal year end are accounted for on the settlement date Because March 31, 2013 fell on a bank holiday, the
following matured notes were included 1n year-end balances

Trade notes receivable ¥5,728 million

Trade notes payable ¥3,857 mullion
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Please tick the appropriate box
[J No GotoSection A3

Yes Please enter the name of the organisation or other
body which 1ssued those prinaiples below, and then go to Section A3

Name of organisation I

appropnate accounting organisation

or body

or body © US GAAP
m Accounts
Accounts Have the accounts been audited? Please tick the appropnate box

™1 No Go to Section AS
Yes Go to Section A4

BIS

Inngvation & Skath

Dapartment for Buniness

CHFPO0O
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

m Audited accounts
Audited accounts Have the accounts been audited in accordance with a set of generally accepted | @ Please insert the name of the
audrting standards? appropnate accounting
organisation or bocy
Please tick the appropriate box
[ No Go to Part 3 'Signature’
Yes. Please enter the name of the orgamisation or other body which 1ssued
those standards below, and then go to Part 3 "Signature’
Name of organisation I US GAAP
or body ©
m Unaudited accounts
Unaudited accounts | Is the company required to have its accounts audited?
Please tick the appropnate box
3 no
[ ves
.
Part 3 Signature
! I am signing this form on behalf of the overseas company
Signature Signature
X YN e x
e
This form may be signed by
Director, Secretary, Permanent representative
CHFPOO0O
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

B Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have 10 give any contact information, but if
you do 1t wili help Companies House if there 15 a query
on the form The contact information you give will be
wvisible to searchers of the pubhc record

Contact nama

Sumiyo Sekiguchi

omeam 27 Mitsubish) Corporation International

{Europe) Pic
*9 Mid City Place, 71 High Holborn

’Poslmwn

Lendon
County/Region

N 2 o N T A CH G

|Dx

(020)7025-3152

nChecinst

We may returp forms compieted incorrectly or
with information missing

’reteprm

Please make sure you have remembered the

following

O The company name and, If approprnate, the
registered number, match the information held on
the public Register

O You have completed all sections of the form,
if appropriate

O Yeu have signed the form

Please note that all this information will appear
on the puhlic record

mhere to send

You may return this form to any Companies
House address

England and Wales

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

Scotland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbndge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh Z (Legal Post}

Northern Irefand

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Beltast, Northern ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 NR Belfast i

n Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or email enguines@companieshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This has been provided free of charge by Companies House

CHFPODD
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